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Incependent Auditors Report

To the Members of IndiaMART InterMESH Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of IndiaMART InterMESH Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as “the Group”), and its associates, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at
31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated

financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associates as at
31 March 2023, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in
equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Audifor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and its associates in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us along with the consideration of reports of the other auditors referred to in paragraph (a) of
the “Other Matters” section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration of
reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of components audited by them, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue Recognition - Web Services

See Note 2.3(d) and 19 to the consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group generates revenue primarily from | In view of the significance of the matter we applied
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web services and follows a prepaid model for
its business.

Revenue from web services is recognised over
the period of the contract as and when the
Group satisfies performance obligations by
actually rendering the promised services to its
customers.

These services are delivered using IT systems
which manage very high volume on daily basis
and generate reports from which the Group
recognises revenue, and hence there is
inherent risk around the existence and
accuracy of revenue recognition.

We have identified revenue recognition from
web services as a key audit matter because of
the significance of web services revenue to the
financial statements and its recognition based
on high volume of data generated by internal IT
systems.

the following audit procedures in this area, among
others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence:

We assessed the appropriateness of the
revenue recognition accounting policy and
its compliance with applicable accounting
standards.

We  evaluated the design and
implementation of key internal financial
controls and operating effectiveness of the
relevant key controls with respect to
existence and accuracy of revenue
recognition on selected transactions.

We, with the involvement of IT specialists,
evaluated the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management’s
general IT controls and key application
controls over the Group’s IT systems which
govern revenue recognition, including
access controls, controls over program
changes and interfaces between different
systems.

We selected a sample of transactions using
statistical sampling and performed tests of
details including reading the contract,
identifying performance obligation and its
link with actual rendition to assess whether
the criteria for revenue recognition are met.

We tested completeness and accuracy of
web services revenue and collection from
underlying relevant source documents
generated by IT systems with accounting
system.

We assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.

Accounting for Business Combinations

See Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

During the current year, the Group completed
two business combinations. Accounting for
Business Combinations requires judgement
with respect to identification and valuation of
intangible assets acquired as part of the

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following audit procedures in this area, among
others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence:

We evaluated the design, implementation
P =
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business combinations. A significant portion of and operating effectiveness of the internal
the purchase price has been attributed to controls relating to accounting for business
identified intangible assets and goodwill. The combinations and related disclosures in the
valuation of identified intangible assets is consolidated financial statements.

dependent on cash flow forecasts including
future business growth, expected synergies
and application of a discount rate, which are
inherently subjective.

ii. We evaluated if the cash flow forecasts with
regard to the valuation of the identified
intangible  assets are  reasonable,
considering the  historical financial
performance, business growth and expected
synergies.

iii. We along with our valuation specialists,
evaluated the reasonableness of the
methodology and key assumptions used by
the Group and the valuer engaged by the
Group to value each intangible asset and
goodwill.

iv. We re-computed the deferred tax liabilities
arising on the acquired intangible assets and
verified if the applicable tax rates have been
considered.

v. We evaluated the adequacy and accuracy of
the disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements.

Goodwill Impairment

See Note 6A to the consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group has recognised goodwill related to | In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the business acquistion of Busy Infotech | the following audit procedures in this area, among
Private Limited and Livekeeping Technologies | others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence:
Private Limited, amounting to INR 4,122.34
and INR 420.38 respectively, during the year
ended 31 March 2023.

i. We evaluated the design  and
implementation and also tested the
operating effectiveness of key internal
financial controls implemented by the Group

Giockitll Has: Ten akocater: 10 e Busy in relation to impairment testing of goodwiill.

Infotech Private Limited and Livekeeping

Technologies Private Limited cash-generating i. We evaluated the Group’s valuation
units (CGUs). methodology applied in determining the
recoverable amount of CGUs in accordance
The annual impairment testing of goodwill is with applicable Ind AS. Further, we also
considered to be a key audit matter due to the assessed the objectivity and independence
complexity of the accounting requirements and of the specialists involved in the process.

the significant judgement required in
determining the assumptions to be used to
estimate the recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of the CGUs, which is

iii. We evaluated the appropriateness of
assumptions applied to key inputs of the
cash flow forecasts including expected

PN
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based on the higher of the value in use or fair
value less costs to sell, has been derived from
discounted forecast cash flow model. The
model uses several key assumptions, including
estimates of future revenue, operating costs,
terminal value growth rate and the
weighted-average cost of capital (discount
rate).

Vi.

vii.

revenue growth rates, terminal growth rate
and discount rate.

We engaged valuation specialists to assess
the appropriateness of  valuation
methodology used and key inputs such as
Weighted Average Cost of Capital
(WACC) rate, terminal growth rate and
terminal value for the determination of the
recoverable amount of each CGU. Further,
we also compared the recoverable amount
determined above with the carrying value of
CGU.

We performed our own sensitivity analysis,
which included assessing the effect of
reasonably possible reductions in growth
rates and forecast cash flows to evaluate the
impact on the currently estimated headroom
for the Busy Infotech Private Limited and
Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited
CGUs.

We tested the arithmetical accuracy of the
models.

We evaluated the adequacy of disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements,
including disclosures of key assumptions,
judgements and sensitivities.

Valuation of investments in associates and other entities

See Note 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group has significant investments in
associates and other entities amounting to INR
2,906.48 Milion and INR 2,210.52 Million
respectively, as at 31 March 2023.

Management keeps track of all investments in
reference to their financial performance. In
addition, management also performs:

i. Review of indicators of impairment (if
any) on investments in associates at
regular intervals and performs
impairment testing if any indicators are
noted.

ii. Fair valuation of investments in other
entities which are measured at fair

In view of the significance of the matter, we applied
the following audit procedures in this area, among
others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence:

We  evaluated the design and
implementation and also tested the
operating effectiveness of key internal
financial controls implemented by the Group
in relation to valuation of investments in
associates and other entities.

We evaluated the Group’s valuation
methodology applied in determining the fair
value (“recoverable amount”) in accordance
with relevant applicable Ind AS. Further, we
also assessed the objectivity and
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value through profit and loss independence of the specialists involved in
(“FVTPL"). the valuation process.
iii. We evaluated the appropriateness of
Significant judgements are involved to assumptions around the key drivers of the
determine the key assumptions used for the cash flow forecasts such as revenue growth
purpose of impairment testing/ fair valuation, rates and terminal growth rate.

such as revenue growth, discount rates, etc.
The aforesaid activity of impairment testing/ fair
valuation is highly dependent on the
assumptions and other inputs considered to

iv. We also assessed the valuation
methodology for recent market transactions
and key assumptions adopted in the cash

camry out such activity, flow forecasts considering current economic

scenario, including retrospective reviews to

We have identified valuation of investments in prior yeur's forecasis againpt actus! resyits.

associates and other entities as a key audit v. We engaged valuation specialists to assess

matter because of the complexity involved in the appropriateness of valuation

determination of key assumptions and methodology and market driven

judgements for the purpose of impairment assumptions used for assessment of the

testing/ fair valuation of respective valuation of investments.

investments. vi. We tested the arithmetical accuracy of the
models.

vii. We assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements,
including disclosures of key assumptions,
judgments and sensitivities.

Other Information

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s annual report, but
does not include the financial statements and auditor’s repaort thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/audit report
of other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including
its associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 o Jhe respective Management
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and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of each
company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going
concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated finapeiatstatements represent the underlying
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transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of such entities or
business activities within the Group and its associates to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in paragraph
(a) of the section titled “Other Matters” in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entity
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

a. We did not audit the financial statements of four subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflects total
assets (before consolidation adjustments) of INR 1,635.91 Million as at 31 March 2023, total revenues
(before consolidation adjustments) of INR 39.31 Million and net cash outflows (before consolidation
adjustments) amounting to INR 12.04 Million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. We also did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary
(including its subsidiary), whose financial statements reflects total assets (before consolidation
adjustments) of INR 327.79 Million as at 31 March 2023, total revenues (before consolidation
adjustments) of INR 0.68 Million and net cash outflows (before consolidation adjustments) amounting
to INR 344.23 Million for the period from 1 June 2022 to 31 March 2023,on that date, as considered
in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these/ subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in
so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work

done and the reports of the other auditors.
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b. The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of net loss (and other comprehensive
income) of INR 370.44 Million for the year ended 31 March 2023, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements, in respect of seven associates, whose financial information have not been
audited either by us or by other auditors. The consolidated financial statements also include the
Group's share of net profit (and other comprehensive income) of INR Nil for the period from 1 April
2022 to 16 March 2023 and the Group's share of net loss (and other comprehensive income) of INR
9.54 Million for the period from 3 November 2022 to 31 March 2023, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements, in respect of two associates, whose financial information have not been audited
either by us or by other auditors. These unaudited financial information have been furnished to us by
the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these associates, and our report in terms of sub-
section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associates, is based solely
on such unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the Management, these financial information are not material to the
Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to the financial information

certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries, as were audited by other
auditors, as noted in the “Other Matters” paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consalidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors.

c. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31 March 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, and on the basis
of written representations received by the management from directors of its eight associate
companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies and its associate
companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B". Further,

the associate companies incorporated in Indiglhﬁ/' exempted from the requirement of its
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auditor reporting on whether the company has adequate internal financial control system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, as noted in the “Other Matters”
paragraph:

a.

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at
31 March 2023 on the consolidated financial position of the Group and its associates. Refer
income tax liabilities disclosed in the balance sheet along with Note 26 and Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group and its associates did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2023.

There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies and associate companies
during the year ended 31 March 2023.

d (i) The management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India

(ii)

whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the
other auditors of such subsidiary companies respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the Note 12(2) to the consolidated financial statements, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and
associate companies incorporated in India to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies and associate companies incorporated in India (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the
other auditors of such subsidiary companies respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the Note 12(2) to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have
been received by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and associate companies
incorporated in India from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies and associate companies incorporated in India shall
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The final dividend paid by the Holding Company during the year, in respect of the previous year
ended 31 March 2022 , is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to
payment of dividend. As stated in Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements, the Board of
Directors of the Holding Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to
the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in
accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend

As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Acco es, 2014 is applicable for the Holding
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Company and its subsidiary companies and associate companies incorporated in India only with
effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 is not applicable.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports
of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies incorporated in India which were not audited
by us, the remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The associate
companies are private limited companies and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by the
provisions of section 197(16) are not applicable to the associate companies. The remuneration paid
to any director by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies is not in excess of the limit laid
down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details
under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

"

Kanika Kohli

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 511565
Date: 28 April 2023 ICAI UDIN:23511565BGYGHO04272
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of IndiaMART InterMESH Limited for the year ended
31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2020 reports of the Holding company and subsidiary companies, included in the consolidated financial
statements.

The above does not include comments, if any, in respect of the following entities as the CARO report
relating to them has not been issued by its auditor till the date of principal auditor's report.

Name of the entities CIN Subsidiary/ JV/
Associate

Shipway Technology Private | U72300HR2015PTC056319 Associate
Limited

Truckhall Private Limited U60221WB2016PTC217183 Associate

Agillos E-Commerce Private | U52300KA2016PTC092938 Associate

Limited

Edgewise Technologies U72200KA2015PTC078474 Associate

Private Limited

IB MonotaRO Private Limited | U52609DL2020PTC366962 Associate

Simply Vyapar Apps Private | U74110KA2018PTC110858 Associate

Limited

Adansa Solutions Private U74999WB1973PTC028813 Associate

Limited

Mobisy Technologies Private | U72900KA2008PTC045157 Associate

Limited

Page 11 of 14



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of IndiaMART InterMESH Limited for the year ended

31 March 2023 (Continued)

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of one associate company
incorporated in India, CARO is not applicable:

Name of the entity

CIN

Subsidiary/ JV/
Associate

Ten Times Online Private
Limited (till 16 March 2023)

U72300DL2014PTC265480 Associate

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 April 2023

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

0}3}\3&’
Kanika Kohli

Partner

Membership No.: 511565

ICAI UDIN:23511565BGYGHO4272

Page 12 of 14



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of IndiaMART InterMESH Limited for the year ended
31 March 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of IndiaMART InterMESH Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and
such companies incorporated in India under the Act which are its subsidiary companies, as of that date.

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of subsidiary companies, as were audited by the other auditors, the
Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary companies, have, in
all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such
internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by such companies considering the
essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance
Note”).

Management’'s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the respective company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. WWe conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence



BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of IndiaMART InterMESH Limited for the year ended
31 March 2023 (Continued)

of the relevant subsidiary companies in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to five subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the
auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

o\
o

Kanika Kohli

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 511565
Date: 28 April 2023 ICAI UDIN:23511565BGYGHO4272
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IndiaMART InterMESH Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
(Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Asat As at
Notes 31 March 2023 A1 March 2022
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and eguipment 5A 128.31 30.62
Capital work in progress 3A 1.77 1.77
Right-of-use assets 5B 4]2.62 528.43
Goodwill 6A 4,542.72 -
Other intangible assets 6B 44743 1.59
Investment in associates 7 2,751.48 2.490.27
Financial assets
(1) Investments 8 2.365.52 1.719.05
(i1) Loans 8 0.84 0.82
(iii) Other financial assets 8 40.73 3922
Deferred tax assets (net) 26 21.75 -
Non-current tax assets (net) 18 84.26 23396
Other non-current assels 9 15.21 40.95
Total Non-current assets 10,812.64 5,086.68
Current assets
Financial assets
(i} Investments 8 22,718.33 23,007.65
(1i} Trade receivables 10 70.55 13.26
(i1} Cash and cash equivalents 11 581.06 49547
(iv}) Bank balances other than (iii) above I 1.69 ma
(v} Loans 8 56,48 44839
(vi) Other financial assets § 149,62 118.50
Other current assets 9 55.93 45.79
Total current assets 23.633.66 24,401.83
Total Assets 34.446.30 29,488.51
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share capital 12 305.79 305.53
Other equity 13 20,279.13 18,435.00
Total Equity 20.584.92 18,740.53
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Lease liabilities 15 (a) 14028 462.39
{ii) Other financial liabilities 15 (b) 355.68 -
Contract liabilities 17 4.205.57 3316.20
Provisions 16 196,40 230.60
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 26 202.86 156.42
Total Non-current liabilities 5,300.79 4,165.61
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 15 (a) 11§.80 100.41
(ii) Trade payables 14
{a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1.07 .
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 271.11 183.57
(iii} Other financial liabilities 15 (b} 270.61 203.00
Contract liabilities 17 7.419.06 5.754.18
Other current labilities 17 367.09 290,93
Provisions 16 77.02 50.28
Current tax liabilities (net) 18 35.83 -
Total Current liabilities 8,560.59 6,582.37
Total Liahilities 13.861.38 10.747.98
Total Equity and Liabilities 34.446.30 29,488.51
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an infegral pan of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

ForBSR & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No. 101248W/AV-100022

]

W

Kanika Kohli

Partner

Membership No.: 511565
Place: Gurugram

Date: 28 April 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
IndiaMART InterMESH Lim

R 03

teek Chandra Ma
{Chief Financial Officer) (Cof

Place: Noida
Date: 28 April 2023




IndiaMART InterMESH Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Income:
Revenue from operations 19 9,853.99 7.534.85
Other income 20 1,805.26 1.121.94
Total income 11,659.25 8,656.79
Expenses:
Employee benefits expense 21 4.247.35 2,675.52
Finance costs 22 81.51 54.02
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 310.75 119.46
Other expenses 24 2.927.81 1.780.87
Total expenses 7,567.42 4,629.87
Net profit before share of loss in associates and tax 4.091.83 4,026.92
Share in net loss of associates {379.05) (122.49)
Profit before tax 3,712.78 3,904.43
Income tax expense

Current tax 26 950.11 980.47

Deferred tax 26 (75.60) (52.22)
Total tax expense 874.51 928.25
Net profit for the year 2,838.27 2,976.18
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans 60.37 4.50
Income tax effect (15.31) (1.44)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of fax 45.06 3.06
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,883.33 2.979.24
Earnings per equity share: 25
Basic earnings per equity share (INR) - face value of INR 10 each 92.96 97.82
Diluted earnings per equity share (INR) - face value of INR 10 each 92.63 96.84
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
1C Al Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

(@

Kanika Kohli

Partner

Membership No.: 511565
Place: Gurugram

Date: 28 April 2023

For and on belalf of the Board of Directors of
IndiaMART Inter MESH Limited

(Managing Drfe
DIN:00191800

a0

rateek Chandra
(Chief Financial Officer)

Place: Noida
Date: 28 April 2023




IndiaMART Inter MESH Limited
Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the vear ended 31 March 2023

{Amounts in INR million, uniess otherwisc stated)

{a) Equity share capital (Refer Note 12}

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up Amount |
As at | April 2021 303.16
Equity shares jssued on exercise of ESOP during the year (refer note 12) 1L.28
Equity shares issued to Indiaman Employee Benefit Trust during the year (refer note 12(d)) 173
Equity shares 1ssned dunng the carlier year to Indiaman Employee Benefit Truse and 0.4%
mansfermed o employess pursuant to SAR exercize during the vear (refer note 12)
Equuty shares issued during the year and held by Indiaman Employee Benefit Trust as o {012y
year end { refer note 12}
Asat 3 March 2022 30553
Asat | April 2022 30553
Equity shares issued to Indiaman Employee Benefit Trust dunng the year (refer note 12(d)) 210
Equity shares fssued dunng the earlier year to Indiman Employee Benefit Trust and 012
transferred to employees pursiant 1o SAR exercise during the year {refer note 12)
Equity shares issued duning the vear and beld by Indiamart Emplovee Benefit Trust as o (036}
year end (refer note 12)
Equity shares extinguished on buy back duning the year {Refer Note 12) (16001
As at 31 March 2023 365.79
(b) Other equity (Refer Note 13)
Particulars Reserves and surplus Total other equity

Securities premivm General reserve Employee share hased Capital Redemption Retained earnings

payment reserve Reserve

Balunce as at 1 April 2021 15,310.77] B.45 97.18| 4 380,08 15,805.68]
Profit for the year - - - R 2976, 18 2976, 18]
Oither comprehensive loss for the year = = - - 3,006} 3.06(
Total comprehensive income = = = - 2,979.24 2,979.24]
Issue of equity shares on exercise of share based awards during the year 72,46 - (69,95 ) p 251
Employee share based payment expense (Refer Note 21) - -l 102,73 g - 10273
Final dividend puid (INR | 5/- per shure for financial year ended 31 March 2021) - - - E (455.16) (455,16
Balance as at 31 March 2022 15,383.23 845 130.16/ b 1,911.16) 18,435.00]
Balance as at | April 2022 15,383.23 8.45) 13016 ! 2,913.16) 18,435.00
Profit for the vear - - - R 283427 2338.27
Other comprehensive Joss for the year - -] - - 45,06 45060
Total comprehensive income - -] o -| 1,883.33] 1,883.33
Employee share based payment expense [Refer Note 21) . 265.66 - 265,66
Izsue of equity shares on exercise of share based awards during the year 139.27] - (138.27) 2 o 2
Buy-hack of equity shares -] - - 1.6 1, 00H.000) (99840
Tax on buy-back of equity shares B {23259, [232.59)
Expenses for buy-back of equity shares (178 {12.78)
Final dividend paid (INR 2/~ per share for financial vear ended 31 March 2022) | -| - | (104 (60.04)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 15,522.50) B.45 256.55 1.60] 4,490.03] 20,279.13]

Gatn of INR 45.06 and INR. 3.06 on remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax) is recognised as a part of retained eamings for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 respectively

The accompanyving notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Acconntaniy
ICAl Firm Registration No, 101 248W/W- 100022

oW

Kanika Kohli

Partner

Membership No.: 511565
Place: Gurugram

Date: 28 April 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Direg
IndiaMART InterMESH Limited

o
{Mahaging
DINAGT9TR00

rateck Chandru
(Chief Financial Officer)

Place: Noida
Date: 28 April 2023




IndiaMART InterMESH Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended 31 March 2023
[Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax for the year

Adiusrments for;

Depreciation and amortisation expense 23
Interest, dividend and other income 20
Gain on de-recognition of Right-of-use assets 20
Provisions and liabilities no longer required written hack 20
Fair value gain on measurement, interest and income from sale of mutual funds, 20
exchange traded funds, bonds, deb . units of inv trust and al ive
investment funds

Fair value gain on measurement and sale of Investment in other entities 20
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 20
Fmance costs 22
Allowances for doubtful debts

Share-based payment expense 2]
Gain on sale of investment in Associales 20
Share of net loss of associates

Operating profit before working capital changes

Net changes in:

Trade receivables

Other financial assets

Other assets

Other financial liabilities

Trade payables

Contract liabilities

Provisions and other liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid (net)

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, other intangible assets and capital
advances

Purchase of current inv

Inter-corporate deposits placed with financials institutions

Redemption of inter-corporate deposits placed with financials institutions and body
corporates

Proceeds from sale of current investments

Interest and dividend received

Payment for acqusition (net of cash acquired)

Investment in bank deposits (includes earmarked balances with bank) (having
original maturity of more than three months)

Redemption of bank deposits

Investment in associates and other entities

Pi ds from sale of in in iates and other entities

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Repayment of lease liabilities

Imterest paid on lease liabilities n
Dividend paid

Expenses for buy-back of equity shares (Refer Note 12)

Tax on buy-back of equity shares (Refer Note 12)

Buy-back of equity shares (Refer Note 12)

Proceeds from issue of equity shares on exercise of share based awards

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 11

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1

=3

Summary of significant accounting policies

For the yvear ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

371278 3.004.43
31075 119.46
(32.22) (GO.ET)
4.71) (1.76)
[1.55) (7.30)
{908.20) (1.030.24)
(837.99) (1.72)
{2.86) (1.56)
BL51 54.02
0.18 0.72
265.66 102.73
{0.28) -
379.05 12249
1962.12 3,194.40
27.20 (1.51)
(3.47) (62.31)
@77 (5.20)
3113 1.62
72.89 2929
233276 180937
80.90 28.70
551276 4,994.36
(754.48) (971.22)
4,758.28 4,023.14
11.55 181
(172.03) (44.18)
(21,825.59) (27.543.20)
(52.12) (437.03)
448.95 721.60
22.060.84 27,623.65
535.68 174.55
(5,068.37) =
(1.56) (274.66)
371.29 37797
(724.13) (3.954.16)
275.69 -
(3.240.10) (3353.63)
(81.01) (71.02)
(47.10) (54.02)
(60.98) (455.05)
(12.78) -
(232.59) -
(1,000.00) -
187 488
(1,432.59) (375.21)
85.59 94.28
19547 401,19
581.06 49547

lidated financial

The accompanying notes are an i | part of the consc
As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

oW

Kanika Kohli

Partner

Membership No.: 511565
Place: Gurugram

Date: 28 April 2023

For and on behalf of the Board g

(Managing Qipfetor and CEQ)

DIN:00191800

Prateek Chandra

Lot

(Chief Financial Officer)

Place: Noida
Date: 28 April 2023

Directors af




IndiaMART Intermesh Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Corporate Information

IndiaMART Intermesh Limited (“the Company™ or “the Parent Company™) is a public company domiciled in India
and was incorporated on 13 September 1999 under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The
equity shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India. The Company
and its consolidated subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Group™) is an e-marketplace for
business needs, which acts as an interactive hub for domestic and international buyers and suppliers. The registered
office of the Company is located at 1st Floor, 29-Daryagang, Netaji Subash Marg New Delhi-110002, India.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by Board
of Directors on 28 April 2023.

Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis as explained in the
accounting policies below, except for the following:

e certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value where Ind AS requires a different accounting
treatment (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments);

e  share-based payments

e net defined benefit (asset)/liability - Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit
obligations.

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates
and judgements. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas where estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements. or areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, are disclosed in Note 3.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates as at 31 March 2023. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed. or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

» Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee)

e  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

s The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally. there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other
voting rights holders

* = @ =




IndiaMART Intermesh Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Group subsidiaries and associates are as follows:

Proportion of

Proportion of

2022)

S. Name of Subsidiaries and Associates and date of § o ;e
No: .| hareholdiiy ownership interest ownership interest as
: as at 31 March, 2023 | at 31 March 2022
(A) | Subsidiaries:
1 Tradezeal Online Private Limited (from 31 May 100.00% 100.00%
2005) (formerly Known as Tradezeal International
Private Limited)
2 Hello Trade Online Private Limited (from 03 July 100.00% 100.00%
2008)
3 Busy Infotech Private Limited (from 06 April 2022) 100.00% -
4 Livekeeping technologies Private Limited (Formerly 51.01% -
known as Finlite Technologies Private Limited)
(from 23 May 2022)
5 Pay With IndiaMART Private Limited (from 07 100.00% 100.00%
February 2017)
6 Tolexo Online Private Limited (from 28 May 2014) 100.00% 100.00%
(B) | Associates:
7 Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited (from 03 27.45% 27.00%
September 2019) (on Fully diluted (on Fully diluted
basis) basis)
8 Truckhall Private Limited (from 05 June 2021) 25.02% 25.02%
(on Fully diluted (on Fully diluted
basis) basis)-
9 Shipway Technologies Private Limited (from 29 26.00% 26.00%
April 2021) (on Fully diluted (on Fully diluted
basis) basis)-
10 | Agillos E-Commerce Private Limited (from 13 26.23% 26.23%
August 2021) (on Fully diluted (on Fully diluted
basis) basis)-
11 Edgewise Technologies Private Limited (from 04 26.01% 26.01%
February 2022) (on Fully diluted (on Fully diluted
basis) basis)-
12 IB Monotaro Private Limited (from 03 March 2022) 26.00% 26.00%
(on Fully diluted (on Fully diluted
basis) basis)
13 Ten Times Online Private Limited (ceased with - 30.00%
effect from 16 March 2023)
14 | Mobisy Technologies Private Limited (from 03 25.01% 15.98%
November 2022)
15 | Adansa Solutions Private Limited (from 06 April 26.01% -




IndiaMART Intermesh Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amounts in INR millions. unless otherwise stated)

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year/quarter are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. [f a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the
consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date
as that of the parent company. i.e.. year ended on 31 March 2023 since the Group's subsidiaries and associate have
the same reporting period end.

Consolidation procedure:

a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of
its subsidiaries. For this purpose. income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the
assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion
of equity of each subsidiary.

c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are
recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate
an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes
applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup
transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests. if any. even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

e Derecognises the assets (including goodwill, if any) and liabilities of the subsidiary

e Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

»  Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity
Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

e  Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

e  Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

e  Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting policies, as set out in the following paragraphs of this note, have been consistently applied. by all
the group entities, to all the periods presented in these consolidated financial statements except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change
in the accounting policy.




IndiaMART Intermesh Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

a) Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 have been prepared in accordance with
the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS™) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013
(“the Act”) (as amended from time to time).

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest INR million as
per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated.

b) Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is
classified as current when it is:

(i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

(i1) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

(iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv) A cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

(i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

(iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period.
The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing/servicing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

¢) Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as Investment in equity/preference/debt instrument of other
entities, Investment in mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment
funds and investment trust at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value. maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety:

(1) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

(ii) Level 2 — inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly: and

(iii) Level 3— Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting Group's assumptions about pricing

by market participants

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on fair value on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

The Group’s management determines the policies and procedures for recurring fair value measurement, such as
investment in optionally convertible cumulative redeemable preference instruments (OCRPS), investment in
compulsory convertible debentures (CCD), investment in equity/preference/debt instruments of other entities,
investment in mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures. units of investment trust and units of
alternative investment funds measured at fair value.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as unquoted investments in
equity/preference/ debt instruments of other entities. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by
the management. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The management decides, after discussions with the Group's external valuers, which
valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management
verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation
to contracts and other relevant documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above. This note summarises the accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given
in the relevant notes.

e  Disclosures for significant estimates and assumptions (Note 3) )
e Disclosures for valuation methods and quantitative disclosure of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note
29)

d) Revenue from contracts with customers and other income
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group is primarily engaged in providing web related services and accounting software services. Revenue
from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the services is transferred to the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services and
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from
contracts with customers are provided in Note 3.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.
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Rendering of services

Revenue from web services is recognised based on output method i.e. pro-rata over the period of the contract as
and when the Group satisfies performance obligations by transferring the promised services to its customers.
Revenues from lead based services is recognised based on output method i.e. as and when leads are consumed by
the customer or on the expiry of contract whichever is earlier. Activation revenue is amortised over the estimated
customer relationship period.

Revenue from term license software for accounting software services is recognized at a point in time when control
is transferred to the end user. Control is transferred when the end user activates the license procured from the
Company. In case of renewals of proprietary term licenses with existing customers, revenue from term license is
recognized at a point in time when the renewal is activated by the end user. Revenue from support and subscription
(S&S) is recognized over the contract term on a straight-line basis as the Company is providing a service of
standing ready to provide support, when-and-if needed, and is providing unspecified software upgrades on a when-
and-if available basis over the confract term. In case softwares are bundled with support and subscription for term
based license, such support and subscription contracts are generally priced as a percentage of the net fees paid by
the customer to purchase the license and are generally recognized as revenues rateably over the contractual period
that the support services are provided.

Revenue from sale of services is based on the price agreed with the customers, net of discounts.

Advertising revenue is derived from displaying web based banner ads and sale of online advertisements. Revenue
from banner advertisement is recognised pro rata over the period of display of advertisement as per contract.
Revenue from sale of online advertisements is recognised based on output method and the Group applies the
practical expedient to recognize advertising revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to invoice.

Contract balances
Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in
section o) Financial instruments.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before
the Group transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised. The Group recognises contract
liability for consideration received in respect of unsatisfied performance obligations and reports these amounts as
deferred revenue and advances from customers in the balance sheet. The unaccrued amounts are not recognised
as revenue till all related performance obligations are fulfilled. The Group generally receives transaction price in
advance for contracts with customers that run up for more than one year. The transaction price received in advance
does not have any significant financing component as the difference between the promised consideration and the
cash selling price of the service arises for reasons other than the provision of finance.

Other income
Interest income

For all financial assets measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset
or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating EIR, the Group estimates the expected cash flows
by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.
Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.
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Dividends

Dividend is recognised when the Group's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when
shareholders approve the dividend.

e) Business combinations, goodwill and Intangibles

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is the aggregate
of the consideration transferred which is measured at fair value at the acquisition date and the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination. the Group measures the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree at fair value. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred. Any contingent
consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as financial liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognized for non-controlling interest, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the excess is recognized as capital reserve after reassessing the fair values of the net
assets.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are measured at their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is tested annually on 31 March, for impairment, or sooner whenever there is an indication that goodwill
may be impaired, relying on a number of factors including operating results, business plans and future cash flows.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the Group’s
cash generating units (CGU) expected to benefit from the synergies arising from the business combination. A
CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or group of assets.

Impairment occurs when the carrying amount of a CGU including the goodwill, exceeds the estimated recoverable
amount of the CGU. The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value-
in-use. Value-in-use is the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the CGU. Total
impairment loss of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carryving amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU and
then to the other assets of the CGU, pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. An
impairment loss on goodwill recognized in the statement of profit and loss is not reversed in the subsequent period.

f) Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress and property. plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the plant and equipment
and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately
based on their specific useful lives.

Capital work in progress includes cost of property. plant and equipment under development as at the balance sheet
date.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is
classified as capital advances and cost of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under
capital work- in- progress.

The Group has adopted component accounting as required under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, The
Group identifies the components separately, if it has useful life different from the respective property, plant and
equipment.
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Based on the analysis, Group believes that it does not have any asset having useful life of its major components
different from the property, plant and equipment, hence Group believes that there is no material impact on the
financial statement of the Group due to component accounting.

Depreciation is calculated on a written down value basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives
prescribed under Schedule 1l to Companies Act, 2013. The Group has used the following rates to provide
depreciation on its Property, plant and equipment:

| Asset Annual rates
Computers 63.16%
Furniture and fittings 26.89%
Office equipment 45.07%
Vehicles 31.23%

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property. plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is
classified as capital advances and cost of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under
capital work- in- progress.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).
Internally generated intangibles. excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospective basis

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Unique telephone numbers are amortised on a written down value basis at 40% annually.

Intangibles being Software acquired by the Group are amortised as follows:
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Entity Method Rate (p.a.)
Indiamart  Intermesh  Limited | Straight line method 20%
(Identified intangibles acquired
under business combination)

Indiamart  Intermesh  Limited | Written down value 40%
(other intangibles)

Tolexo Online Private Limited Written down value 40%
Busy Infotech Private Limited Straight Line 33.33%
Livekeeping Technologies Private | Written down value 63.16%
Limited

Advances paid towards the acquisition of intangible assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are classified as
capital advances and cost of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date, are disclosed under capital work-
in-progress.

h) Leases

The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Group assesses whether a contract
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is. or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the group assesses whether: (1) the contact
involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset through the period of the lease and (3) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. At the date of
commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability
for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term
leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Leases for which the group is a lessor
is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases. When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the
sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease. For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised. The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are
evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value
less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate
cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. The lease liability is initially measured
at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the
country of domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related
right of use asset if the Group changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination
option. Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments
have been classified as financing cash flows.

Finance leases were capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments were apportioned
between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
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remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges were recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

A ROU asset was depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there was no reasonable certainty that
the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset was depreciated over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

i) Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or, a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale,
in which case it is accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 105.

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated balance sheet at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. Distributions received from an associate reduce the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment.

After application of the equity method of accounting, the Group determines whether there is any objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the net
investment in an associate and that event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows from the net
investment that can be reliably estimated. If there exists such ohjective evidence of impairment, then it is necessary
to recognise impairment loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary. the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with Ind AS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with Ind AS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU)
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Group’s CGUSs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
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calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered
by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which
the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment. depreciation is provided
on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or
CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.
The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

k) Taxes

Current Income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income (loss) or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OC] or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences. and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

o  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income (loss) or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Sales/ value added taxes/ Service tax/ Goods and service tax (GST) paid on acquisition of assets or on
incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes/ GST paid, except:

e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority,
in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item, as applicable

e When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

1) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event. it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or
all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as
a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a
present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot
be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the consolidated financial
statements.

m) Retirement and other employee benefits
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Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented under other current financial liabilities in the balance
sheet.

Post-employment obligations

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable
to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is
recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment
or a cash refund.

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees i.e. gratuity. The cost of providing benefits
under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability). are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with
a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they ocecur.
Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of®

e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e  The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss:

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
non-routine settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects
to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting period-end. Actuarial gain/loss are immediately
taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Group presents the entire leave as a current
liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months
after the reporting date.

n) Share-based payments

Employees of the Group also receive remuneration in the form of stock options (ESOP) and stock appreciation
rights (SAR) as a share based payment transactions under the Group’s Employee stock option plan and Employee
stock benefit scheme. Both of these are equity settled share based payment transactions.
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The cost of equity settled transactions is determined based on fair value at the date when the grant is made using
an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised. together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment reserves (SBP) in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity settled transaction at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the
movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in
employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service
conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition. the transactions are treated
as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the
terms not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the
counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

o) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subseguent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Debt instruments at amortised cost

® Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

e  Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
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a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income
in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally
applies to loans to employees. trade and other receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 29.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCl). However, the Group
recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and
loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the
equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income
using the EIR method.

Debt instrument and equity instruments at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred to as *accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments and equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when:

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through” arrangement:
and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost e.g.. loans, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balance

b. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

The Group follows ‘simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables or
contract revenue receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.
When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

¢ All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment. extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However. in rare cases when the expected life
of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably. then the entity is required to use the remaining
contractual term of the financial instrument

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in
the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The
balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

o Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables:
ECL is presented as an allowance. i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group
does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

e Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance
sheet, i.e. as a liability.

e Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value,
impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as
‘accumulated impairment amount’ in OCL.
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For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines financial instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, security deposits and other payables.

Subseguent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through Profit or Loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/
losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

p) Foreign currency transactions

The Group’s financial statements are presented in INR which is also the Group's functional currency.
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Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at its functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate
if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

q) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to
the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting
year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as
bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

s) Segment reporting

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is
available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, in deciding how to allocate resources
and assessing performance.

Pursuant to acquisition of Busy Infotech Private Limited and Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited (Formerly
known as Finlite Technologies Private Limited) during the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group has identified
two business segments namely "Web and related Services" and "Accounting Software Services" as reportable
segments based on the nature of the products. the risks and returns, the organization structure and the internal
financial reporting systems.

Web and related services are business-to-business e-marketplace services which act as an interactive hub for
domestic and international buyers and suppliers. Accounting software services include business of development,
system analysis, designing and marketing of integrated business accounting software to help and manage
businesses with increased efficiency.

The accounting principles used in the preparation of the financial statements are consistently applied to record
revenue and expenditure in individual segments and are as set out in Note 2 on significant accounting policies.

The accounting policies in relation to segment accounting are as under:

(a) Segment revenue and expenses
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Segment revenue is directly attributable to the segment and segment expenses have been allocated to various
segments on the basis of specific identification. However, segment revenue does not include other income.

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

Assets and liabilities directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable segment.

t) Share Capital

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

u) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the Group, on or hefore the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting
period.

v) Adoption of new accounting principles

Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract (amendment to Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets)

The amendment clarified that the *costs of fulfilling a contract’ comprise both the incremental costs and allocation
of other direct costs. The Company has adopted this amendment effective 1 April 2022 and the adoption did not
have any material impact on its financial statements.

. Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based
on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities in future periods. Therefore, actual results could differ from these estimates.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. The Group has based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond
the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a) Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. In assessing the probability, the Group considers whether
the entity has sufficient taxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, which will result in taxable amounts against which the unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised
before they expire. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised. based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.
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The Group has recognised deferred tax assets on the deductible temporary differences since the management is of
the view that it is probable the deferred tax assets will be recoverable using the estimated future taxable income
based on the approved business plans and budgets.

b) Share based payment

The Group initially measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using a Black-Scholes-
Merton option pricing model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-
based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent
on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs
to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option and SAR units, volatility and dividend yield
and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based
payment transactions are disclosed in Note 28.

¢) Impairment of Non- financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets
or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based
on a DCF model or other fair value valuation models. In DCF model, the cash flows are derived from the budget
for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable
amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and
the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

d) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefit)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with
the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at
intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases, and gratuity increases are based on expected
future inflation rates, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the
employment market.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 27.
e) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 29 and 31 for further
disclosures.
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f) Useful life of assets considered for depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful
life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Group's assets are
determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at each financial year end.

g) Leases

The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification
of a lease requires significant judgment. The Group uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term
(including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by
an oplion to terminate the lease if the Group is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a
lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise
the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Group revises the lease term
if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for
a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Recently issued accounting pronouncements

On 31 March 2023, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules. 2023 effective from 1 April 2023. Following are the key amended provisions which may have
an impact on the financial statements of the Company:

Disclosure of accounting policies (amendments to Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements)

The amendments intend to assist in deciding which accounting policies to disclose in the financial statements. The
amendments to Ind AS 1 require entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies. The amendments provide guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial
statements.

Definition of accounting estimate (amendments to Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors)

The amendments distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates, The definition of a change in
accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition,
accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty™.
Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured
in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction (amendments to Ind AS 12 -
Income taxes)

The amendments specify how to account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases. The amendments clarify
that lease transactions give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences and financial statements should
reflect the future tax impacts of these transactions through recognizing deferred tax. The Company is evaluating
the impact of this amendment, if any, in its financial statements.

Other amendments included in the notification do not have any significant impact on the financial statements.
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5A  Property, plant and equipment

Gross earrying amount
As at 01 April 2021

Additions for the year
Disposals for the year
As at 31 March 2022

Acquistions through business combinations (refer note
34)

Additions for the vear

Disposals for the year

As at 31 March 2023

Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2021

Charge for the vear
Disposals during the year
As at 31 March 2022

Charge for the year
Disposals during the year
As at 31 March 2023

Net Carrying value
As at 01 April 2021
Asat 31 March 2022
As at 31 March 2023

Nete:

Computers Office Furniture and Motor vehicles Total Property, Capital work in
equipments fixtures plant and progress
equipment (Refer Note
helow)
113.02 49.09 4.03 3.80 169.94 1.77
20.28 0.14 - - 2042 -
117.72) (0.55) = (0.02) (18.29) d
115.58 48.68 4.03 3.78 172.07 1.77
1.73 1.29 161 442 9.05
184.22 3.79 0.59 7.18 195.77 ]
(10.01) (3.82) (2.11) (8.11) (24.05) -
291.52 49.94 4.12 7.27 352.85 177
103.79 38.29 2.96 2.59 147.63 -
6.31 4.87 0.30 0.38 11.86 .
(17.59) (0.43) - (0.02) (18.04) -
92.51 42.73 3.6 1.95 141,45 -
92.60 3.39 0.44 2.01 08.44 3
(9.08) (2.66) (0.65) (2.96) (15.35) -
176.03 43.46 .05 .00 124.54 -
9.23 10.80 1.07 1.21 131 I.E
23.07 595 0.77 0.83 30.62 1.77
115.49 6.48 1.07 527 128.31 .77

1. Capital work in progress represents the amount incurred on construction of boundary wall for leasehold land, the project has been temporarily suspended as the Company is in process of

evaluating the construction plan and also in the process of planning to seek further extension for construction on leasehold tand (refer note 3B for details related to leasehold land),




IndiaMART InterMESH Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{ Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

5B Right-of-use asset
Leasehold land Buildings Total
(Refer Note 1 below)

Gross carrying amount

As at 01 April 2021 37.12 834.55 871.67
Additions for the year - 20.25 20.25
Disposals for the year - (20.20) (20.20)
As at 31 March 2022 37.12 834.60 871.72
Acquistions through business combinations (refer note 34) - 2.79 2.79
Measurement periad adjustments (refer note 34) - {0.07) (0.07)
Additions for the year - 30.05 30.05
Disposals for the year (refer note 2 below) - (79.41) {79.41)
As at 31 March 2023 37.12 787.96 825.08

Accumulated depreciation

As at 01 April 2021 2.30 243.72 246,02
Depreciation for the year 0.46 106.00 106.46
Disposals for the year - (9.19) (9.19)
As at 31 March 2022 2.76 340.53 343.29
Depreciation for the vear 0.46 100.22 100.68
Disposals for the year - (31.51) (31.51)
As at 31 March 2023 322 409.24 412.46
Net Carrying value

As at 01 April 2021 34.82 590.83 625.65
As at 31 March 2022 34.36 494.07 528.43
As at 31 March 2023 33.90 378.72 412.62

1. As per the terms of the lease arrangement, the Company was required to complete the construction of building within a defined time from the date of handing over the
possession. The Company had obtained extension for construction of building on the leasehold land till 5 July 2021. The project has been temporarily suspended as the
Company is in the process of evaluating the construction plan and is also in the process of planning to seek further extension for construction on the leaschold land.

2. Disposal includes adjustment on account of lease modifications

3. The Group incurred INR 30.14 for the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: INR 3.68) respectively, towards expenses relating to short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets.

The following table presents a maturity analysis of expected undiscounted eash flows for lease liabilities as at vear end:

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Within one year 129.34 131.90
Within one - two years 121.57 134.05
Within two - three years 106.29 122.47
Within three - five years 210.48 224.40
Above five years 6.62 122.01
Total lease payments 574.30 734.83
The reconciliation of lease Habilities is as follows:

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Opening balance 562.80 634.24
Additions 28.56 19.33
Addition due to business combination 318 -
Amounts recognized in statement of profit and loss as interest expense 47.10 54.02
Payment of lease liabilities (128.11) (124.85)
Derecognition (28.01) (12.78)
Adjustment for lease modifications (25.11) -
Liabilities no longer required written back (1.33) (7.16)
Balance as at vear end (Refer Note 15) 459.08 562.80
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6A

Goodwill
As at 31 March 2023

Acquistions through business combinations 4.542.72

The following table presents the changes in the carrying value of goodwill based on identified CGUS, for the year ended 31 March 2023:

Busy Infotech Livekeeping Technologies Total

Private Limited Private Limited
Opening balance as at 1 April 2022 = . 2
Acquisitions through business combination (refer note 34) 4,137.71 419.92 4,557.63
Measurement period adjustments (refer note 34) (15.37) 0.46 (14.91)
Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 4,122.34 420.38 4,542.72

The Group tests goodwill for impairment on March 31, or more frequently when there is indication for impairment. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill is allocated to a CGU representing the lowest level within the Group at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes, and which is not higher than the Group's operating segment.

The recoverable amount of the CGU was based on its value in use and was determined by discounting the future cash flows to be generated from the
continuing use of the CGL. These calculations use cash flow projections over a period of five to eight years and then on perpetuity on the basis of
certain assumptions which include revenue growth, eamings before interest and taxes, taxes, capital outflow and working capital requirement, based
on next year financial budgets approved by the management, with extrapolation for the remaining period. Future cash flows are discounted with
"Weighted Average Cost of Capital”, The key assumptions are as follows:

Particulars Busy Infotech Livekeeping Technologies
Private Limited Private Limited
Discount rate (pre tax) (%) 25.9T% 19.61%
Revenue growth rate range (%) 15.00% - 59.40% 29.60% - 571.60%
Terminal value growth rate (%) 4.00% 4.00%

The above discount rate is based on the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) of a comparable market participant, which is adjusted for
specific risks. These estimates are likely to differ from future actual results of operations and cash flows.

Based on the above, no impairment was identified as of 31 March 2023 as the recoverable value of the CGUs exceeded the carrying value, With
regard to the assessment of value-in use for Busy Infotech Private Limited, no reasonably possible change in any of the above key assumptions would
cause the carrying amount of this CGU to exceed its recoverable amount.

For Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited, the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount by approximately 7.9% as of 31 March 2023. An
increase of 1.0% in pre-tax discount rate or a decrease of revenue growth by 1.5% shall equate the recoverable amount with the carrying amount of
the Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited.
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6B Other Intangible assets

Gross carrying amount

Asat 01 April 2021
Additions
As at 31 March 2022

(refer note 34}

Acquistions through b
Additions
As at 31 March 2023

Accumulated amortization

As at 01 April 2021

Amortisation for the year

As at 31 March 2022

Amortisation for the vear

As at 31 March 2023

Net Carrying value
As at 01 April 2021
As at 31 March 2022
As at 31 March 2023

I
Software etkqecLEle plibe Technology Channel Network Total
numbers
15.05 470 - - 19.75
0.02 - 0oz
1507 370 = A 19.77
0.77 191.08 36562 55747
1584 370 19108 36562 774
1270 434 - . 17.04
0.99 0.15 : : 114
13.69 149 - . 18,18
0.78 0.0% 37.64 7312 11163
14.47 458 3764 7.2 12981
335 036 - = 201
1.38 0.21 5 = 1.59
1.7 0.12 15344 30250 7.0
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7 Investment in associstes- Unigooted

Asal Asal
31 March 2013 31 March 2022
{Accounted under equity method) No. of nnits Amuunt No. of units Ammunt
Fully paid wp - at cost
Investments in Simply Vyvapar Apps Private Limited
Compulisry conyertible preforence shures of INR 10 each (pt premiu of INR 5221790 eac) 5954 31sn 5954 S0
Equity sharus of INE 10 each {at prosumm of INR 52307 96 cach) 1 052 1 52
Cimmpatlony comvertible prefironce shares of INR 100 gach (w1 premium of INR 290,261 gich) 1,810 525,26 (R S2526
Eguity shures of INR [0 cach {2l premium of INR 203,242 cach) 444 W24 444 k.24
Equity shures of INR 10 cach (ot premim of INR 290,351 encly) frefir note | bedow ) 117 39 TH GRT 3 % - Y752
Less: Shire of loss of associate {312 68) [IETRTH
I in Muobisy Private Limited
Compulsory converible prelenmce shasis of INR. 1 gach {ai promitm of INR 776 aach) 128,593 9992
Euquity shares of INR. 1 e gt premium of INE 7760 axeh) ({11} T -
Compulsory convertihle priferace sluns of INR | each (an pramium of INR 836 sich) 114474 o = -
Compulsory comvertible prefirence shares of INR | ech (a1 promium of INR | 222~ ech (Refor Nute 2 1056017 12930 =
b ) >
Eyquity shures o TRR | wich {al premauns of INR 837 @ich) 17.750 1486 -
Equity shares of TN | aich at premium of INR 1222 ach) (Relir Note 2 below ) 17963 2148 R
Fair value gain recogmsed through profin asd boss 6l the date ontmry bas bocome an associate (Refor mog 2
bukow ) K7
Adkl Share of Joss nf associne (9.54) B
Investments in Ten Tines Online Private Limited
Exquity shares of INR 10 aich (it premim of INR 40 asch) 1870 0.93 18T L
Sale of eyurty shares of INR 10 axch (INR 64.7024) (Reler note 3 below ) (18700 (1.2 B
Giait o sialie ol linvestment during the year . 024 - 2 093
Lasie Shuares of Iogs ol assoctine - 14493}
Investments in Trackhall Private Limited
Compulsory comvertible preforence shares of TNR 1 each (an premism of INR 7,467 cach) 12.R46 9605 12846 S6.05
Exquity shres of INR 10 cacds (an promium of INR 7,467 each) 1879 14.05 110 1879 14018 IR
Lesiw: Share of loss ol ssaocite (30.74) (9.42)
I Shipway T gy Private Limited
Compulsory convertible prefirence shares, of INR 10 cach (st promiam of TNR 43,446 vach) 4,8 17765 40K 177,65
Euquity shares of INR 11 cach (af promioum of INR 43,446 cach) {[E] 433 TR2 00y 1M} 415 182,00
Less: Shure of loss of associare (17.5%) 1622}
in Agillos E-C Private Limited
Comgpulsory convertible prelerence shares of INR 10 cach {at premom of TNR 61,311 cach) 2694 162.50 2604 162,50
Equity shares of INR 10 ench (i promdum of INR 43,497 cich) 2,241 97.50 260,00 2,241 9750 e )
Lesis: Share of oss of associate {24.38) {5:11)
in Private Limited
Compulsory Convertible Preforence Shares of INE 10 cach (@t premium of INR 27,714 cach) 4784 13072 4,784 13072
Equity Shires of INR 10 each (s premium of INR 27,314 exch) 10 27 13345 i 273 123.45
Less: Share of loss of nssociate {1195 i)
Investments in IB Monotaro Private Limited
Equity shares of INE 10 each (at premmm of INE1.274.15 each) Bi1250 1.041.77 14177 ¥LL250 144197 104177
Less: Share of loss of associate (126 18) 417
Invesiments in Adansa Sclutions Private Limited
Equity shures of INE. 1000 each (at promium of INR 10,28.411.76 each) | Relor Note 4 below) 20 20460
Compulsiry Convertible Preference shires of INR 10 each (o presoun of TRR 14,696 cach) { Ruder Mote
4 below) 75950 1 16.90 137.50 - . -
Less: Shuwe 0 Iogs of associate [RERC -
LTS1AR 24027
Notes:
1 Durang e year ended 21 March 2023, the Group hiss furher invested mip the shars) of Simply Vigpar Apps Private Limited, thesehy increasiog the equity swnerstup oo fully convertal and diluted basis o 27 45% fron 27 (0%
2. During the vear ended 31 March 2023, the Group has fiunther myested into the shares of Mobisy Technologies Private Lintited, thercby increasing the equity bip o fully il dilued i 40 25 08% Mobisy Technologies Private Limied bas become an

assoctte of the Company with effoct from U3 Novenber 2022 s fir value bias been recorded till the date it has become an associse.
3. During the vear enched 31 March 2023, the Group his sokd the cntire stake m Ten Times Onlme Private Liited dated 16 March 2023 and conseguntly, the entity has ceased to be an assocrte.

4. Duaring the year ciched 31 March 2023, the Group lins acguired 26.01% stake in Adansa Sohitions Privaie Limited by investing INR 137 50, Considering the gy el board rep rights of the group. this investment wis classificd an
assnCiate.
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Nodes to O Financial & for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Anwnts i INR oilfive, unloss itherwise stated)

#  Financial assets

Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
i) Investments
Noa-current
i} Investment fn ather aiities at FYTPL 221082 L7905
(g it ol i  FVTPL 13500 =
236552 1718405
Current
Investment i mutual funds snd exchange wadod fnds st FVTPL 1173659 15,744 84
Ievestaen i bonds and debenmres m FVTPL 11,447 55 6H.832.57
I ity i Trust- Questeal | I at FYTPL) AR4 10 31163
Divesments i Alermitive imvestinent fuuds ol FVTPL - 102 61
12.718.33 EMT.&‘
Asal Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 1022
a) Non-current investments No. of units Amount Nu. of units Amount
(1) Investment in athers entities
Unguoted fmeasured ar FVTPL
Instant Procurement Services Private Limired
Exuity shares held of INR 10 uudl i pﬂ!‘mum Ol INR #99 gach) A5l - 5,500
l'I !!I!‘}- il Ty il sharc of INR 10 cach 1 b (0001 % - - 12446 -
) hil u_.anNR 100 each)
u 1% Compulsarily convertibhe preference share of INR 10 gach 16,200 - 1764 -
Eqqueity shares sold during the year (Refir Note 5 bdow) (5500 (137.17) (3 & £
Fur vahne piin om measurcment and meome from sale of lnvestmion during the year 234 =
l\!dﬂ!; ‘I'edmnlnﬁﬂ Private Limited
G i shares of INR | each (at premium of INR T76 cach) (Refir noge 7) - - 128,593 99.92
Exquity shares of INR 1 exch (a1 premivm of INR 776 each) {Refer e T) - - 100 007
Compulsory converitble preferance shares of INR 1 each (a1 preambum of INR B34 ech) {Refer nole Ty - - 119,474 100,001
Eaquity shares of INR 1 cach {at promium of INR 837 each) {Refer note 7} - . 17,750 1446 21485
Fair valie gain recognised throagh profit amd loss during the year - 172
Legistify Services Private Limited
Compulsory convertible peefirence shares of TNR 10 cach {pf promium of INE 5,132 68 each) 1146 S84 1146 4
Compiadsory comvertible preforonce shares of INR 10 gach (o8 premiom of INR 400414 wch) 1,580 650 1580 .50
Compubsory comvertible prefrence shares of TNR 10 asch (ot premium of INR 38,1 2000 aach ) { Rofer Note 1290 F500 - -
3 balow)
Equity shares ol TNR 10 each (at prenmiuen of INR 5,132.68 @ich) 100 1.5 1
Compulsery convertible debentures of INR 1000 each - H7.940 5000 3%
Fair value gain recognised through profit and loss during the year T4.28
Mynd Selutions Privare Limited
Equity shares of INR 10 each (at premium of INR 87.21 each) 3,336,489 32454 3,336,489 32434
Compulsory convertible preforence shares of INR 10 each INR {at premium of TNE 144 32 each) (Refor 151656 240,68
Mire 4 below ) E
Sale of equity shares (Refer Note 4 hoow ) (BG1EST) (13731} 4277 = A24.34
Fabt vitlue gain on masuranant and neome from sabe of Investment durdng the wear 149,65
Zimyo Consulting Private Limited
Compulsory comvertible prefc shares of INR 11 each (at premium of INR 86.306.32.- each) LETO 161.41 LETO 16141
Eqguity shares o INR 10 gach (91 premivm of INR B6,306.12 - sach) 10 #A3 19004 ik B63 17004
Pkm Te&nnhﬁﬂb Prth Limited
shares of INR 10 each (ot pramium of INR 67.420- cach) 1A [ELEES 1323 G5 08
Eumu :I.wu of INR 10 m‘h {01 premibum of INE 57,315 each) AB0E 21812 1420 3808 21812 914.20
211052 171905
i1 in debt i of associate at FVTPL)
Investment in Truckhall Private Limited
Tnvvestment made in 00001 % Compulsory convertible debeniures of INR 1000 each in Truckhiall Privaie 75,000 7500 7500
Limdbet (Refior Note 2 below) o iy
In Maobisy T Private Limited
! in Compubsury e det ol INR. 1000 each in Mobisy Tecmologies Private
I (Rcer Note 6 ek} B0 AL RO -
155.00 -
1. The Group bas mvested in cquity, thic andh b debt of otler entities and associates, based on the terus of these mstruments they are messured 3 i valoe through profin ad ks
2. Durmg the vear ended 31 March 2023, the Group bis further imvested INR 75,00 in Truckbndl Povate Ennited m Compulsory Convertible Debentures
3. During the year endod 31 March 2023, the i in Compalsory itk of Legintly Services Privaie linned has boen iy |29 ihle preference shares of the Company for INE 58,130 per share as per the temis md conditions of
the agrecinond.
4. Puring the year ended 31 March 2023, the Compuany has sokd 561,852 equity shares for 159.32 - ench of Myod Solutions Private Linited smowmtiog i INE 137.31 ad i ' hased 15.10,656 C Isory bl i shires for 15932 - each
ammaning i INF 240068, quent 1o these tienis, the exguity ip on Rully convened and dilied hasis in Mynd Solutions Private Limited stands m 9 2% o
5. During the vear ended 31 March 2023, the Group has sold equity shares of Instam Procurement Services Private Linited of INR 137,17, Further the 12,446 OCRPS has been converted into 12,836 0,001 % C sy ihlk T share and 1)

equity shares, Subsegquont 1o these transactions, the equiry ownership on fully converted and diluied basts in Instint Procuremen! Senvees Private Limited stands at 19,52%
. During the year ended 31 March 2023, an 13 Feb 2022 the Group bas imvested TNR 80 in Compulsory bz D of Mobisy Technologies Private Linted.

CECD

) T
) Gurugram|-g

+
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Nates to C d Financial for the year ended 31 March 2023

Anmmts in INK mitlion, omiess otherwise stated)

H  Financial assets (Cont'd)

by Carrent investments -
Asal Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Tovestmend in wtial funds aod exehange rraded funds - Quoted fmeasured gt FVTPLY® Mo of ks Amasini N, o units Amount
Additya Birla Sun Life Shon Term Fud - - 5765 040 23371
Adlitva Birln Sun Life Corporate Bond Fusd - Regular Growth S 5075 26 SHT.00
Adhitva Birla Sun Life Corporaty Bomd Fusd 12,176,476 LI64.12 N1k 24,505 LA ES
Adlitva Barla Sun Life Overmight Rasd 4 wil 360605 4740
Adlitys Birla Sun Life Nifty SDL Apr 2027 lndex Fud ARSTY I8 EUTR ) - -
Adlitya Birla Sun Life CRISIL TBN AAA Jun 2027 Index Fusl FHR 305 4203 - -
At Comorate Dbt Fuml 12,200,532 24059 + =
Bharat Boml ETF April-2023 ATRLL 49163 IR 467 U4
Bharat Bonid ETF April- 2025 ITeea 423351 179,992 41148
Bharal Buml FOF Apeil 2023 5514867 o764 - -
Edtweiss Arhitrage Fund - . 43,664,568 Th74
Edvtwerss NIFTY PSL Bowd Phas SDL Apr 2026 50050 hadex: Fund 4T ATOANET 52857 AT ATHMT s a2
Edetweiss CRISIL IBX 5050 Gilh Fhus STAL Ape 2037 Tndbes Fanid 47754471 SIS - -
HDFC Shert Term Dbl Fus! L RET 281 5205920 13644
HDFC Short Tern Debt Fusd - Regular Growalh - - 693,662 1782
HDFC Low Duration Fuid 15,420,565 E10h37 24964570 1.243 14
HDFC Moncy Market Fund - - 257,73 1,199 6%
HDFC Uhra Short Term Fuaid - - 1,961,700 L25322
HOFC Corporate Hond Fund 473647 1311 KK - -
ICIC] Prodotinl Banking & PSU Dbt Fuml 412300 1136 -
I Prodonsial Corperaty Bond Fund - Growih a4 1660 * -
ICICT Prudonsinl Savings Fund LA74.07% 68195 FELAT [RGLER L]
ICICT Prudentinl Short Term Fund - - 14,101,244 TI980
ICICT Prohental Short Term Fuid - Regpulor Growth InNS2N 1827 k iy (ER.IT]
ICICT Prudential Equity Arbirage Fund S : 37.337,700 1093 64
FCICT Pracdential Corporate Bond Fund 21305368 S8 A0 - -
ICICT Prodential Niffy SDL. Due 2028 Indes Fund 48,219,177 ST = &
Bandhan Low Dwration Fund - - 15.216.251 484.79
Bandban Bond Fumd - Short Term Pla - - T 559 34330
Bundhan Banking & PSU Debt Fusd - Regular Growth 1,205,754 2519 = -
Kotak Corporate Bond Fuud 252.6%8 K27 00 198,665 62239
Kotak Nifty SDL Ape 2027 Top 12 Equal Weight Indes Fund 54,708,267 56720 = -
Kk Eguity Arhitrape Fund 15800642 3303 42749473 1.353.83
Kotk Niflty SDL Apr 2032 Top 12 Egual Weight hules Fund Q4 5112577 3R 3 .
Mippon Inchn Floating, Rete Fund - - 26.960.878_56 LiN7.62
Mippon India Dynamic Bond Fund 24540028 #2249 = N
SBI Nitty 50 ETF LASILINKE 264041 1,450,040 25958
SBI Corporate Bond Fund 4,542,601 01.54 - -
SBI Liquid Fund TI2T 25101 =
Adlitya Brrla Son Life Ligudd Fusid 165315 il 02 - -
SBl S&P BSE Semex ETF RO LA - -
SBI Nifty Index Fund 502,335 THES
SBI Magmum Constent Maturity Fond 9191798 306027 H 2
UTI Nifty 50 ETF 135,000 4937 = d
U'TT Ligguid Cash Plan 14.595 5385 - -
Total 11.736.59 1574484
Anvestmeent in bomdy and debewtures- Quoted (measured ar FVTPL)
Axls Bank Pernetual Bond - - 151 LT
Bajaj Finance homs! 20 197 48 200 w2
Canir Bank perperual bonid n i 1S n 202 46
Export Iuport Bank O India Bomd 200 19016 2011 200.14
HDFC bk Porpetual Bond 2 20559 4 a2M
HDFC Lt Bond 9 D02 80 6541 31,72
ICICT Bank infra Boal 1 a9 = =
Kotk Muhingdry Investment Ll Zono Coupon Bosd 2 18423 . =
Truiia Trffudebt Lid Bond 1 9402 100 100,72
TRFC Lid Porpetwal Bond 250 255.18 250 15597
1C1C] Hime Finanee Company Lid MLD 150 133 98 - -
LIC Heusing Finance Boox! 1,30 BA20L54 ' LICH 5i577
Mahingra & Mahindra Zer conpon bonds A1 21223 - =
NABARD Buond 1.750 1732 B8 1150 115817
Piramal Enterprises MLD 184 197 46 L1 18779
Pusijah Matsora) Bank Perpetual Bood n 100183 {[}] (V116,53
Power Girid Corporation of India Limited Bond A5 TLE4 53 T5.14
Power Fimanee Corporation Lid - Bood 558 57190 - -
REC Bond L 1,0M2.77 595 641 83
SBI Perpetual Bond 20 114185 50 51516
T:75% SBI Sepd 2027 5 5191 - =
Shriran Transpor Finance MLD (1111 11430 Lok 078l
Bank of Barods Papaual Bl - [1] 102,85 - =
State Bank of India Tier-11 Bond S0 490 53 S0 St 15
SIDBI Bond &5 62946 650 L5074
Tita Cleantech MLD 250 25497 - -
Union Bank Perpetunl Bond 15 15164 15 15111
Total MA97.55 683257
in I Trust- Quoted (m d at FVTPL)
P ergrid InwIT 3551961 4R419 2446,824 327.63
in i Sfunidy- (uoted fmeasired ar FVTPL)
ICICT Prugdential Lomg Shont Fuml - Series 1 . - H99.9350 1261
Total current investments 2171833 23.007.65
Ageregate book value of quoted investments 1171833 23765
Aggregate marker value of quoted invesiments 22,71833 1300765
Aggregate carrying valoe of unquated investments 136552 L719415

* Unless odherwise montond. all Mutyal Fund invesuments are under Direet Growths
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{ At i INR nllion, unless otherwise statal)

#

n

Financial asseis (Coni'd)
o) Loans (measured al amortised cost)
Asal
31 March 2023
(i) Loans
Non-current (unsecored, considered goad unless siaied otherwise)
Lovanns 1o coniplinns* L84
x4

Current (unsceured. considered good unless stated otherwise)
Inser-corporale dopisits® .
~Bajaj Finance Limitad 5212
LK Homsing: Foanee Lansinad -
Loniamrs oy emaplinps ** 436

5648
Tuotal koams 57.32
Notes:
* Inter-corporite depesits pliced with fancial sstautsons vick] ixel micrest rale
** Represen micrest froc b to anploy wiach are bl i 24 natathly I

As ut
31 March 2023
) Others (measured at amortised cost)
Nos-curreni (unsecured considered good unless siated otherwisc)

Seeunty deposits 40.73

Tatal 40.73

Current (unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)

Security dueposits TH

Amount recoverable from pavment gaioway 141 91

Other revevahle: ———rat
Total 149.62

Total other financial assets 4462

Notes:

Secunty deposits are non-imtorest bearing and are genorally on e of 3 10 9 years

Other assets
As at
31 March 2023

Non-current (unsecured, considered pood uniess stated atherwise)

Prepuaid expenses (]
Indlirect taxes recovernble 1461
Capital advane 2
Total

Current {Unsecored, considered good unless stated otherwise)

Advances recovenible a4l
Indirect tixes Tecoverable 1536
Propadd expeaiss I &
Others, 0.3

Total 55.93

Trade receivables
Asai

31 March 2023
Unsecured. considered good unless stated atherwise

Trade receivahls 6B 55
Reveivables from related partics (Refer Note 33) .00
Total 755
Nates:

a) Mo trade recorvahles are due from directors ar odver officers of the Group ether severally or jointdy with asy othey person
b) For terms and conitians relating to relatcd party receivables (Refer Note 33)
) Trade receivables are non-tnterest bearing and are gencrilly on serns of 300w 180 days

| Outstanding for following periods from duc date of payment | transaction Not Due Less than & Monihs- | year 1-1 years -3 years More than Total
& months 3 vears
31 March 2023
[0 ed. convidered
Trade receivables 3332 1677 iz 0.36] AL 70.55
31 March 2022
Undisputed, considered good
Trade recetvables - 1326 - - - - 13.26

Cash and bank balances
Asat
31 March 2023

a) Cash and cash equivalents

Chexuess on hand 23790
Balance with hank

= Oin cumrenl aocoutty Jp4s
- Depogits with griginal mamurity of eis than tree months 4171
Total Cash and cash equivalents SR106
Nake:

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash Bow statemem comprise cash and cash cquivalents gs shown ahove,
I} Bank halances other than cash and cash equivalents

{1) Dreposits with hanks

- renvinmE muturity upo twehve months o
{ii) Esrmarked balances with hanks* |66
Amount disclosed under current bank deposits T e

* Earmarkod halonoes inchide unclyiniod unpabd dividends of INR 013 {31 March 20220 INR 0.1 2y and hank halonee with Indiaman Empliyee Benefit Trosn of INR |53 (31 March 2022 INR 2.38),

Asat
31 March 2022

10.42
K2

Asat
31 March 2022

135

Asal
31 March 2022

1.3
15.9%
2374

As at
31 March 2022

1326

13.26

Asal
31 March 2022
20787
T o

..~

1M1
L50
L%
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Notos to O lidated Fi il St for the year eaded 31 March 2023
CAmonants i TNE millon, wiless otherwise sl

12 Share capital

ital (INK 16 b Number of shures Amguni
As at 0 April 2021 2.“ 60 99442
As at 31 March 2022 99,442,460 99442
EEN L= Ly &l
As at 31 March 2023 99442460 441
Number of shares Amoani
As at il April 2021 3 ﬂ.ﬂ
As at 31 March 2022 3 AW
As ot 31 March W23 3 1I.J'I'Ex
Number of shares Amount
As at 1 April 2021 036,294 3nxae
Equity shares bssuad on exercise of ESOP during the year TR0 2K
Equity shares issued fo Indiamarn Employee Benefit Trust duning the e (refir mole (d) belos ) 173, 04001 1.73
Equity shures issucd during the carlier year o Indimmant Esplovec Benetit Trost mnd transfirrad 1o emphwes panaant o SAR exercised dusing the p— .
yuar (refer note (d) bobow ) Al L4y
Equity shares issued during the year and held by Indiamar Employee Benefit Trist as at vear end (refer note (dy below) (11,5%4) (n.32)
As at 31 March 2022 30,552,090 30553
Equity shares issued 4o Indipmart Employee Bevefit Trust during this year (relor note (0} bobow ) AL 210
Equity shures issued during the earlier year 1 Indinman Employee Benefit Trast mod transfirad 1o employes pursuont 1o SAR exercised during the w 4
year (refer note {d) below) 11,584 012
Eguity shures yssuesd dummg the year and heddl by ndiamon Employee Benedit Trust &5 a1 year end (refer note (d) below ) {35353) {1L36)
Eguity shares extinguished on by hack during the year (refer mide | below | (LRI | LAt
As at 31 March 2023 30.579.221 305,79

Notes:

1 The Board of Direclors ot iis mecting beld oo April 28, 2622, approved a proposal 1o buy-back upto 160000 equity shares of the Company for an sggregate ainownt nol ewesding INR 100, being 0.52% of the total pad ap eguity share capatal o
6,250 por equity share, A Letier of Offir wies made 10 all eligible shareholders. The Company boughin back 160,000 cquity shares ot of the share that were iendered by eligible sharcholders and extinguishod the equity shares oo Jue 29, 2022
Caprtol redemphion reserve was cresed 0 the extent of share copital extmpmshed of INR 160, The excess oost of buy-back of INR 1,012,7% (mcluding TNR 12,78 wowards transaction cost of buy-back) over par vadue of share and correspoading
om buy-hack of TNR 232.5% were offset from rotamed earmings,

2 Utilisation of Qualified Instintions Placement ("Q 1P} funds
(i) During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company hod raised money by the way of QIP mnd alloed 1,242,212 equity shores of foce value INR 10 each 1o the eligible qualificd maiions) buyvers (QIB) a o price of INR K615 por eguity share
(inciuding a premium of INR 8,605 per aquity share) agpregstmg o INR 10, 70066 Millions on 22 Febrwary 2021, The e was made m accordumes SEBE (Lssue of Cogital and Disclosure Roguirements) Regulstions, 2005, a8 smended,
Expenses ingurred in relation w0 QIP smounting (0 INE 18967 hes been adjusted from Securities Promiwm Account which resuliad into the Q1P net proceads of INE 10,511,949
Dt of these proceeds, the Company hias utilised 1] 31 March 2003 TNE 10, 138,42 (31 March 2022 0 3,954, [Ty wwarids parposes specifiad i the placement document from the dae of QUP. The balanee amomnt of Qs nat proceeds remimn
nvested m lguild mstruments,

(i) Ot of the nmount utilised from Qs not proceeds o mentioned i 201) above, INR 95595 has boon utilised through Tradezeal Online Private lnutad, the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, detals of the same are grven below -

Asat Asal
Investment made through Tradezeal Online Private Limited 31 March 2123 1 March 2022
Truckhall Private Limited VB35, 10 T
Shipway Technology Privite Limited TR0k 182,001
Legistify Services Priviste Lumited R7.90 1790
Apilies E-Commerce Private Limited 260,00 260000
Edpewise Technologies Private Limited 13345
Adansa Solutions Private Limital -
Tatal 77345

Otler than s disclosed shove, no fimds have beon sdvanced or Ianed or imvetal (either from borowed funds or share premium or any ofher sources o kind of fimads) by the Group and its associes (0 or i any ofber person(s) or enminyties),
including forvign entities (Intermediaries) with the udersunding (whaber recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermodiory shall lend or invest in party idemified by or oo behalf of the Group and its associates (Ullimate
Beneliciaries). The Group and its assoctstes hivee ool recerved any finds from any partyis) (Funding Party) with the onderstanding that the Group and its associstes shall whether directly or indsroctly lend or invest m other persons or entities
identified by or o behall of the Group ond ity (Ultimate Benefleiarie) or provide any seeuriny or the like on behall of the ultimate bonefiviories,

a) Termys righis attached to equity shares:
1) The Company has only one chass of equrty shares having a par valwe of TNR 11 per share. Ench holder of equity 15 entifled to one vote per share,

2) In event of hyumdation of the Company, the holders of equity shires would be entitlad 1o recave remmning assets of the Company, sfior distribution of all prodi sy, The di will be i proy v e e of wquity
shares held by the sharcholders.
b) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company As wt Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Numbor Ya Holding Number % Holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully pald
Dingsh Agarwal §.590,559 2H.06% B.630.747 24.24%
Brijesh Agrawal 5521329 19.01% SRR 544 19.14%
Arismg Asia Fund Limited 336,49 542% 1,336,051 437%
Deetubls of shareholding of promoters

Asat As ot
31 March 2023 31 March 2622

Promoters Number %% Holding Number 4 Holding %% Change during
Dinesh Chandra Agurvwal 8,550,559 ET 25.24 10,18}
Beijesh Kumar Agrawal 5,421,320 1901 19.14 URE]
Pramoter Group
Chema Aparwal 154,479 (L50 155200 051 ony
Panksj Agarwal 150,299 .49 151K} 1149 -
Anand Kumar Agrawsl T, 023 0,0 023
Maoma Agarwal GBI n.23 G9.R00 .23
Dinesh Chandra Agarwal (HUF) 59,722 020 ] .20
Maresh Chandro Agrawal 11,208 13 40,200 13
Prakash Chandra Agrawal 40,014 13 40,200 013 =
Gunjan Agarwil 19,908 047 20000 007 -
Keshor Devi Agrawal 19,708 0416 19,500 006 -
Vijay Jatan 10,000 [URIE] 10,000 003
Maresh Chonsdra Agrawal (HUF) B954 un3 G000 03
Anand Kumar Agrawal (HUF} 5973 002 1,000 0.2
Prakash Chanilra Agrawal {HUF} 5973 a2 fi,000 2 -
Hamirwasia Business Trust 20K o0 200 0,00 R
Harmirwosis Fanuly Trust 200 i 20 1,10
Manparn Business Trust 100k i 1o fim -
Manpara Family Trust 1k .01 10 [{ACH -

Total 15.067.524 49.11 15.137.081 49.53
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12 Share capital (Cont'd)

©) Shares reserved for issue under options

Information relating 1o the Company’s share based payment plans. including details of oprions and SAR units issued, exercised and lapsed during the financial year. options and SAR units outstanding at the end of the vear, is set oul in nofe 28

d) Shares held by Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust against emplovees share based payment plans (face value: INR 10 each)

Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number Amouni Number Amount
DOpening balance 11,584 012 47434 048
Purchazed during the vear 210,000 110 73,000 173
Transfer to emplovees pursuant to SAR/ESOP exercised 1186.231) (1.86) (208,850} (2.04)
Closing balance 35353 0.36 [IEZN 0.12
13 Other equity
Asal Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Securitles premium 1552250 1538323
General reserve K45 %45
Emplovee share based payment reserve 25655 1316
Capital redemption reserve (] -
Retained earnings 449003 2891316
Total other equity 20,279.13 18,435.00

Nature and purpose of reserves and surplus:
#) Securities premium: The Securitics premium aceount is used to record the premium on issue of shares and is unilised in aceordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013,

b) General reserve: The General reserve is used from time 1o time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes, as the same is created by transfer from one component of equity (o anather.
¢} Employee share based payment reserve: The Employee share based payment reserve i used to recognise the compensation related to share based awards ssued to employees under Company's Share based pavment scheme,

d) Capital redemption reserve: The Capital redemption reserve is created when company purchases its own shares out of frec reserves or securities premium. A sum egual (o the nominal value of the shares so purchased is transferved (o capital
redemption reserve. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013

¢) Retained earnings: Retained earnings represent the amount of accumulated carnings of the Group, and re-measurement gains/losses on defined benefit plans.

14 Trade payables

As Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Payable 1o micro, small and medium enterprises L7
Other trade payables
- outstanding dues to others AL 308
Accrued expenses 267.93 179.59
Total 27218 183,57
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment | transaction Not due L“:‘:?" ! 1-2 years 2-3 years M;;:;::“ Total
31 March 2023
(1} MSME? - undisputed 107 = - - 1.07
(i} Others - undisputed 242 (.48 {126/ .02 - 318
Accrued expenses 267.93 - - - - 267.93
31 March 2022
{1} MSME® - undisputed - - - s - =
(i1} Others - andisputed - 1.47 128 - 1.23 ER)
Accrued expenses 17%.59 - - - - 179,59
* MSME as per the Micro, Small and Medwm Enterpnises Development Act, 2006,
15 Lease and other financial lisbilities
Asal Asat
31 March 2623 31 Mareh 2022
(a) Lease liabilities (Refer Note 5B)
Current 11880 101,41
Non-current 340,28 46234
459.08 562.80
——
{b) Other financial labilities
Non-current
Deferred Consideration { Refer Note 34) 55,68 2
Total 55 »
Current
Payable to employvees 2380 19295
Security deposits 78 -
Other pavable* 3182 101113
Total 270.61 203.00
i

*Includes unclaimed'unpaid dividend of INE (.13 (31 March 2022 INR .12} and Unspent CSR of INK : 12.16 (3] March 2022 : Nalj
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16

Provisions -

Non-current

Provision for employee benefits { Refer note 27)
Provision for gratuity
Provision for leave encashment

Total

Current
Pravision for emploves benefits (Refer note 273
Provision for gratuity
Provision for leave encashment
Provision-others®
Total

* Contingency provision towards indirect laxes. There is no change in this provision during the year ended 31 March 2023,

Contract and other liabilities

Contract liabilities*
Non-current
Deferred revenue

Current
Deferred revenue
Advances from customers

Total
Other liabilities- current

Statutory dues
Tax deducted at source payahle
GST payable
Others

Total

= Comtract habilities mclude consideration received in advance 10 render services in future periods. Refer Note 32 for outstanding balances pertaining to refated parties.

Income tax assets amd liabilities

Income tax assets (net of provisions)
Non carrent

Incomie tax assets

Less: Provision for income tax

Total Non Current Tax assets (net)

Current tax Rabilities
Current tax habilities

Asal
31 March 2023

Asal
31 March 2022

103,34 (LIRS
9302 6365

19640 230,60
e

3381 2334

K13 1156

15.38 153K

77.02 50.28

=
Asatl Asal

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

4.205.57 331620
4.205.57 331620
6.741.96 51080
67710 64338
7.419.06 5,754.18
11,624.63 9.070.38
53.20 ARy
297,05 250,20
16,54 754
367.09 190.93
Asat Asal

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1.699.9% LR49.81
(1,615.72) (1.615.84)
84.26 231.96
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19 Revenue from operations
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with customers:

For the vear ended

For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Sale of services
Income from weh services 9.220.14 75397.02
Income from accounting sofiware services 43373 -
Advertisement and marketing services 200,12 137.83
Total 9,853.99 7,534.85
Transaction price allocated 1o the remaining performance obligations
The performance obligation is satisfied after the services are rendered for which customers has paid.
The transaction price allocated to the ining perf ¢ obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) i.e. Contract habilities, as al March 31, are as follows:
As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Less than Muore than Less than Mare than
12 h 12 I 12 months 12 months
Web services TATLI2 413417 573375 3.306.73
Accounting software services 223.25 52.31 . -
Advertisement and marketing services 24.69 19.09 20.43 947
7.419.06 4,205.57 S754.18 3,316.20
No single customer represents |0% or more of the Company s total revenue during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Openng balance at the beginning of the year 9.070.38 7.261.01
Acqguisition through business combinations 24171 =
= period adj (19.48) -
Less: Revenue recognised from contract liability balance ar the beginning of the year {5.372.02) (4.254.99)
Add: Amount received billed from c during the year 12,186.12 G,34422
Less: R recognised from billed during the year (4.482.08) (3.279.86)
Closing balance at the end of the year 11,624.63 9,070.38
For the vear ended For the vear ended
20 Other income 31 March 2013 31 March 2022
Fair value gain/{loss) on measurement and mcome from sale of financial assets
-Farr value gain'(loss) (net) on measurement, interest and income from sale of mutual funds, 908.20 1,630.24
exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment funds and mvestment
trast
-Fair value gain on measurement and income from sale of Investment in other entities 837.99 772
Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost
- on bank deposits 9.77 15.56
- on corporate deposits and loans 9.00 39.86
- on security deposits 299 245
Other mterest income 6.20 1011
Dividend Income 10.46 2.59
Gain on sale of mvestment in Associates 0.28 -
Ciain on de-recognition of Right-of-use assels 4.71 1.76
Provisions and liabilities no longer required written hack 477 7.30
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property. plant and equipment 2.86 1.56
Miscellaneous income 8.03 239
Total 1.805.26 1,121.94
For the year ended For the year ended
21 Employee benefits expense 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries. allowance and bonus 3.764.97 247045
Gratuity expense (refer note 27} 75.73 6245
Leave encashment expense (refer note 27) 60.65 6.77
Contribution to provident and other funds 53.35 27.50
Employee share based payment expense (refer note 28) 265.66 102.73
Staff welfare expenses 26.79 5.62
Total 424735 267552
For the vear ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
22 Finance costs
Interest cost of lease liabilities 47,10 54.02
Interest Cost on Deferred consideration 34.41 &
Total §1.51 54.02
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Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment (Refer Note 5A) 9% 44 11.86
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (Refer Note 58) 100,68 106.46
Amortisation of intangible assets ( Refer Note 6B) 111.63 114
Total 310.75 119.46
For the vear ended For the yvear ended

Other expenses 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Content development expenses 288.17 164,38
Buyer engagemen! expenses 133.95 14345
Customer support expenses 22896 159.77
Commission on Sales 1244 -
Owsourced sales cost 131284 737.75
Internet and other anline expenses 46914 208 67
Rates and taxes 4.04 10642
Outsourced support cost 17.45 1253
Advertisemen! expenses 262 9.39
Power and fucl 15.81 772
Repair and maintenance:

- Plant and machinery 6.96 34

- Others 39.63 2727
Travelling and conveyance 3362 10.46
Recruitment and training expenses 2695 12.26
Legal and professional fees 108.94 54.81
Directors' sifting fees 5.5 3355
Auditor's remuneration 834 5.76
Insurance expenses 45.35 3121
Collection charges 49,18 44.79
Corporate social responsibility activities exg 54,27 36,37
Rent 30.14 3.68
Miscellaneous expenses 10.16 3.20
Total 2,927.81 1,780.87
Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the earnmgs for the period attributable to equity holders of the parent company by the weighted average aumber of equity shares cutstanding during the period,
Diluted EPS are calculated by dividing the eamings for the period attributable to the equity holders of the parent company by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted
average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares. The following reflects the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Basic
Net profit as per the statement of profit and loss for computation of EPS (A} 283827 2976.18
Weighted average number of equity shares used in calculating basic EPS (B) 30,533,250 30,424,200
Basic earnings per equity share (A/B) 9296 97.82
Diluted
Weighted average number of equity shares used in calculating basic EPS 30,533,250 30,424,200
Potential equity shares 106.020 209.651
Total no. of shares outstanding (including dilution) (C) 30,639,270 30,733,851
Diluted earnings per equity share (A/C) 9163 9654

There are potential equity shares for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 in the form of share based awards granted to employees which have been considered in the calculation of diluted eaming per share.
For the year ended 31 March 2023 ¢ Nil (3] March 2022: 24,722) SAR units of employees share based awards were excluded from the calculation of diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares as their effect would have been
anti-difutive.

%)

r
o U




IndiaMART InterMESH Limited
Notes to C lidated Financial § Tor the year ended 31 March 2023
{Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

26 Income tax

The major components of INCOME tax Expense are:
a) Income tax expense recognised in Statement of profit and loss

Particulars For the vear ended For the vear ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Current tax expense

Current tax for the year 450,11 WRIL4T
95011 980,47
Deferred tax benefit
Relating to origination and reversal of lemporary differences {75.601 (52.22)
(75.60) (52.22)

Total income tax expense 874.51 918,25
b) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income/(loss) (OCT)

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCT during the year.

Particulars For the vear ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Net gain{loss) on remeasurements of defined benefit plang 1531 144
¢) Reconcilintion of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by statutory income tas rate,

Profit before tax 371278 390443

Accounting profit before income tax 3,712.7% 3.90:.43

Tax expense at the statutory income tax rate (7:25.17% B350 GR2T4

Adjustments in respect of differences taxed at lower tax rates (19187} (102,83

Adjustment in respect of change in carrying amount of investment in subsidiaries 44,54 1133

Adjustment in respect of buyback expenses {3.22) -

Dividend income received (2.63) (0.2

Income non-taxahble for tax purposes - 26,33

Other non-deductible expenses and non-taxable income v {22.54) fdy

Business losses and unabsorbed depreciation | for which no deferred tax asset recognised) 11542 439

Tax expense at the effective income tax rate of 23.55%

(31 March 2022: 23.77%) B74.51 92825
d) Breakup of deferred tax recognised in the Balance sheet

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Particulars

Deferred tax asset

Property, plant and equipment and intangible asseis 13.21 529

Provision for gratuity 14,99 46,95

Provision for compensated absences 0,37 I1%.54

Provision for diminution of i in subsidiaries 12.04 -

I in subsidiaries i at fair value - 3930

Deferred revenue and advance from customers/dealers 11.45 -

Provision of exy llowable in subsequent year 51.24 1967

Ind AS 116 - Leases impact 2(.74 17.30

Total deferred tax assets recognised (A) 173.54 167.05

Deferred tax liabilities

Investment in mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, deb units of ive i fund and

invesiment trust measured at fair value (34.08) (316.64}

Investment in other entities measured at fair value (154.19) (L77)

Accelerated deduction on lcase rent for tax purposes (1.73) (LT3

Identified intangible assets on busi uisiti (111.64) -

Others (300 (333

Total deferred tax liabilities (B) [354@_51 (323471

Net deferred tax liabilities (C) = (A) + (B) (181.11) (156.42)
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26 Income tax (Cont'd)

¢) Breakup of deferred tax expense recognised in Statement of profit and loss and OC1
Particulars

Deferred v expense/(income) relates to the following:

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the vear ended
31 March 2022

Provision for gratuity 13.52 .07
Provision for compensated absences 149.96) 2%
Investment in other entities measured ar fair value 152.42 1.77
Investment in debt instrument of subsidiaries measured at fair value w30 -
Provision for diminution of © in idiaries 112.04)

Deferred revenue and advance from customers dealers 44.29 -
Provision for in sub vear (HLEL (1083}
Investment in mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds. debentures. units of alternative investment fund and -

investment trust measured at fair value 232 (7573
Accelerated deduction for tax purposes . (103
Property, plant and equipment and intangihle assets (34.70) 222
Ind AS 116 - Leases impact (2.81) 16.3T)
Cithers (0.274 (L1
Deferred tax benefit (60.28) (50, 78)

1 Reconciliation of Deferred tax Assets & liabilities:

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Particulars

Opening bakance as of 1 April (156.42) {20720}
Tax benefit'|expense) during the vear recogrised m Statement of profit and loss T5.60 .11
Net Deferred tax labilities ised p 1o busi birations (refer note 34) (X0,35)

Measurement period adjustments (refer note 34} (4:63) -
Tax impact during the year recognised in OC1 {1531 (144}
Closing balance at the end of the year (181.11) (156.42)

g) Disclosed In the balance sheet #s follows:

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Deferred Tax Linbilities (202.86) (156,42
Deferred Tax Assets 2175 -
Deferred Tas Liabilities (net) (18111} (156.42)

The Company offsets tax assets and hiabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities, and deferved rax assers and deferred tax lahilities

refate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority

i) Detail of deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses for which no deferred mx nsset is recoguised in the

balance sheet:
Particulars

Deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses for which no deferred rax assets have been recognised are

attributable to the following:

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

- tax husiness losses. 3RIR3 41442
-unehsorbed depreciation 9.76 S.60
- pther deductible temporary differences .80 327

39439 437.30

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right 10 set off current Lax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

relate to income taxes Tevied by the same tax authority.
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27 Defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefit plan
The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed statutory defined period of service geis a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each
completed year of service. The scheme is funded with insurance company in form of gualifying insurance policy, This defined benefit plans exposes the Group to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk,
interest rate risk and salary risk.

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Group's obligation in respect of its gratuity plan and leave encashment is as follows:

Gramiry - Defined benefit
As at 31 March 2023 Asat 31 March 2022

Present value of defined benefit obligation 15424 33631
Fair value of plan assets (217.35) (146.02)
Net liability arising from defined benefit 136.89 190,29

Leave encashment - other long term employee benefit plan
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Present value of other long term employee benefit plan 121.14 75.21

@) Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset)/linbility and other long term employee benefit plan
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit {asset)Tiability and other other long tenm employee benefit plan and its
companents.

Recanciliation of present value of defined benefir obligation for Gratity and Leave encashment
Gratity
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Balance at the beginning of the year 336.31 289.63
Acquisition through business combination 2133 =
Benefits paid (23.17) (14.56)
Current serviee cost 61.94 47.51
Interest cost 24.20 [8.63
Actuarial (gains)losses

- changes in demographic assumptions (12.44) 1.07
- changes in financial assumptions (3119 B2
- experience adjustments (20.74) 325
Balance at the end of the year 354.24 336.31

Leave encashment

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Balance at the beginning of the vear 7521 76.08
Acquisition through business combinati 229 -
Benefits paid (17.01) (7.64)
Current service cost 62.78 0.30
Interest cost 5.07 4.88
Past service cost 282 -
Actuarial {gains)/losses

- changes in demographic assumptions (4.46) 0.23
- changes in financial assumptions (8.50) (0.70)
- experience adjustments 2.94 2.06
Balance at the end of the year 121.14 75.21
Mavement in fair value of plan assets Gratuity

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Opening fair valug of plan assets 146.02 57.30
Acquisition through busi hinations 9.00 -
Interest income 10.41 3.69
Actuarial (gains)/losses {4.00) {0.40)
Centributions from the employer 81.00 100.00
Benefits paid (25.08) (14.57)
Closing fair value of plan assets 217.35 146.02

Each year the management of the Group reviews the level of funding requried as per its risk management strategy, The Group expects to contribute 1o gratuity INR 74.04 millions during the year ended
31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: INR 52.85 million}.

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Funds managed by insurer 100.00% 100.00%
The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.
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27 Defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefit plan (Cont'd)

b) Expense recognised in profit or loss

Current service cost
Net mteres! expense
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability:

Actuanal (gain)/loss on plan assets

Actuarial (gain)/loss on defined benefit obligation

Components of defined benefit costs gnised in other comprehensive income

Current service cost

Past service cost

Net imerest expense

Actuarial (gain)/loss on other long term employee benefit plan

Components of other long term employee benefit costs recognised in profit or loss

€) Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

Discount rate
Expected rate of return on assets

Attrition rate:

Ages
Upto 30 years
Abaove 30 years

Future salary growth
Year |

Year2

Year 3 and onwards

Mortality table

these ions with the proj

L5

The Group regularly

d) Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 March 2023

Gratuity

For the vear ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

61.594 47.51
13.99 14.93
7573 62.44
4.00 .40
(64.37) (4.90)
(60.37) (4.50)

Leave encashment

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the yvear ended
31 March 2023

62.78 0.30
282 E
507 488

(10.02) 1.59

60.65 6.77

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

T7.30-7.35% 6.75%
7.30-7.35% 6.75%

As at 31 March 2022

Upto 4 years of Above 4 years of Upto 4 years of Above 4 years of
service service service service

31% 3% 30% 0%

12% 12% 10% 10%

12.23% 12.23% 12.25% 12.25%
12.23% 12.33% 12.25% 12:25%
12.07% 1207% 12:25% 12.25%

India Assured Life Moratility (2012-14)

i long-term plans and prevalent industry standards.

India Assured Life Moratility (2012-14)

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts

Gratuity

For the vear ended 31 March 2023
Impact of change in discount rate by 0.50%
Impact of change in salary by 0.50%

Far the year ended 31 March 2022
Impact of change in discount rate by 0.50%
Impact of change in salary by 0.50%

Increase Decrease
(18.86) 20.70
544 (8.79)

Increase Decrease
(21.54) 23.96
9.14 (9.69)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown,

€} The table below summarises the maturity profile and duration of the gratuity Bability:

Particulars

Within one year

Within one - three years
Within three - five years
Above five vears

Total

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

3331 2334
53.70 38.80
42.69 34.08
22434 240,00
35424 33631
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for the year ended 31 March 2023

28 Share based payment plans
a) Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)

The Ciroup has provided vanous share-based payment schemes 10 its employees in the preceding financial vears.

Date of gram

Date of Board Approval

Date OF Shareholder's approval
Number of aptions approved
Method of Settlement

Vesting period (in months)

The details of activity have been summarized below:

ESOF 2017

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the following schemes were in operation:

ESOP 2017

June 02, 2017

May (4, 2017
September 23, 2013
200,730

Equity

0 to 48 Maonths

ESOP 2022

Jan 10, 2022
Jan 08, 2002
May (07, 2018
45490

Equity

0 1o 48 Months

For the vear ended

31 March 2023

For the vear ended
31 March 2022

Number of options  Weighted Average

Exercise Price (INR)

Number of options

Weighted Avernge
Exercise Price (INR}

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Granted during the vew

Forfeited expired during the year
Exercised during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year
Exercisable at the end of the year

#27.846 shares have been issued against the ESOP exercised under this scheme during the year ended 31 March, 2022,

13,923

13,923

200

200

ESOF 2022
For the vear ended For the vear ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of options  Weighted Average Number of options Weighted Average
Exercise Price (INR) Exercise Price (INR)
Outstanding a1 the beginning of the vear 45,050 10 - -
Granted during the year - - 45,4590 1]
Forferted’ expired during the year 5.061 10 440 1]
Exercised during the year 4.205 10 - -
Ouistanding at the end of the vear 35,784 10 45.050 10
Exercisable o the end of the year = = = -
Figures for the year ended 31 March 2023 are as follows:
ESOP 2022 ESOP 2017
Range of exercise prices 10 -
Number of options outstanding 35.784 -
Weighted average remaininig contractual life of options (in vears) 3 &
Weighted average exercise price 10 -
Weighted average share price for the options exercised during the vear 10 -
Figures for the year ended 31 March 2022 are as follows:
ESOP 2022 ESOP 2017

Range of excrcise prices 10 200
Number of options outstanding 45.050 -
Weighted average remaining contractual life of pptions (in years) 4 =

1 200

Weighted average exercise price

Weighted average share price for the options exercised during the year

30
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28 Share based pavment plans (Cont'd)

Stock Options granted

The key inputs used in the measurement of the pram date fair valuaion of equity sertled plans are given in the iable below

Figures for the year ended 31 March 2023 are as follows:

ESOP 2022+ ESOP 2017
Weighted average share price 6,662 280,50
Exercise Price 10 o
Expected Volatlity NA 0,00
Historical Volarility NA 0.10%
Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise year) m years 4 0.00
Expected dividends NA il
Average nisk-free interest rate NA 7.20%
Value of options method Market price of stock®  Black-Scholes valuation
model
* Fair value has been considered as stock price of the day prior to the grant date.
Figures for the year ended 31 March 2022 are as follows:
ESOP 2022* ESOP 2017
Weighted averape share price 6662 280,50
Exercise Price 10 200
Expected Volatility NA 0008
Historical Volatility NA 0.10%
Life of the options gramed (Vesting and exercise year) in vears 4 T.70
Expected dividends NA Nil
Average risk-free mterest rate NA 7200
Value of options method Market price of stock®  Black-Scholes valumtion
model
* Fair value has been considered as stock price of the day prior to the grant date.
h) Stock appreciation rights (SAR)
The Company has granted stock appreciation rights 1o its employess, Details are as follows
SAR 2018 SAR 2021 SAR 2022
Date of grant October 01, 2018 August 01, 2021 January 10, 2022
Date of Board Approval September 22, 2018 July 19, 2021 January 08, 2022
Date Of Shareholder's approval May 07, 2018 May 07, 2018 May 07, 2018
Number of units approved 800,740 8.600 68,770
Method of Settlement Equity Equity Equity
Vesting period (in months) 0 1o 48 Months 0 1o 48 Months 0 to 48 Months
The details of activity have been summmarized below:
For the year ended For the year ended
X &
SAR 01N 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of SAR Weighted Average . Weighted Average
units Exercise Price (INR) Nomberiof SAR usits Exercise Price (INR)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 203,658 500 427,788 500
Granted during the year - - - -
Lapsed during the vear 2028 500 11,280 500
Exercised during the year 201,630 300 212,850 500
Expired during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year - = 203.658 300
Exercisable at the end of the year = - . .
* 31 March 2023 : 175,893 (31 March 2022 : 208.850) shares have been issued against the SAR exercised under this scheme during the year.
For the year ended For the year ended
*
Sak2021 31 March 1023 31 March 2022
Number of SAR Weighted Average . Weighted Average
units Exercise Price (INR) Number of SARunlts  p crcise Price (INR)
Outstanding a1 the beginning of the year 7,250 10 - -
Ciranted during the year - + B.600 10
Lapsed during the year - - L350 10
Exercised during the year 725 10 - -
Expired during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the vear 6,523 10 7,250 10

Exercisable at the end of the year

* 3| March 2023 : 716 (31 March 2022 : Nil) shares have been issued against the SAR exercised under this scheme during the year,
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28 Share based payment plans (Cont'd)

SAR 2022%

For the yvear ended
31 March 2023

For the yesr ended
31 March 2022

Weighted Average

Number of SAR units

Weighted Average

Exercise Price (INR) Exercise Price (INR)

Ouistanding at the beginning of the vear 10 - .
Giranted during the year = 68,770 10
Lapsed during the year 4] 2420 10
Exercised durmg the vear ] =
Expired during the year H 5 = .
Outstanding at the end of the vear 5 10 66,350 10
Exercisable a1 the end of the year -
* 31 March 2023 : 5,447 (31 March 2022 : Nil) shares have been issued against the SAR exercised under this scheme during the year.
Figures for the year ended 31 March 2023:

SAR 2018 SAR 2021 SAR 2022
Range of exercise prices 500 10 10
Number of units outstanding - 6.523 53.541
Weighted average remaining contractual life of units (in vears) - 233 283
Weighted average exercise price 500 10 10
Figures for the vear ended 31 March 2022:

SAR 2018 SAR 2021 SAR 2022
Range of exercise prices 500 10 10
Number of units outstanding 203,658 7250 66.350
Weighted average remaining contractual life of units (in years) (.50 333 383
Weighted average exercise price S00 10 14]
SAR units granted
The key inputs used in the measurement of the grant date fair valuation of equity settled plans are given m the table below:
Figures for the year ended 31 March 2023:

SAR 2018 SAR 2021 SAR 2022¢
Weighted average share price 597 7.1335 6,662
Exercise Price 500 10 1
Expected Volatility 41% NA NA
Historical Volatility 41% NA NA
Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise vear) in years 300 3 3
Expected dividends Nil NA NA
Average risk-frec interest rate 7.80% NA NA
Value of options method Black-Scholes  Market price of stock™  Market price of stock®
valuation model
# Fair value has been considered as stock price of the day prior to the grant date.
Figures for the vear ended 31 March 2022:
SAR 2018 SAR 2021* SAR 2022+

Weighted average share price 597 7135 6,662
Exercise Price 500 10 10
Expected Volatiliry 41% NA NA
Historical Volatility 41% NA NA
Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise vear) in years 4.00 4 4
Expected dividends Nil NA NA
Average risk-free interest rate 7.80% NA NA
Value of options method Black-Scholes  Market price of stock®  Market price of stock®

# Fair value has been considered as stock price of the day prior to the grant dae.

Effect of the employee share-based payment plans on the statement of profit & loss:

valuation mode!

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Total Employee Compensation Cost pertaining to share-based payment plans 265.66 102,73
265.66 102.73

Compensation Cost pertaining to equity-scttled employee share-based pavment plan included above

Effect of the employee share-based payment plans on its financial position:

Asat 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Total reserve for employee share based paym istanding as at year end

256.55

130,16
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n

cfi)

(b}

e i)

Fair value measurements
Category wise details as to carrying value, Tair value and the level of fair value measurement hicrarchy of the Group's lnancial instruments are as follows:
As at Asmi
il 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Financial assets
| Musured al fisr value through profit or Joss [FYTPLY
< vestient in sl funds vl exchange tradod s (Reler Note Wi below) Lowd 1 PETH65% 15,744, 54
<Invesments in lvesiment Trust (Refer Note b below) Level 1 4xd.19 2763
-1 in Al fimds { Refir Note biin) bolow) Level | - 261
= et i bemds & debentures (Refor Node biv) below) Lavel 2 10,447,585 6,K1257
= Tovistment i eguaty/preference instrutments of other cntitics (Refor Note bliv) bolow) Lewel 3 221152 LTi0s
= Inwasament in debt instruments of assooates (Refor Note biv) holow) Level 1 -
24,726,

T Munsared s smsortised cost (refir note (b)) and (i) boow)
= Trade regiyvables TS 1326
- Cash andd cash eyuivalents SK1,06 495.47
- Lustns 100 prmiplis s 1186
= Inter-corporaiy doposits 202 41735
= Becuriy deposits 454 4247
= Dupomats with Banks L&Y 797

14191 11525

= Caler financial asscts

S00.97
Total nancial assets (a+h) 2508482
Financial liabilities
) Mueasured of annrtised cos? (refor mote (b)) and (i ly
- Trade pavshles FarE ) IRLET
- Beeunty depwsits 7% -
- Other linancal liabalitics h25 51 203,00
= Lease lahilitics 45908 5620
Total financial labilitics 1,357.55 944,37
The following methods / assumptions were used 1o estimate the fair values:
1) The carrving value of deposits with Banks, Inter-corporaie doposits with Financial imstintions, wride Teasais 160 eamipd caish and cish equivalents, trade payables, secority depesits, lease liahilities and othier financinl assets and other fmancial
Tiabilii 1 o A cost apy Uhehr fr value due to the short-term maturities of these mstruments. These have been sssessel basis comterpanty credit risk.
1) The frr value of non-current financiol assets md financial lobilin Lare d i by di: ing futore cash (lows using curront rates of instroments with similar terms and crodin risk, The comont rates ssod does ot reflect significant
changes from the discown Tates wsed mitally. Therefore, the carrying value of these d tsua] post thar fair value,
iin} Fair value of quited motual funds, trachl fund, i Funls and trust is hased on quoted market prices o the reporting dite. W do not expect muternd volatility wn these financial sssets.
v} Fair value of m emtypreds el ches i of nther entities is estimumed hased on discouniod cash Aows ¢ market oudiiple vabmtion technigue using the cash flow propections, discount rite and credin risk and are classifiod as
Levd 3.

v} Fuir value of lovestment m debt mstuments of mssoctates 16 estimated based on discounted cash flows | market noltiple valuatbon technigue using the cash Mow progections, dscound rate and credit nsk md are clossifiod as Levd 3
wi) Fair value of the quoted bonds and debontures is deerminal using observable market's inpats and is clissifiod os Level 2,

Following tabilc bes the used and key Inputs thereto for the level 3 financial assets as of 31 March 2023:
Fiuancial amets Valuatlon Uneik bl Shgnilf Tnvter-
mprts Unobservable inputs  significant nnobservable
e fnpuat wnd Fulr valoe
messrensent
1 In equlivip b of ather ontitien
Latpistify Services Private |imibad, Mynd Sohutions Private Limited, Fumy ‘Marker muhiple and Disconmed 1) Discous mle 0 24.5% - 28.5%  Theestimsied Gir valee of
Cnralting Privise Lambed, Flects Techmokogies Private Limited and Instant cashilow approach ) Revenue prowth rafe 10 - 204, 7%  Investmont i Cther entities
Procuseaners Servieys Private Limited il Market e i 20y .72y will s (derease) ifhe
(L mmparable Companies) Revenise prowils e and
Market multiphe is higher
{lower).
Thi eaimated [ir value of
Investment in Orher emitic.
will Inencase {decrease) i the
Dhescount rate isflowery higher
Sensiviry:
For the fir value ol @ m ither entitics, i i iy sdgrificant wabsercalile inputs ot the repating dete woukd hyve e Bliowing efie
Far the yesr ended
31 Mareh 2023
Dot Raie
1% change 154.38)
=% change R5R]
Revenue Limath Rate:
“1% change (Y
1% change (5542)
213
(2138}
Following table the hniques used and key inputs thereto for the level 3 financial assets as at 31 March 2022 :
Flamnelal nssets Valuation technlque Sigmifennt Unobservable Inter-relutionship
lupmt range betvwren shEnficant
wnohsorvable input
und fuir value
mesurement
i egpui i of other entificy
Mubisy Tochnolopies Private Linived, Lepistify Serviaes Private Linited. Mirket maltipk: sppmoach 07 3x The estimated i
Mynd Sulutions Private Limited, Zumyo (Comsultng Privite Linited and Pieets vl o Ty estmen) in
Todmologies Frivate Limiied Other cntntbey will
Toemesse {decresse) il
e Market muhiple i
higher {lower}
Senshtivity

Fowr the fnir vokie of imvestment m other enfities. reasonnbly poasible changes m Markes Mubtpde by 250 basis pomts a1 the reporting date heing o agnificant mmobservable mputs, would have the Bllwing clloct
For the yeur ended
31 March 2022
2.5% chamge m Marke Multiph: 3248
-2.5% chnge in Market Multiphe 2015
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29 Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

d) Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurements

Investment in equity/preference instruments of
other entities/investment in debt instruments of

associates
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1,719.05 99.99
Opening balance 837.99 7.72
Gain recognised in profit or loss 395.68 1,611.34
Additions (274 48) -
Disposals/Extinguishment (312.72) -
Change in status of investment (o Associate 2,365.52 1,719.05

Closing balance

¢) During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, there were no transfers due to re-classification into and out of Level 3 fair value

30 Capital management

3

The Group manages its capital to ensure it will be able to continue as a going concerns while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the borrowings
and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of no borrowings and only equity of the Company.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The Group reviews the capital structure on a regular basis, As part of this review, the Group considers the cost of capital, risks associated with each class of capital requirements
and maintenance of adequate liquidity.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s board of directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's
risk management framework. The Group’s risk management pelicies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's
activities.

The Group’s board oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Board is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes regular reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee,

i) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Group's cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, inter-corporate deposits and investment in mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative
investment funds and units of investment trust with reputed banks and financial institutions.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Credit risk management considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information including indicators like external credit rating (as far as available), macro-
economic information (such as regulatory changes, government directives, market interest rate).

Trade receivables

The Group majorly collects consideration in advance for the services to be provided to the customer. As a result, the Group is not exposed to any significant credit risk on trade
recejvables.

Cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and investments in mutual funds, exchange traded funds, debentures, units of alternative investment funds and wnits of investment
frist.

The Group maintains its cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, inter-corporate deposits and investment in mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of
alternative investment funds and units of investment trust with reputed banks and financial institutions. The credit risk on these instruments is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

Security deposits and loans

The Group monitors the credit rating of the counterparties on regular basis. These instruments carry very minimal credit risk based on the financial position of parties and
Group's historical experience of dealing with the parties.

i) Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial Habilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Group’s approach (o managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Groups's reputation.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the Group's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities, and continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

2559
» -
f31) e
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31 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

Maturities of financial liabilities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities

Between 1 and 5 vears

As at 31 March 2023 Witiin 1 year and thereafter Tl

Trade payables 27217 - 272.17

Lease and other financial liabilites 38941 897.43 1,286.84
661.58 897.43 1,559.01

_— Between 1 and 5 years

As at 31 March 2022 Wit 1 e and thereafter Totut

Trade payables 183.57 - 183.57

Lease and other financial liabilities 30341 63441 937.82
486,98 63441 1,121.39

iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises three types of
risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include foreign currency
receivables, deposits, investments in mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment funds, units of investment trust and investment in

other entities.

a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to the
risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency). The company's
exposure to unhedged foreign currency risk as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 1s not material. Currency risks related to the principal amounts of the company’s US dollar

trade receivables.

b) Interest rate risk

Investment of short-term surplus funds of the Group in liquid schemes of mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of altenative investment fund and
investment trust provides high level of liquidity from a portfolio of money market securities and high quality debt and categorized as “low risk’ product from liquidity and

interest rate risk perspectives.

Sensitivity

+ 5% change in NAV of mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment fund

and units of investment trust.

- 5% change in NAV of mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment fund

and units of investment trust,

Impact on profit before tax

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

1,135.92 1,150.38

(1,135.92) (1,150.38)
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32 Segment information
Operating segments are defined as components of an enterpnise for which discrete financial information 15 available that is evaluated regularly by the chief opearting decision maker, in deciding
how 1o allocate resources and assessing performance,

Pursuant o acquisition of Busy Infotech Private Limited and Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited (Formerly known as Finlite Technologies Private limited) during the current year ended 31
March 2023, the Group has identified two business segments namely "Web and related Services” and "Accounting Software Services” as reportable sepments based on the nature of the products,
the risks and returns, the organization structure and the intemal financial reporting systems.

Web and related services are busi to-busi e-marketplace services which acts as an interactive hub for domestic and international buyers and suppliers. Accounting software services
includes business of development. system analyvsis, designing and marketing of integrated busimess accounting software to help and manage businesses with mereased efficiency.

Segment accounting Policies

The principles used in the ion of the fi ial are istently applied to record revenue and expenditure in individual segments and are as set out in note 2 on

¥ kel

significant accounting policies, The accounting policies in relation to segment accounting are as under:

(a) Segment revenue and expenses

Segment revenue is directly attributable to the and p have been allocated 10 various segments on the basis of specific identification. Segment revenue does not include
other income, Segment expenses do not include finance cost, Dcprcmallon and amortization, lax expense and share of Toss of assocrates.

(b) Segment assets and liablities

Assets and liabilities directly attributable or ailocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable segment.

Fi | infi ton about the busi o for the vear ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is as follows:
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Web and related Aecmmﬁng Total Web and related Total
services Software services services

Revenue from operations from external customers 9,420.26 43373 9,853.99 7,534.85 7,534,85
Inter- segment revenue - % - = -
Seg ¥ 9,420.26 43373 9,853.99 7.534.85 7.534.85
Segs results 2,577.08 101.75 2,678.83 3.078.46
Finance Cost (81.51) (34.02)
Depreciation and Amortization expense (310.75) (119.46)
Other income 1,.B05.26 1,121.94
Profit before share of loss of associates and tax 4,091.83 4.026.92
Share of loss of an associates {379.05) (122.49)
Prafit before tax 3178 3,904.43
Tax expense _(874.51) (928.25)
Profit for the vear 1,838.27 2,976.18

Information about geographical areas;
The Group's revenue from continuing operations from external customers by location of operations and information of its non-current assets by location of assets are detailed below:

For the vear ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

For the year ended 31 March 2023 For the year ended 31 March 2022
: Web and related  Accounting Web and related
Revenue from external customers Siroican Sofiware services Total s Total
India 9.337.25 404.87 0.742:12 745804 T.438.04
Others 83.01 18.86 111.87 76.81 76.81
9,420.26 433.73 9,853,099 7.534.85 7.534.85
As at 31 March 2023 Asat 3 March 2022
Non-Currest Assets® Web and related Acmlmling Total Web snd. related Total
services Software services services
India 351.19 4.996.86 5,548.05 603.36 603.36
Others - - - - -
551.19 4,996.86 5,548.05 603.36 603.36

* Non-current assets exclude financial assets, investment in associates, deferred tax assets, tax assets and post-employment benefit assets.
No single customer represents 10% or more of the Group's total revenue for the vear ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, respectively.

Segment assets and liabilities
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Web and related .»\cr.wnting. Unaliocable Total ‘Web and related Unallocable Total
services Software services services
Sem assets 22,680.36 6,275.93 5,490.01 34,446.30 18721.19 10,767.32 20 488,51
Segment liabilities 13,007.13 §54.25 - 13,861.38 10,747.98 - 10,747.98
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33 Related party transactions
i) Names of related parties and related party relationship:

a) Entity's subsidiaries & associates

Subsidinries

Associates

Hello Trade Online Private Limited

Tradezeal Online Private Limited

Folexo Online Private Lid

Pay With Indiamart Private Limited

Busy Infotech Private Limited (with effect from 06 April 2022)

Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited (Formerly known as Finlite Technologies
Private Limited) (with effect from 23 May 2022)

Livekeeping Private Limited (Subsidiary of Livekeeping Technologies Privaie
Limited. with effect from 23 May 2022)

Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited

Ten Times Online Private Limited (ceased to be an associate with effect from 16
March, 2023)

Truckhall Private Limited

Shipway Technology Private Liumiled

Agillos E-Commerce Private Limited

Edgewise Technologies Private Limited

1B Monotaro Private Limited

Adansa Solutions Private Limited (w.c.l Apnl 06, 2022))

Mobisy Technologies Private Limited (with effect from 03 November 2022}

b) Individuals owning directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that gives them Significant Influence over the Group and Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Name

Dinesh Chandra Agarwal
Brijesh Kumar Agrawal
Prateek Chandra

Manoj Bhargava

Dhwruv Prakash

Rajesh Sawhney
Elizabeth Lucy Chapman
Vivek Narayan Gour
Pallavi Dinodia Gupta

Designation

Managing Director & CEO

Whele time director

Chief financial officer

Company Secretary

Non-gxecutive director

Independent director

Independent director (Resigned with effect from 07 October 2022)
Independent director

Tnd, I (A
P o

d with effect from 20 October 2022)

¢) Entities where Individuals and Key Management Personnel (KMP) as defined above exercise significant influence.

Mansa Enterprises Private Limited
Mynd Solutions Private Limited

d) Other related parties

Indiamant Employee Benefit Trust (administered Trust 1o ployees share based payment plans of the Company)
Indiamant Inteninesh Employees Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme (administered Trust to manage post-employment defined benefits of employees of the Company)

ii) Key management personnel compensation

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

Other long-term employee benefits
Employee share based payment

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the vear ended
31 March 2022

154.26 137.24
0.04 0.25
179 0.36

13.76 5.46

169.85 143.31
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33 Related party transactions (Cont'd)

The following table provides the total amount of tansecions that have been entered into with the relaied partes for the relevan financial year;

Farticulars

For the year ended
3 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Entities where KMP and Individuals exercise
Significant influcnee

Expenses for rent

Mansa Enterprises Prvate Lumined

Purchase of Investment
Mynd Solutions Private Limited

Sale of Investment
Mynd Solutions Private Limited

Key management personnel

Loans
Manoj Bhergava

Director’s siting fees

Disidend paid
Dinesh Chandra Agarwal
Brijesh Kumar Agrawal
Prateck Chandra

Mancj Bhargnvn

Rajesh Smwhney

Dhruy Prakash

Vivek Namyan Gour

Associates

Inveatment in associnies

Truckhall Private Limued

Shipway Technology Private Limited
Agillos E-Commerce Private Limited
Edgewise Technologies Private Limited
1B MonotaR 0 Private Limited

Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited
Adanza Solutions Privite Limited
Mobisy Technologies Private Limited

Sale of Investment in associates
Ten Times Online Pyt Lid

i
Sumply Vyapar Apps Private Lomited
1B Monotare Private Limited

Interne. and onling services avarled
Ten Times Online Private Limited

services provided to
Smply Vyopar Apps Private Limited

b E: Benefit T
Interest free Loan given
Repayment of loan given
Share capital issued

Dividend paid

Zdlnk

137.31

17.1%

023
ot
AL
.03
01

7500

3978
137.50
23014

LA

16,47
32

.05

043

2,10
015

1.73

150
1.55

12946
87.73
Ld6
.
108
135
015

LRIR LY
18200
26000

238

.50,
2,00
173
33l

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The transactions with related panies are emtered on terms equivalent 1o those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances o5 at the year end are
unsecored and mierest free and settiement ocowrs i cash, There have been oo guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. This
assessment is undertaken sach financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

The followmg table discloses the refated pares balances at the year end;

Asat Asat
Balance Outstanding at the year end 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Key management personnel
Lounns
Manoj Fhargava - 1504
Investment in equity instruments of sssociales (AL cws!)®
Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited G730 927.52
Ten Times Cnline Private Limited - 09
Truckhell Private Limited LR[TA T THEI
Shigway Technology Privane Limired 182,00 B )]
Apillos E-Commeroe Private Limited 260L0U 260,00
Edgewise Technologies Private Limied 133,45 13345
1B MonotaR0 Private Limited 1,041.77 1,041.77
Addanza Solunons Prvate Limuted 137.50
Mohisy Technologies Private Limited 46189 y
in debt i of iates (At FVTPL)
Truckhall Private Limited 75.00 -
Mobisy Technologies Private Limised 800 -
Truhe receivables
Sumply Vyapar Apps Private Limated 2,00
Dieferred Revenue
Simply Vyapar Apps Prvate Limited 53 1.00
1B Monotaro Private Linmted L1 -
Mynd Solutions Privae Limited 37136 -

*Does nic inchike share of profivloss of assoctaie as accounted usdir equity method
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{Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

34 Business Combination

Acquisition of Busy Infotech Private Limited ("Busy Infotech")

On 24 January, 2022, the Group had signed the Share Purchare Agreement (SPA) for acquiring 100% equity interest in Busy Infotech for a consideration of INR 5,000, Busy Infotech 15 engaged in
the business of development, system analysis, designing and marketing of integrated business accounting sofiware (known as Busy accounting software), The acquisition would help the Company to
offer accounting software solutions to businesses in line with its leng term vision of enabling businesses,

The acquisition has been consummated on (6 April, 2022 and the Group has paid INR 5.000 in cash.

The tatal purchase consideration of INR 5,000 has been allocated based on management estinates (o the acquired assets and liabilities as follows:

Particulars As at 01 April 2022
Net working capital (Including cash of INR 33.11 millions) 433.06
Deferred tax liabilities(Net) (76.17)
Non current Liabilities {46.11)
Property, plant and equipment 8.65
Software 0.77
RO 2.9
Intangible assets

Technology 173.68

Channel Network 365.62
Goodwill 4,137.71
Purchase Consideration 5,000.00

The table below shows the values and lives of intangible assets recognized on acquisition:

Amount Life (Years) |Basis of amortization
Technology 173.68 5 On straight line basis
Channel Network 365.62 5 On straight line basis
Total Intangible Assets 539.30

Goodwill is non tax deductible and has been allocated to the CGU "Busy Infotech Private Limited”,

Acquisition- related costs
The Group has incurred INR 38,79 towards acquisition related costs. These amounts have been included in other exp
March, 2023,

of profit or loss for the year ended 31

in the cc

[ 01 April,

The operations of Busy Infotech have been lidated in the o lidated financial of the Group from 01 April, 2022 for cony pury as the tr
2022 and 05 April, 2022 were not material. In the year ended 31 March, 2023, Busy Infotech contributed revenue of INR 433.06 and Profit of INR 103,00 to the Group's result,

The Group has finalised the purchase price allocation for this acquisition, which has resulted in increase in net working capital by INR 29.20, decrease in Right of Uise assets by INR 0.07, increase
in deferred tax liability INR 4.62 and increase in non current liabilities by INR 9,14 with corresponding impact of decrease in value of goodwill by INR 1537 to INR 4.122.34 basis certain revised
information.

Tn addition 1o the purchase consideration. INR 28 is payable as on acquistion date to certain Business Advisors over a two-year period. Payment of this amount is contingent upon these service
providers continuing to be the advisors of the Group during the stipulated period in the This consid is being accounted for as post acquisition expense.
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34 Business Combination (Cont'd)

b}  Acquisition of Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited (Formerly known as Finlite Technologies Private Limited)

On 235 March, 2022, the Group has signed Share subscription and Share purchase agreement (SSSPA) for acquiring 51.01% equity interest in Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited (Formerly
knewn as Finlite Technologies Private Limited) by way of purchase of 2,147 equity shares from exisiting shareholder of Livekeeping for a consideration of INR 110 and by subscribing 6,843 fresh
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) for INR 350, Livekeeping is engaged in the business of providing technology related services, web development and mobile applications along
with other services. Company is the owner of 'Live keepking', a mobile application that allows users 10 access thew Tally data. This investment is in line with the Company’s long term objective of
offering various Software as a Service (‘SAAS”) based solutions for businesses.

The acquisition has been consummated on 23 May, 2022 and the Group has paid INR 459.74 in cash, As part of the acquisition, the Group has committed to Buy-out the remaining share from the
promoter of Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited on specified dates in a manner stipulated under the SSSPA. Accordingly, the fair value of remaining consideration payable to promoters of
Livekeeping Technologies of INR 321.27 has been recognized by the Group as deferred consideration and the acquisition was ac d as per anticipated-acquisition method,

The total purchase consideration of INR 781.01 has been allocated based on management estimates to the acquired assets and liabilities as follows:

Particulars As at 31 May 2022
Net working capital {Including cash of INR 346.1 millions) 34747
Deferred tax lighilities(Net) 4.18)
Property, plant and equig © D40
1 ible assets

Technology 1 7.40
Gioodwill 419.92
Purchase Consideration 78101

The table below shows the values and lives of intangible assets reécognized on acquisition:

Amount Life (Years) |Basis of amortization
Technology 17.40 5 Om straight line basis

Total Intangible Assets

17.40

Goodwill is non tax deductible and has been allocated to the CGL "Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited".

Acquisition-related costs

The Group has incurted INR 1,91 towards acquisition related costs, These amounts have been included in other expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the vear ended 31 March,

2023,

st Tedt

d in the fi ial

I'ne operations of Liv logies have been

confributed revenue of INR (.68 and Loss of INR (27.92) to the Group's result.

of the Group from 31 May, 2022, In the year ended 31 March, 2023, Livekeeping Technologies

The Group has finalised the purchase price allocation for this acquisition, which has resulied in decrease in net working capital by INR .43 and increase in deferred tax liability INR 0.01 with
corresponding impact of increase in value of goodwill by INR 0.46 to INR 420.38.

EL

T

Groop infermation

and

about

The consolidated financial statements of the Group includes subsidiaries and associates fisted in the table below:

Name

Principal activitics

Conntry of incorporaticn
Asat
A1 March 2023

o interest

Asal
31 Mareh 2022

Tnformation about subsidinries

Helto Trade Online Private Limited Business facilitation services India 100,00 100,00
Tradezeal Online Private Limited Business facilitation services India 10000 100081
Talexe Online Private Lid Clowd based solution for SMEs India 100060 100.00
Pay With Indismart Private Lomited Paymens facilitation India 100,00 100,00
Bisy Infitech Private Limited (refer note 34) Software and apps service providing compary Indsa 100060 =
Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited (refer note 4) Software and apps service providing company Indz SLm =
Information about associntes

Ten Times Online Private Limited (ceased to be an associate with effect from  Business facilitanion serviees. India Hon
16 March 2023}

Simply Vyaspar Apps Private Limited Software and apps service providing company India 2745 2740
Truckhall Private Limited Software and apps service providing company India =0 2542
Shipway Technology Private Limited Software and apps service providing company India 26,00 26,00
Agllos E-Cormmerce Private Lumited Software and apps service providing company India 26,23 26,23
Edgewise Technologies Private Limited Software and apps service providing company India 2600 2601
1B Monotaro Private Limited E-Commerce company India 26,00 26,00
Mobisy Tecknologtes Private Limited {w.e.0 03 November 2022) Software and apps service providing company Incia 2500 15.9%
Adansa Solutions Private Limated (w.e.f 06 April 2022) Software and apps senvice providing company Incha a0l
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36 Additional information

Name of the entity in the group

Net Assets, Le., total assets minus
total liahilities

Share in profit and loss

Share in other Comprehensive income

Share in total Comprehensive income

consolidated

As Yo of INR
million
net assets

As %ol
consolidated
profit and loss

INR
million

As % of consolidated
other comprehensive
income

INR
millinn

As % of total
comprehensive
income

INK
million

Parent

Indiamart Intermesh Limited
Balance as at 31 March 2023
Balance as ot 31 March 2022

For the vear ended 31 March 2023
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Subsidiaries

Tolexo Online Private Limited
Balance as at 21 March 2023
Balance as at 31 March 2022

For the year ended 31 March 2023
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Hello Trade Online Pyt Lid
Balance as at 31 March 2023
Balance as at 31 March 2022
For the year ended 31 March 2023
For the vear ended 31 March 2022

Tradezeal Online Pyt Ltd
Balence as ar 31 March 2023
Balance as at 31 March 2022

For the year ended 31 March 2023
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Pay with Indiamart Private Limited

Balance as-at 31 March 2023
Balance as at 31 March 2022
For the year ended 31 March 2023
For the vear ended 31 March 2022

Busy Infotech Private Limited
Balance as at 31 March 2023
Balance as at 31 March 2022

For the year ended 3| March 2023
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited

Balance as at 31 March 2023
Balance as at 31 March 2022
For the year ended 31 March 2023
For the vear ended 31 March 2022

Livekeeping Private Limited
Balance as at 31 March 2023
Balance as a1 31 March 2022

For the year ended 31 March 2023
For the year ended 31 March 2022

81.80%
864945,

2064410
18.921.41

-1.55%
-1.53%

(400.51)
{33364

0.00% 021
0.00% (0.02)

5.20% 1,334.20
3011% 677.61

0.02% 6.03
0.03% T.18

131% FELEH
1.00%% -

1.27% 31999

0.00% 0.07
0.00%% -

96,73%
108:12%

-2.39%
=3.24%

0.00%,
0.00%

15.78%
-0.55%

-0.04%
-0.05%

3.66%
0.00%

-0.59%
0.00%

0.00%
(.00%

2.721.86
3.008.24

(67.16)
(92,7

(0.07)
(0.05)

444.09
(15.80)

(1.15)
(1.51)

(27.88)

(0.01)

B8.28%
139.9%;

.60
-39.91%

0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%

12.75%
0.00%

-0.42%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%

19,78
428

(0.27)

(L.22)

55

(0.19)

96.60%

108.15%

-2.34%
-327%

0.00%
0.000%

15.53%
-0.55%

4%
-0.05%

180%
2 (L.00%

-0.68%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%

2.761.64

3,102.52

(66.88)
(93.94)

(007}
(0.05)

444,00
(15.90)

(115)
(1.51)

108.75

(28.0T)

{0.04)




36 Additionzl information (Cont'd)

Net Assets, i.e., total assets minus

total labilities Share in profit and loss Share in other Comprehensive income  Share in total Comprehensive income

N f the entity in th Y% of % As % i %
ame of the entity in the group As % o INR As % of INR As % ofl:onsoildnf:ed INR As % of total INR
other comprehensive comprehensive
million million

consolidated milion consolidated il
net assels profit and loss income income

Associate (accounting as per equity method)

Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited

Balance as at 31 March 2023 2.59% 63462

Balance as at 31 March 2022 3.62% 787.62

For the vear ended 31 March 2023 -5.30% (151.35) 0.00% - S530% (151.55)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 ~341% (97.83) 0.00% - -34l%y (9783)

Ten Times Online Private Limited

Balance as at 31 March 2023 0.00% -

Balance as a1 31 March 2022 0.00% %

For the year ended 31 March 2023 0.00%: - 0.00% - U0 -
For the year ended 31 March 2022 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00°a -

Truckhall Private Limited

Balance as at 31 March 2023 0.31% 79,36

Balance as at 31 March 2022 0.46% 100,98

For the year ended 3] March 2023 0.77%% {21.62) 0.00% - (.76 (21.62)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 -(,32% (9.12) 0.00% - -(132% (9.12)

Shipway Technology Private Limited

Balance as at 31 March 2023 0.63% 16442

Balance as at 31 March 2022 081% 175,77

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~01.40% (11.36) 0.00% - -1.40%, (11.36)
For the year ended 21 March 2022 -0.22% (6.22) 0.00% - 0.22% (6.22)

Agillos E-Commerce Private Limited

Balance as at 31 March 2023 0.93% 23562

Balance as at 31 March 2022 117% 254.39

For the year ended 31 March 2023 -0.68% (19.27) (L00% - D.67% (19.27)
For the vear ended 31 March 2022 -0.18% [ERAN] 0.00% - -0.18% {5.11)

Edgewise Technologies Private Limited

Balance as at 31 March 2023 (.48% 121.50

Balance as at 31 March 2022 0.61% 13241

For the year ended 31 March 2023 -0.42% (11.91) 0.00% - -0.42% (11.91)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 0.00% (0.04) 0.00% - 0.00% (0.04)

1B Monotaro Private Limited

Balance as ot 31 March 2023 3.63% 915.59

Balance as at 31 March 2022 4.77% 1,037.60

For the vear ended 31 March 2022 -4,34% (122.01) 0.00% - -4.27% (122.01)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 -0,15% (4.17) 0,00% - -0.15% (4.17)

Mobisy Technologies Private Limited (w.e.f 03 November 2022)

Balance as at 31 March 2023 1.80% 45436

Balance as at 31 March 2022 0.00% -

For the year ended 31 March 2023 -0.34% (9.34) 0.00% - -0.33% (9.54)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -

Adansa Solutions Private Limited (w.e.f 06 April 2022)

Balance asat 31 March 2023 .50% 126.01

Balance as at 31 March 2022 0,00% -

For the year ended 31 March 2023 0.41% (11.49) (1005 = -0.40% (11.49)
For the yvear ended 31 March 2022 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% -

Balance as at 21 March 2023 100.00% 2523842

Balance as at 31 March 2022 100.00% 21.762.81

‘For the year ended 31 March 2023 100.00% 281350 100.00% 4506 100.00% 2.858.96
For the vear ended 31 March 2022 100.00% 286557 F00.00% .06 100.00% 2.868.63

Adjustment arising out of consolidation

Balance as at 31 March 2023 (4.653.49)

Balance as at 3| March 2022 (3.022.28)

For the year ended 31 March 2023 24,36 - 24.3%
For the year ended 31 March 2022 1106t - L1061

Total

Balance as at 31 March 2023 20,584.92

Balance as at 31 March 2022 18.740.53

Faor the year ended 31 March 2023 283827 45.06 288333
Far the vear ended 31 March 2022 2.976.18 306 2.979.24
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(Acuwmmts i INE b, rless otherwise stigel

170 Tabilitics and

a) Contingeni Babilities
Asat Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
326 i
[EEL

{13 hcome-tan dhomand {refor notes (a0 amd {B) below )
() Service tax GST domnimd (refor e (o) hdow)

(I pespuat of Assesssent year 2006- 17, 8 demand was iised an Tokeso Online Private fnmited due o addition of meone relatmg 1o reeepts of secaritics premimm agamst share alksrment mde o indaAART foerMESH Limuesd and
aceprdinply thi bosses b be carml forwind by the Compay e boeen poducud o INE 71922 10 INE 482 07 Tax mpact e 251 7% INE 596% The matter s poadisg with CITCAppcals b The Company i comesting the demnd sl e
mumagermicain bebicves that it position 15 possible i be upheld i the appellae process. No tix cepnse has oo acersed in the comsolidatud financm stsemants for tax demmsid raisul.

(b In reipect of Assassmont year 200718, a dommd of TNR 24299 was misal on Tobess Ouline Privane Biinad due 1o adbition of teome rlating 1o rocepts of securities promim agae share allotment made o iciaMART ImeMESH
Lamited The Coumpamy s comesting the demnatd and the managoment belicees that fis position i possthlc o be uphicld m the appellate process. Mo tas expense his been acerped in the consalidated fmancial statements for s domand raisal

1) Pursane 10 the serviee e departmental sl of iodiome Tuermieds Do for e faanctal yeat 200504 10 2007 18 0Upen 30 Jure 200 71 deaiid bivbeen rised on - paymeit of seviee tag e mule 603 ol CCR, 2004 tm "Net
gam on sple of curront nvestments” of INR 1538 The Comparty has abready rocordid the peovision fr fhi sind ansout is the books of sceounts i the fnincial year 2009-20 The Compay was comtesting the afiwesiid monsd dessd
agung commmissiones (Appeals) Durng the corrent year, the onder has beon recervad reecnng the appeal and inposisg 100% posdey of TRE 15 18 The Company s i process of g dee appeal befire Tribanal agains dee onder, ol the
smpemien) budicves tar the Company’s position in the marer vall be wephle

(i) On Februry 28, 200%, o jodpmcn of te Suprome Coun ol Indin imerpreting conam stansory defiogd s hligations of crmph el canigal alvered hbnorical umidlk s of such oblipgations, limg: thews w cover
B portions of the cmploye’s meome However, the judgmenn i mot expliet i such T iy hirve r | resaling in scrcesed contribaion K et and futwre vears for cortam employoss ol |1n. Ginmip The
Croup, hasesd oas an mtermal dssessme, evaluated that there ane Hall i fhe ok ui e pudgmaent which results i mipractcabibity in estinsten of ad s ol paynsent s micunt fovlved

A i resalt of lack of fmplamsontatin goidince wd imerpeastive challages lnvtl\'ul. ﬂu:Gmm 5 unable w I'\‘hlhhf etimmte e mmom imvobval. Accordingdy. the Group shill evaluste the amount of provision, 1§ amy. on there bemng further
wlamity on the nuatier

(i) The Group is mvolvel i virious liwsuits, el amd procecdings ta seise i e ondiary conrse of bciines, e outeome of which & ooy uncertam. Some of e natives iclude speculative and frivolous Cais e subsatiol or
incheerminme amouns of damages. The Group records o lishiliey when s bots probable dian s ks Tias boen meurred el the amount can be resonshly estimated. Stgnifoam podpmen 19 regquired w dermine both proboabilay ad du
estimated aroonnd. The Managamen reviews fhese provisions and adjusts these provisions secordimgly to relloct e mpact of negotiations, seithoanes, rulings. sdvice of legal connsel, and apdatcd mfornution. The Manigement beleves that
the mioast or estimiable gy of reasonabdy possible Toss, will oot either ndsvadually or B the sgeregate. hive @ material adverse ellect on it business, Goamial prs s resubts or cash Gows of the Group, with respect o Joss contingencies for
legal ] other contingencies wsat 31 Masch 2023

{iv) The: I Parfinment bias approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 whcl would impace the contributions by the Compay fowards Provident Fid and Grauity. The ellactive daro from which the cdunges are gpplicable is yet w be
antificd and the fnal nudes are vot (o be ootificd. The Company will carry o an evalustion of the impact and record the same in the financial stajements i the period in which the Code bowmies elfoctive and the relatal mlbes are notifid

) Capital and sther commitments
- Axat 31 March 2023, the Group has Mil capeal comanstment (31 March 2022 Nil),

38 Investment in associates

The Girowap s bsvestiment sn associatis as on 31 March 2003 (Refor Node 7). The agercpte | fissancial wn respet of the Group's associates accoanted S wsing the cquity method 15 is below:

1 March 2023 1 h 2122
Carrving valug of the Group's interest in associaics L7501 4% 249027
The Grop's share m boss for the year m assocres (AT.05) (122 49y

39 Additiooal Regulatory Information

a} - Rotios
Ratia | Numeralor Denaminator Current vear Previous vear % Variance®
Current Ratio |in times) Current Assets | Curront liabilithes 276 L 2%,
Debi-Eqquity Ratio {in fimes] Total deb (ry I Hashil R liir's equity
Nute | belowy ) . 4,012 03 -26%
Debt Serviee Uoverage Ratio (in times) Esrming available for debt senee (Refer Debt Service (Refier Mote 3 balno )
Nute 2 helon ) $.43 S 1%
Interest Coverne: ratie (in fimes) Profit befone futorest. v & exceptionalf Finance cost
Hems 46 55 1338 3%
Retwra on Equity Ratio (in %) Profit ather ta. attributable i oquity Average Shircholder's Equity
shardsolders 14 43% 17 -15%
Trade Receiy ables turnover ratio {in limes) Na Cresdit sales during the year Averape rade rooeivable
14133 20k68 =S|
Trade payabiles tnroover ratho in thmes) Onhar expenisis Average rade payahle
1288 10154 22%|
Net capital turnover vatio (in tines) Revenue frim ogurations Workarig capital (Currend Asscis-
Clrrent linkalities ) 06s 1142 555,
et prafit catio ti %) Mt profil afler s [Reveme froen opezationg 28800 1950 a7
{Opernting Profis Margis ratio (in %) Profln hefore miterest, s, exceptonil e, | Revemee from operations
ather income and share in onot ks o
tssoeiales 24.00% 39.27% -39%
EBITDA Margin ratic (in %) |EBITDA (Refir Note 8 below ) Faevenmne ot uperations 1% AWBE% T
[Returs on Capital employed (ROCE) (in %a) Earniny belore imtaret and laves Capinal cmployed (Refer Noke 4 j
el ) 17 8% 200345 =)
Return on investment (RO (n %) Encume petieratad from imvested funds Averape investal Hnds i troasury
(Reia Note S below ) | investionts (Refir Note £ helow ) 4 52%, A42% 2%
Debd io EBITDA (in thmes) Tuotal debts {opresents Jease  liabilitics){ EBITDA (Refir Nedo 8 helow )
{Refer Note | bedow ) iy [N E %)
Mokes

1} Total bl represents lease Hahilities.

2) Eamning available for debi service = N Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses ke deprociation omd smorttations + Intanest + other sdjusiments Hke gain on sole of Fised ussots shival hasal eopases de.

3) Dbt senvice = Loase Pavmenis {Interest + Principaly

4) Capital Emphiyed = Total shurchokber's agquity + Defirred ts Hability + Letse Hahilities

5) s penerated From invested funds = FYTPL gain on mutual furcds, exclange traded funds, bonds, deberbures, ity of pemitive invesoneny fomds pnd investment trust = Inlerest income o Bank deposity + brlered incosme on e
oorporate deposits

4} Average invested funds in tressury investmenis = Averge of (Averape quanerly opening trasury me«lm.-mn:wl quarterly clostng trasuny investmesnts 1)

# Tregsury lvestments = Muiual finds, eochisnge traded flnsds, bonds, de ity of i Tumels anel investmeant trust -+ Inter - comwrate deposits + Bank deposiis
Th Average is caliulating bascd oo simple average u[npmlnk and &kmn!. halomeis
%) EBITDA stands for Profit hefire ineresit, tas, dep fems and other incomy
» i 4 e Juy i gt 250
= Cnrrent Ratho
The Gall in ratio is primarily on sccoun ol decrease in the curran assas &8 the Group has uilisal the i Tiguaiak i Les ke stratip which are classified in mon carmen assets (such s

vestmen in subsidiarics. associntes and oiler antities ). Further there bas been an mncrease in the current contrect lbilities.

- Debe Equity Ratio
T 11 i ratier i o account of merease mother equaty due o profits crmed durig e vesr, On the other and there 1s decrase i debt (loase linhitizes ) due o continuegs paymen and oo now major sddition w beasy linbiliny

Debi Service Coverage Ratio
The incrisise in ratio (s -on sccout of hipher amings avaflable for debt sorvice o the current year. O the other hand et ie decrase m deb (lese Hobilities) due 1o cominunes peyment and mo now magor aduition i Lease labitity,

- Met eapital turnover vatio (in times)
Encrease is un pecoun of increxse in the revenee for the year and deerease in the net woeking capital (the Group hus wtilisad the investment in Hguid instnemeits. o mike siratesic investments which are classifiad in non
current assets, such s investment in subsidines, asiociie and ot entitie)

= Net profit ratio (in %), laterest Coverage ratio (in times), Operating Profit Margio rafio (in %6} and EBITDA Margin ratio jio "o}
Dicrease is on account of increase in operating expenses ooy anployes barefit expense ) as conmparal (o inerase in revanue




Indiamart Intermesh Limited
Notes to C Financial & for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated |

39 Additional Regulatory Information
b} - Relationship with Struck off companies

i iy | 31 March 2023
S. No, | Name of the struck off company T:::::tinns Relationship | Tramsaction | Balance
L] outstanding |
Revenue and contract) Customer
| | Maharishi Charak Namral Private Limited lisbilities x =
Revenue and contract} Customer
2| Sahani Packaging Private Limited Tabilities = o
Revenue and contract) Customer
3| Kilburn Power Gear Limited liabilities = =
Revenue and contract| Customer
4 Solitude Engineering lighilities s =
Revenue and contract| Customer
51 Sumithra Ayro Foods Private Limited liabilities i i
Revenue and contract] Customer
| Jee Lighting System Private Limited liabilities - =
Revenue and contract] Customer
7| Gabbar Enterprises Private Limited !lilh tics - =
Revenue and contract| Customer
R M: | Services Privare Limited liabilitics iy e
Revenue and conmract| Customer
S New Hind Tubes Private Limited Tinbilities - =
Revenue and contract| Customer
10| Shml Infra Private Limited liabilities i Laal
Revenue and contract| Customer
11]4U formulations Private Limited liahilities af ¥
Revenue and cantract| Customer
12| Fifthridge Technology Private Limited Tiabilities = -+
Revenue and contract] Customer
13| Tocis Private Limited liabilities = s
| Revenue and contract| Customer
14} Acro Fire Solutions Private Limited liabilifies = =
Revenue and conmmact| Customer
15| Mukhi Charging Solutians (Ope) Private Limited linbilities = -
Revenue and contract] Customer
16| Subplime Are India Privite Limited linhilities e =
Revenue and contract| Customer
17] Agrono Mech Private Limited liahilities d ki
Revenue and contract] Customer
18| Pm Gapat Private Limited lighilities it '
Revenue and contradt] Customer
19} Ind Digisoft Private Limited Tiabilities Ty fes
Revenue and contract] Customer
20| Hani Homes liabilities - *
Revenue and contract] Customer
21} Pachran |Ope) Private Limited liabilities = =
Revenue and conmact) Customer
22| Ferroteal Private Limited liabilities ol -+
Revenue end contract) Customer
23| Balaj Gum India Pvi Ltd liabilities 2 ==
Revenue and contract| Customer
24 Mukund Logistics Private Limited linbilities u *
Revenue and contract| Customer
25| Shipvey Cargo (Ope) Private Limited lighilities i e
Revenue and contract| Customer
26| Osmic Glass (Ope) Private Limited liahilitics i o
Revenue and contract| Customer
27| Scundwave Technologies (Ope) Private Limited ligbilities. it *
Revenue and ustomer
28| Brikbond Online Services Private Limited liahilities i =
Revenue and contracy Customer
24| Balaji Subhas And Prabhas Private Limited liabilities = =%
Revenue and contract] Customer
30| Notion Enginecring Private Limited liabilities =1 e
lannu: ind contract] Customer
31| Fleethart Logisitics Private Limited liahilities -~ *
Revenue and contract| Customer
32| TTh Sky | ive O il Private Limited Liabilities == =
Revenue and contract| Customer
33| Hybrid Solutions India Private Limited liabilities i i
Revenue and contract| Custorher
4] Sarveon Training And Consultants Private Limited Habilities il -
Revenue and Customer
15| Shruthi Homes And Paving Blocks Private Limited Iabilities * =¥
Revenue and contract Customer
36 Altek India Private Limited linbilities Eas =¥
Revenue and contract] Customer
37| Drientech Enginecrs Pvt. Ltd. liabilities i =3
Revenie and contract| Customer
38| Protectron Electromech Private Limited liabilities * -*
Revenue and contmact] Customer
39| Edicent Quality Registrar Private Limited liabilities -+ =2
Revenue and contract] Customer
40}y Block Bearing Company Private Limited liabifities i .




Indiamart Intermesh Limited
Notes to O d Financial for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

39 Additional Regulntory Information
b} - Relationship with Struck off companies (Cont'd)

—— 31 March 2023
5. No. |Name of the struck off company :I'mmrlinns Relationship Transaction | Balance
amuunt outstanding |
Revenue and commact| Customer
41| Amisan Solutions Prvate Limited Iinbilithes -+ -~
Revenue and contract| Customer
42| Apple Insulated W ires Private Limited liahilities - =
Revenue and contract] Customer
43| Herbalife | ional [ndia Pyt Lid linhiliries i 2
Revenue and Customer
44| The By Nature Private Limited liabilities T s
Revenue and contract] Customer
45]V-Tac Infra System India Private Limited. liabilities it i
Revenue and contract] Customer
A6] Ultrachirom Innovatives Private Limited i Opc) lighilitics E 2
Revenue and conimact] Customer
47| Dvnamic R dies Put Lid linbilities - -
Revenue and contmact] Customer
48| Leo Textile Spares India {P)Ltd liabilities -® .
Revenue and contract] Customer
49| Bhumika Organic Product Private Limited liabilities 2g -
Revenue and contract] Customer
50| Unigue Compusoft Pyt Lid. lisbilities d A
Revenue and ustomer
51| Paradise Electricals (P) Lid liabilitiey i =
Revenue and contract} Customer
52| Dinora International India Private Limited lighilities it B
Revenue and contract| Customer
53| Pyrotek India Private Limited Tishilities - X
Revenue and contract| Customer
54| Mark Salutions (Ope) Private Limited liahilities i i
Reverme and contract] Customer
55| Datta Krupa Food Industries Private Limited linhilities <% -
Revenue and contract] Customer
56| Raviwell Healthcare Private Limited liabilities i Exy
Revenue and contragtj Customer
: 57| Quality Technoplus Private Limited Tiabiities - sl
R and Customer
58] Aadeshwar Herbs Private Limited liabilifies b Lo
R: and Customer
£9) Aden Oil India Private Limited lizhilities il -~
Revenue and contract| Customer
&1 Litsh Green Decor Horticulture And Landscape Privat liabilities Lag =
Revenue and contract| Customer
61] Ariz Staffing Services Private Limited liahilities = id
Revenue and contract| Customer
62| Motogo Products Private Limited liabilities 2 :
Revenue and contract] Customer
3| Rasavan Vidhi Privete Limited Tiahbilities == -~
Revenue and contract] Customer
fid | Crolssance Group Of Consulant Private Limited liahilities S 2
Revenme and contract] Customer
5| Technistar India Private Limited liabilities =2 =
Revenue and contract] Customer
66 Sadhana Infra & Peb Projects Private Limited liabilitics. -~ -
Revenue and contract) Customer
67| Audintechnik Prosolutions India Private Limited Tiabiliries =* -
Revenue and contract} Customer
% | Bhan, Hydraulics Pvt Led Trabilitics ad -'
Revenue and contract] Customer
69| Villus International (Opc) Private Limited liahilities - .
Revenue and conmact| Customer
70) Kosini Fire & Security Pvt. Lid Tiabilities = el
Revenue and contract] Customer
71| Asheasiddhi Vinayak Telecast & Teleport Private Li linbilities Chd i
Revenue and comtract] Customer
72 Abpx Pharmia Private Limited lighilities - o
R and ustomer
73| Biofix Infink Private Limited liahilities i *
Revenue and contract] Customer
74| Kazhugu Alavukol Private Limited liabilities - .
Revenue and contract] Customer
75| Leo Rayal Techserve Private Limited liabilities =3 2
Revenue and contract| Customer
76| Aloe Pharmacy Private Limited liahilities % -~
Revenue and contract| Customer
77| Navya £ ion System Private Limited liabilities - =
Revenue and contract| Customer
78| Alivesman India Private Limited liahilities i ="
Revenue ani contract| Customer
79[V Laval Engineering Private Limited liabilities i s
Revenue and contract| Customer
#i)| Advantech Crane Automation Privare Limited liabililies -l =M

ECo
A

r
o | Gogram) o

+




Indigmart Intermesh Limited
Notes to O licl I Financial 8 fTor the year ended 31 Muarch 2023
{Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

39 Additional Regulatory Information
b} = Retutionship with Struck ofl companies ( Cont'd)

Nature of 31 March 2023
5. No. | Name of the struck off company Nixsmduin Relationship Tramsaction Balanee
Rt outstandi

Revenue and contract) Customer

%1 {Vls Healthcare Private Limited liabilities - -
Revenue and contract) Customer

#2 | Mico Flow € [ ions {India) Private liahilities -' ="
Revenue and contract| Customer

%3] Rajratan Industries Private Limited finhilities iy -
Revenue and contract| Customer

44| Kuimar Ceramics Private Limited liabilities C =
Revenue and contract] Customer

5| Aspen Systems Private Limited liabilities xd =%
Reverue and contract] Custoner

46| Micrafiow Devices India Private Limited liabfiitics . .
R and Customer

87| Ad Waorldwide-Tech Co.Private Limited lizbilities = =
Revenue and contract| Customer

8| Mercatun Technology Pyt Ltd Tabilitics o i
Revenue and contract| Customer

14| Fairhomes Intenior Private Limited linhilities -~ s
Revenue and contract| Customer

40| Accu Medi Tech Private Limited liahilifies - =
Revenue and contract| Customer

51 Api Ind Private Limited liabilities % =
Revenue and contract) Customer

92| R M Retail Solutions Private Limited liahilities =t 2P
Revenue and contract) Customer

93] Appolex Road Equip Private Limited liabilities = -
Revenue and contract] Customer

94| Sha Hydraulics Private Limited tiahilities 2 i
Revenue and contract| Customer

95| Dudhi Industries Private Limited liabilities e e
Revenue and contract| Customer

46| Girirai Steels liabilities =% i
Revenue and contract| Customer

97| Jumbocdeep Adventures & Tours Pvi. Ltd, liabilities % e
Revenue and contracl| Customer

98 | Egreat Cosmo Care Private Limited Tabilities al v
and Customer

S0 Sury i P diva Services Private Limited liabilities chd il
Revenue and contrace) Customer

|11 Alte Malta India Private Limited liabilities ai tad
Revenue and contract] Customer

101§ Axeel Adomn Privote Limited lighilities =2 Cad
Revenue and contract| Customer

102 Seven Plus Infra Private Limited lighilities. o, et
Revenue and contract| Customer

103 [ Shanvi Fmoy Industries Private Lunited liahilities =¥ o
Revenue and contract| Customer

104} Sathi Battery Pyt Lid. liabilities i Bl
Reverme and contract| Customer

105 | Medivantis Pharma Private Limited liakilities = o
Revenue and contract| Custamer

106 Koks Technology Private Limited ab i ”
| Revenue and contract| Customer

107 | Shree Murugs Consumer Products Private Limited liabilities ik 2
Revenue and contract) Customer

108 | Motexo Ol India (Ope) Private Limited liahilities i G
Revenue and contract] Customer

104 Gstek Plastcon Private Limited tiabilities - ik
Revenue and contract] Customer

LIO[B Services Privale Limited linbilities 2 sl
Revenue and contract| Customer

111| Nature Bec Products Private Limited liahilities =% =
Revenue and contract] Customer

112 Pfe Clothing Private Limited liahilities = .
Revenue and contract| Customer

113] Sausha RE&ED Private Limited liabilities sk i
Revenue and contract| Customer

114] Optotec Electronics Private Limited liahilities <% e
Revenue and contract| Customer

115} Vegavan Private Limited liabilitics - -
| Revenue and contract| Customer

116 Everything Services Private Limited Tinbilities - a
Revenue and contract) Customer

117 Finfreely Home Serviees Private Limited liabilithes o =¥
Revenue and contract] Customer

118} Fk Digitech (Ope) Private Limited lighilitics = -
Revenue and contract] Customer

119| Perfect Agrochem Privite Limited liabilities - -
Revenue and contract| Customer

12| Sri Pack Packing Machi Private Limited liabilities i <t
Revenue and contract| Customer

121 Hilm Imagineering Private Limited liabilities el o
Revenue and contract} Customer

122| Mg Krushi Dhan Agrotech Private Limited liabilifics o s
Revenue and conimact] Customer

123| Expert Engi For You Private Limited liabilities = Gl




Indiamart Intermesh Limited
Notes to C lidated Fi al § for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amounts in INR million, snless otherwise stated)

39 Additional Regulatory Information
b} - Relutionship with Struck off companies (Cont'd)

31 March 2023
5. Nu. | Name of the struch of7 company ?::::;Lm Relationship Transaction | Balance

Revenue and contract] Customer

124 | Black Empire Private Limited liabilitles L y
Revenue and contract Customer

125| First Choice Machinery India Private Limited liahilities =t =
Revenue and eontractf Customer

126 Wali Technesoft Private Limited liabilities s s
Revenue and contract| Customer

127| Adrmanik Fashion Private Limiterd liabilities = u
Revenue and contract| Customer

1 28| Cartomax |.ubricants Private Limited | ligbilities ad T
Revenue and contract| Customer

124 Ritajva Industry Private Limited liabilities ek -
Revenue and contract] Customer

1.30] Tanushri Soap Ocean (Ope) Private Limited lighilities - b
Revenue and contract Customer

131 Lemison Laundry Equipment Private Limited lighilities tas =
Revenue and Customer

132 | Dizzart Flooring Private Limited liabilities - g
Revenue and contract] Customer

133 Nizamis Exim Private Limited liahilities e By
Revenue and contract| Customer

1 14| Kmr Socks Privaie Limited liabiitics s -
Revenue and contract| Customer

1 35| Mechwing Engineering And Services Private Limited lishilithes i -
| Revenue and contract| Customer

136 E-Systems Techno Private Limited liabilithes = o
Revenue and contract] Customer

137| Aps Equipments Private Limited liahilitics -* il
Revenue and comtract) Customer

1.3%) Greenhandle Products Private Limited liabilities - -*
Revenue and ustamer

139 Spine Care Medical Instruments Private Limited liabilities i i
Revenue and contract| Customer

140 Amso Pharma Private Limited liabilities = Eas
Fevenue and contract) Customer

141 | Stariife Enterprises India Private Limited liabilities - Cad
Revenue and eontract| Customer

142{ Ge Furn Solutions Private Limited linbifities Sin i
Revenue and contract] Customer

143 Connectia Tech Services Private Limited liahilitics -~ s
Reverme and contract] Customer

144 | Praver Export Private Limited Tiabilities e i
Revenue and contracti Customer

145 Eurcsia Irrigatiom Systems Private Limited lizhilities =* =
Revenue and Custamer

146| Maxin Hydro Dynamic India Private Limited liabilities e -
Revenue and contract| Customer

147| Taamini Crop Science Private | imited fiabilitics - s
Revenue and contract| Customer

148|Vikas Scientific Instruments Private Limited lighilities s -
|Revenue and contract| Customer

149 | Lorman Kitchen Equip Private Limited liabilities i il
Revenue and contract| Customer

150 Nathanz Chemicals Private Limited linbilities e =
Revenue and contract| Customer

151]Jud Technosofi Private Limited linbilities s s
Revenue and contract] Customer

152]Ip Energry Systems {India} Private Limited liahilities -2 ol
Revenue and Customer

153| Rajlalita Chemicals Private Limited linhilities e Fad
Revenve and contract] Customer

154| Nesa Radiation Solutions Private Limited liahilities s A
Revenue and contract} Customer

1 55| First Office Solutions India Private Limited liahilities =» e
Revenue and contract| Customer

156/ Prodigy Secure India Private Limited liabilities i i
Revenue and contract| Customer

157| Supreme Relinble Retail Private Limited lighilitics - s
Revenue and contract| Customer

158 Hattip Indin Private Limited Tiabilities =~ .
Revenue and contract| Customer

159)] Kirchen Aids Distributors Private Limited liabilities - i
Revenue and contract| Customer

160 Eon Interior Products Private Limited |lisbilities i =
Revenue and contract] Customer

161 ) Crown Filtech Pvt, Ltd. lighilities =i mi
Revenue and contract] Customer

162} Ade Courier & Cargo Services Private Limited liabilities . -
Revenue and contract| Customer

163) Infi ics E-Tech (India) Ld liabilities . Z
Revenue and contract] Sharcholders#

164 Rishiroop Polvmers Private Limited liabilities = =
Revenue and contract] Shareholders !

165| Puran Associates Private Limited liabilities




Indigmart Intermesh Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

(Anounts in INR million. unless otherwise stated)

39 Additionsl Regulatory Information
by - Relationship with Struck off companies (Cont'd)

31 March 2022

liabilities

5.No. | Name of the struck off company ‘:::E::Dm Relationship Transation llalnnn:‘

1|50 Fabs Kitchen Equipment Private Limited :?ﬂl“l‘i.::“d gt Cugtopur = =

2| o Crancs Private Limited E;Egganﬁ contract | Customer - M

3| Kumar Ceramics Private Limited ::;E\t:l;and e s . -

4| Aspen Svstems Private Limited ::;;‘ll;;nm Shint, nine = -

5| Vikas Scientific Instruments Privare Limited :a:m(:and | - -

#| Mars Sterile Solutions Private Limited E:;;:.':"d contemt | Crtoer - -

7|F + Embed Technalogies Private | imited :::;';i":j';‘“d D | e = =

& Nircatia Fachifon Betiate Linsitad ::;;::::m contract | Customer . .

4| Lemison Laundry Equipment Private Limited :;ﬁ:i:m e b - =
10 Lorman Induction Technology Private Limited fl:;mam! Fayihas, | S . -
I 1| Advantech Crane Automation Privale Limited ;T:;;:::;BM comtrget | Custoymes = o
12| Giriraj Steels Private Limited ;::;;:i';”’d i d Lo g i 2
13| First Office Solutions India Private Limited Fuslomer m .
14| Mollimax Suppliers Private Lirmited Eﬂb;’;::'“d sonlint | Comptnos = =
15] Sunflower Natural Perfume Private Limited :.‘;;';;""d vontract | Cagomer i i
16| Woman Arts Food Private Limited :;;';';m i . la
17 A OF Masale Foods Private Limited ryorgme e -
18| Ratnaprava Industries Private Limited }::i:;;:i';md oputzact | Gustomer - =
19] ps Equipmenes Private Limted ie;:mu;md contract | Customer 5 i
20| Lco Royal Techserve Private Limited :::;ﬂ?;md eonimact | Customer » Iy
21| Aditya Inkjet Technologics Private Limited :am?;“d SgAe s Casuney = L
22| Mereatum Technology Private Limited r;;m:m contract | Custormer I I
23| Rajaratna Industries Private Limiited sdvmeaaiag Bl ly
24| Micro-Flow Contamination Solutions (India) Privare Limited ::;'E:‘l’;w contract | Customer = I~
25] Sun Spors Private Limited il il B
26| Maitri Infosoft Private Limited -::::iel:?:snd conimct | Cusiomer - -
27|R. M. Retail Solutions Private Limited o I 5
28| Navya Automation System Private Limited ::am“"d Snpmet | Customer = I
241 Alba Nova Life Science Private Limited ::E:Ti:';m centract | Cusiomer . -
30| Supreme Reliable Retail Private Lirmited o g sl =
31| Ashwattha Enterprises Private Limited E:;;:‘:; sk | Cuslimper g iz
32| E-Systems Techno Private Limited ﬁ:’;:.ﬂ';m oomteact | Customer . .
31| Dev Electromedical Private Limited e = =
34| Aster Automotive Private Limited [urAm Rl awns | »
15| Hottip India Private Limited Emmd Samiract) Clateesy - -
16| Safezonee Enviro Engineers Private Limited :f:;:::;md St Cuuiisy . .
37| Agi Industrics Private Limited Semmicwsones |, -
38| Crown Filtech Private Limited FEyemse gl coNracy Gt . 5




Indiamart
Notes to €

Intermesh Limited

lidated Fi al for the vear ended 31 March 2023
(Amounts in INR million, unless atherw ise stated)

39 Addit

b

b} - Relationship with Struck ofl companies (Cont'd)

3 March 2822

Nature of Transaction | Balance
No. it g |
S.No. | Nume of the struck off company o T— Relationship | outstanding
19| Ip Energy Systems India Private Limited Rﬂ.. 3 Al omiEraet  Cusstonier

Iibilities i o
40 [ Mahavir Inteniors & Projects Private Limited R“.'mf'c MRl Eairet) | CUstifer

lighifities . -*
41| Atharva Industrial Equipments Private Limited Ffwlcl.iyund aantoaet[E-cmicemen

Liayilithes = i

. . . Revenue and eontract | Customer
2 ) .
42| Fire Engitech Private Limited liabilitics g -
43| Taamini Crop Science Privare Limited Rﬂ-_em.nz e [ = L

labilities ! K

44} Sidhi Vinayak Footwears Private Limited Rm‘m M contiact [ ustomer
< liabilities =+ -
45) Appolex Road Equipments Private Limited Revonost it ] cuig

liabilitics 3¥ Sl
46| Nizami'S Exim Private Limited Rumu‘ A Smtract | Cutomer o

liabilities ’ s

S . s Revenue and contract | Customer
47 '3 Priv
Nathanz Chemicals Private Limited liabilities - ¥
48| Starfife Enterprises India Private Limited Reverie it vnteact; s

liabilities - el
44| Maanam Corporation (Ope) Private Limited R“m il Cumomr -

liahilities - .
0| Imersaftkk (India) Private Limited Reveniiesand conract: Cuistoter 2

lizbilities - .
$1{ Visaag Technologies Private Limited Revomemd eosract Qustomer. || .

lighilities > =
52| Fairhones Interior Private Limited RS snd boo et | Cuyioing .

liabilities S il
53| 2-Axis Decars Private Limited Eoxmpus e conta | fSmiamer

liabilities - =

y . . Revenue and contract | Customer
54| Aguaz Water P Limited s
Y Ve liabilities . id
55| Sharmils Manpower Solutions Private Limited :?:;""'“ ik oommrat, | Cuseuni: s 4
: . . Rev and conttact | Customer
S|V ¢ ¥ 2
6| Venerate Exports Private Limited iabslities - -
57| Midshiprite Recruiters Private Limired it e N be
P T Revenue and contract | Customer
58| Alen Fab Private Limite. i
rivite Liny iabilitics Ui %
59| Jacob And Sans Tradin Private Limited ﬁm; and contract Crstomer, r .
4 : i Revenue and contract | Customer
i) Velly P des Private Limited Al
Gireen Velly Pesticides Private fiabilities » 2
61| Virsun Onganic India Private Limited s i

liabilities i -~
62| Axelerant Infra {India) Private Linited e oot | Cauioiue i i

liabilities - =
63| 1savin Technologies Private Limited :::::;:sm Ll B B .

s s s Revenue and contract | Customer
64| Se Consultancy Private Limited Jiabilitics » 5
65| Taral Pharma Machinery Private Limited Revemuoand ceirasd [Cysiomer -

Tiahilities S el
66| Tera Ventura Agro And Testiles Private Limited ::b‘]'ﬂhl‘lui;m contract |Custamer " -
67| Dinora International India Private Limited le.c!“." ]

liabilities 2 =
68| Stiri Laxmi Chemicals And Industries Private Limited ::;;:'J‘:"‘“ Sonbmet |Comtomizr ] ”
9| Biofix Infiniumz Private Limited E:"';;:.'::"d Y LA i %
70| Aasara Pre-Fab Private Limited Re\mne and G >

liabilities : =
71| Hansru Industries Private Limited Reyoue ind eaitfact | Ouioensy

liabilities = =
72| Informatics E-Tech (India) Limited Bienuc tnd-conteatt | Ciicnir "

linbifities o =
73| Diamenia Jewels Private Limited '.ln.=. x and ch | Camtonee . .

liabilities = s
74| Sapphire Industrial Products Privase Limited i i .

lighilities i -~
75| Aasthaa Airtech Private Limited Reveuiie au onirac | Cuctrer .

liabilities £ Ca

. s Revenuc and contract | Customer
T6|5 Transp: Private Limited P
i i liabilities s &
77| Yo Dry Fruits Private Limited Pltg\'_e!u.:e and confeast | Cush " %

liabilities # e
75| Green Handle Products Private Limited e b connadt | Cetormer .

liabilities = -
74| $ha Hydraulies Private Limited Kosiatue: i ontict | Caaticiay ’ B

liabilities - =
40| Prinz Infosof Systems Private Limited Revenosaid copeet | Custome: .

ligbilities = it
#1| Connectia Tech Services Private Limited Al and contract | Cusk = =

liabifiries - .




Indiamart Intermesh Limited
Notes o O lidated Fi il 8§ for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Amounts in INR million. unless otherwise stated)

39 Additional Regulatory Information
bt} - Refationship with Struck off companies (Cont'd)

31 March 2022
Nature of Transaction | Balance
No. | N: f the struck off i [} i
Eo. | Nawme o TUCR QT eompany Transactions Relutionsliip amouni outstanding
2| Acen Meditech Private L imited Reyrmuie st ot [ Cimomer I .
linbilities = -
®3| Access 1 Solution Digital Marketing Private Limited :?:;-;::u:;and iy [ - e
%4 | Panscea Narural Greens India Private Limited RE\'.EI..'M Al comivack JCuetngs -
liabilities = =
85| hazhuge Alavukol Private Limited e and comtrao | Cistomer 5 i
lisbilities + -
2 v Revenue and contract | Customer
Kb [ Abpx Pharma Private Limited liabilities o i
47| Beetair Solutions Private Limited Rnum: W vy | Cos iy
lighilities = e
58| Aloe Pharmacy Private Limited Revenue and contract | Customer -= -
9| Sant Krupa Steel India Private Limited Revesue ad contzact, | Customer "
libilitics = =
90| Eurosia Irrigation Systems Private Limied R:\enne A ot st . .
linbilities
91|K_ 8. R. Brothers Private Limited BRI R, | ity N
liabilities %
42| Jumboodeep Adventures & Tours Private Limited E:‘b';'_‘!{i‘;'“" Fontrae | Canier . .
93| Exhicon World Exhibit Private Limited [Ressuse il Copat | Cvietor R 3
liabilities . e
94| Maxin Hydro Dynamic India Private Limited i e and antract | Cimstomer. . &
- R s Revenue and contraet | Customer
95 Nesa Radiation Solutions Private Limited Jisbilities - =
96| Byr Toys And Furnitures Private Limited E.l“.ﬂ.“.“ | b - "
liabilitics - .
97|35 Hawkers Indin Privae Limited Beenin SdRomrest | stomc
liabilities bl ==
" 4 2 o Rew omer
9% | Saral Filteration Private Limited oAl e 12 % %
liabilities. = -
99| Embassy Stones Private Limited Rumu’t A= Capner . 4
liahilities x #
100|Lav] Automotive India Private Limited Hevetie A o) | Cunpmer
liahilities e o
101 | R Tex Spin Mach Private Lid. e ."nd ct | Customer > l
liabilities 3 -
102 | Aans Creative Studio Opic Private Limited P'.n'lu‘n.:eand exmract | Coat
liabilitics B =
1031 P. Fabricators & Enginecrs {Gajarat) Private Limited ]"‘m“]“m“’i;m seliadt]| Cuigiartien = g
104| Mszda Agericies Private Limlied REvEnCan) chamAc | st . .
liahilities -
105 | Manmohan Marketing Private Limited F.(w_’f“." il ccusiit | Chastpirier - &
liabilities & -
106| Vacatio Leisures Private Limited R{vm and o | Cystomicr
Tiabilities ol <
107 |Fast Care India Pest Contral Private Limited Revene iiul contract | Customer . -
lighilitics
108 | Fannar Exim Private Limited Rc\ﬂ:uc and et | Cuglomies =
liabitities S =*
109| Microsidd India Private Liniiied Revosueand conmct | Cemme . B
linhilities
110/ Infraswave Hes Private Limited i s 15l
lizhilities ) "
111 |Disti inlin) Private Limited Rovewicondcontit |Cawomer. || )
lighilities £
112| Dia Oversess Privare Limited Revonkia I comtract | Custonies
liabilities = e
i . i Revenue and contract | Customer
1
113| Bizkraft Concepts Private Lumited Habilities & e
14| Primero Meditech Private Limited Reverie and copiract | Chistomer )
liabilities i -
113{ Grey Bos Technologics Private Limited e —— .
v i Revenue and contract | Customer
L16| Purofyhealth Private Limited isbilitics ” o
117| Aplast Intemational Private Limited Revenue arid contract | Customier -
ligbilities < -*
118} Axiomata Elevators Private Limited '?nﬁnfl”nd e e 4 , &
linbilities £ =
119{ Amruta Pharmaceutical Private Limited e . i
liabilities - #
120| Luxonan Corporate Services Private Linvited F.‘ﬂ'.e!“.m i
linbilities - =
2 " . 2y Revenue and contract | Customer
3 .
121| Tgs Vertical Transportation Private Limited Hiabiliti - L
: s Revenue and contract | Customer
o
122| Gde Agro Foods Private Limited Jiabilities £ I
: s . Revenue and contract | Customer
23 :
123| Purplepro It Solutions India Private Limited ik it - "
124| Telesis Consultancy Services Private Limited R evenule ard eontract [Customer
liahilities = -
125| Tot'Strunk Private Limited ey pactoouack [ Kiutamer " &
liabilities 4 -
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39 Additional Regulatory Information

b} - Relatl

lanship with Struck off companies (Cont'd)

[

31 March 2022

MNature of Transuction Balance
S.No, | Name of the strock off company v ——_— Relationship Iamnunl outstandin
. : i Revenue and contract | Customer
3 A :
126{ Goeco Solar Fower Private Limired labilitie g s
127 Vividia Arts Private Limited foeneadama Quomer |, 1
linhilities - <
12| Steiker Security Services Privite Limited Rieveus and:contract | Cyrmigmer " L
liabilities - +
o " ’ o { ol eomt Y
1249| Heritage Manufacturing Company Private Limited ::;;i"“?;an cll i »
130| Brivon Pharmatee Private Limited S , 4
Tabilities - 2
131{D1 Engineering And Constructions |Ope) Private Limited :?i.:‘ml:;and Romtact | Cigontes - o
132 Incon Technologies Private Limited Rnﬂ“ and contyact | Custamice = -
lishilities i ~
133 Eleczio (Ope) Private Limited k iy .“nd sontazt | Castomer - %
liabilities + 2
. " - Revenue and contra N
134 Lunatic Craftwork Private Limited kbR contract | Customer - *
liahilities : s
135 | Akara Exisn Private Limited Revenhe and comract | Customer " -
labilities. 2 i
136| Ovata Seal Construction Private Limited i T 9 .
137| Dpass Multi Solutions Private Limited :::":“:_";"‘“ contract | Custamer s i
13| Srrwsisn Manufacture Private Limited Revenue and contract | Customer i
liahilities -~ +
139| Gintara Private Limited Reveimpgne conrdis (Cuggmer = 2
liabilities 5 +
. St Revenue and contract | Customier
140} Solsun Power (Ope) Private Limited liabilitics i (&
¢ i Revenue and contract | Customer
141 | Ashwanthana Private Limited Jiabilities - -
142| Abba Cure & Care Private Limited Revonoe sl cctbeact| Ciagguer " .
lighilities = =
v Lot g and N
143| Dream Success Inframart Private Limited Rﬂm oomitact | Cosomer » .
liabilities g -
144| We Sprout Landscapers (Ope) Private Limited Reveane and contract | Customer = r
lighilitics. i =
145 Ab Brothers Private Lirmites (Ope Reyomoeand somtrat | Cotomer || R
146 Nlive Electronics India Private Limited Cusigme i A
147| Clarismant Technologies Private Limited leerenand oot Qupomee: | L .
liahilities 7 =
148|Kings And Queens Impex Private Limited (Ope) :;E:u;m i L I »
149 | Majesty Aaron Elevators Indin Private Limited I.‘w.:!“.l: ok ot | Custorner & -
lighilithes = -
150| Alfiatech Thermal Engineers Private Limited F;;:;““" ooataet Coames Il W
F x .. Revenue and contraet | Customer
<k
151 | Kagazi Crafis Private Limited liabilitics - -
¥ : P Revenue and contract | Customer
152{Oum Sound & Acoustic Private Limited fiabilities - )
153 | Seastar Watersport Products Private Limited E:;::‘:;md i, |0 - L
) . i Revenue and contract | Customer
s y
154 Jingea Art Private Limited liabilitics . -
15| Naksh Technologies Private Limited Ravenie andioonmag) |Custime: B .
liabilities = h
156{ Rrootofly Online Services Private Limited RévCaife aid oy | st || 5
Tiabilities = #
157| Rubsicon Ro Private Limited Rcvenu: and contract | Customer ) .
liabilities - e
. i - — Reverue and contract | Customer
158] Agua Purity Industries Private Limited Jiabilitics - -4
159| Puran Associates Private Limited - Shareholders # |- -
160] Avanti Realtors Private Limited = Sharcholders # |- -
161 | Rishiroop Polvmers Pvt Lid Shareholders # -
162 | Ratna Commenrvial Enterprises Pvi Lid Shareholders # -

# Less than INR 100 Million.

# Shareholders means persons holding the securities of the Company.
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40 Events after the reporting period

a)  The Group has evaluated all the subsequent events through 28 April 2023, which is the date on which these

hidated financial were zsued. and no events have occurred from the balance sheet date through that date

except for matters that have already been

by Dividend

Dividend declared by the Company is based on the profit available for distribution. On 28 April 2023, the Board of Directors of the Company have propased a final dividend of INR 20 - per share in respect of the year ended 11

March 2023

¢}  Bonus issue

On April 28, 2023, the Board of Directors of the Company proposed issuance of 1:1 bonus shares on fully paid equity shares having face value of INR 10 per shave, subject to approval of the sharehalders. In the event of approval by
the sharcholders of the proposed Bonus issue, post adjusting for this Bonus issue, the Basic Earnings per equity share would have been INR 46.48 per share and INR 4591 per share for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022 respectively, and Diluted Earings per equity share would have been INR 46,12 per share and INR 48 42 per share for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 respeetively.

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co, LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No, 101248W/W-100022
°

or
Kanika Kohli
Partsier
Membership No.: 511565
Place: Gurugram

Date: 28 April 2023

Far and an behallof the Board of Direciorgal’
IndiaMART InterMESH Limited 4/

DIN:OD TS TE00

& Ll ‘

Prateek Chandra oj Bharga
(Chiel Financial Officer) (Company Secretary)

Place: Noida
Date: 28 April 2023




BSR&Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Building No.10,12th Floor, Tower-C, Telephone: +51 124 719 1000
DLF Cyber City, Phase-l, Fax: +91 124 235 8613

Indepencent Auditors Report

To the Members of IndiaMART InterMESH Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the standalone financial statements of IndiaMART InterMESH Limited (the “Company”)
which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the standalone statement of profit
and loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in equity and
standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its profit and
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue Recognition - Web Services

See Note 2.3(c) and 19 to the standalone financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company generates revenue primarily | In view of the significance of the matter, we applied
from web services and follows a prepaid model | the following audit procedures in this area, among
for its business. others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence:

i. We assessed the appropriateness of the
revenue recognition accounting policy and
its compliance with applicable accounting

Revenue from web services is recognised over
the period of the contract as and when the
Company satisfies performance obligations by

Registerad Office:
B S R & Co. (& partnership firm with Registration No. BAG61223) converted inlo B S R & Co. LLF (a 14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco Q
Limited Liability P: hip with LLP Reqi No. AAB-B181) with effect from October 14, 2013 Center, Westem Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400063 G mgram
28} U
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
IndiaMART InterMESH Limited

actually rendering the promised services to its standards.

customers.

These services are delivered using IT systems i. We  evaluated the design and
which manage very high volume on daily basis implementation of key internal financial
and generate reports from which the Company controls and operating effectiveness of the
recognises revenue, and hence there is relevant key controls with respect to
inherent risk around the existence and existence and accuracy of revenue
accuracy of revenue recognition. recognition on selected transactions.

We have identified revenue recognition from

web services as a key audit matter because of iii. We, with the involvement of IT specialists,
the significance of web services revenue to the evaluated the design, implementation and
financial statements and its recognition based operating effectiveness of management's
on high volume of data generated by internal IT general IT controls and key application
systems. controls over the Company's IT systems

which govern revenue recognition, including
access controls, controls over program
changes and interfaces between different
systems.

iv. We selected a sample of transactions using
statistical sampling and performed tests of
details including reading the contract,
identifying performance obligation and its
link with actual rendition to assess whether
the criteria for revenue recognition are met.

v. We tested completeness and accuracy of
web services revenue and collection from
underlying relevant source documents
generated by IT systems with accounting
system.

vi. We assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
the standalone financial statements.

Valuation of investments in subsidiaries, associates and other entities

See Note 7 and 8 to the standalone financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company has significant investments in | In view of the significance of the matter, we applied
subsidiaries, associates and other entities | the following audit procedures in this area, among
amounting to INR 6,507.01 Million, INR | others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence:
2,552.97 Million and INR 1,661.60 Million

respectively, as at 31 March 2023. k. We ewded ‘he: design and

T —
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
IndiaMART InterMESH Limited

implementation and also tested the

Management keeps track of all investments in operating effectiveness of key internal
reference to their financial performance. In financial controls implemented by the
addition, management also performs: Company in relation to the valuation of

investments in subsidiaries, associates and

i. Review of indicators of impairment (if ST St

any) on investments in subsidiaries

and associates at regular intervals ii. We evaluated the Company's valuation
and performs impairment testing if methodology applied in determining the fair
any indicators are noted. value (“recoverable amount”) in accordance

with relevant applicable Ind AS. Further, we
also assessed the objectivity and
independence of the Company’s specialists
involved in the valuation process.

ii. Fair valuation of investments in other
entities which are measured at fair
value through profit and loss
(“FVTPL").

Significant judgements are involved to
determine the key assumptions used for the
purpose of impairment testing/ fair valuation,
such as revenue growth, discount rates, etc.

iii. We evaluated the appropriateness of
assumptions around the key drivers of the
cash flow forecasts such as revenue growth
rates and terminal growth rate.

The aforesaid activity of impairment testing/ fair iv. We also assessed the valuation
valuation is highly dependent on the methodology for recent market transactions
assumptions and other inputs considered to and key assumptions adopted in the cash
carry out such activity. flow forecasts considering current economic

scenario, including retrospective reviews to
We have identified valuation of investments in prior year's forecasts against actual results.
subsidiaries, associates and other entities as

key audit matter because of the complexity V. rhvee engaged valuation specialists to assess

involved in determination of key assumptions
and judgements for the purpose of impairment
testing/ fair valuation of respective
investments.

appropriateness of valuation
methodology and market driven
assumptions used for assessment of the
valuation of investments.

vi. We tested the arithmetical accuracy of the
maodels.

vii. We assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
the standalone financial statements,
including disclosures of key assumptions,
judgements and sensitivities.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we co hat there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that nothing to report in
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this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up te of our auditor’s
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report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements - Refer income tax liabilities disclosed in the
balance sheet along with Note 26 and Note 35 to the standalone financial statements.

b. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
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Refer Note 15 to the standalone financial statements.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Note 12(2) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 12(2) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (*Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,

contain any material misstatement.

e. The final dividend paid by the Company during the year, in respect of the previous year ended 31
March 2022, is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of
dividend. As stated in Note 39 to the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors of
the Company has proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the
members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance with
Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

f.  As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.
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C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

o

Kanika Kohli

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 511565
Date: 28 April 2023 ICAI UDIN:23511565BGYGHN9619
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of IndiaMART InterMESH Limited for the year ended
31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i) (b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in every three years. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment
were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) (@) The Company is a service company, primarily rendering e-marketplace services for business
needs, which acts as an interactive hub for domestic and international buyers and suppliers.
Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order
is not applicable.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
ofthe records of the Company, the Company has made investments and granted unsecured
loans to companies and other parties in respect of which the requisite information is as below.
The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature
of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other
parties during the year. The Company has not made any investments in firms and limited liability
partnership.

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans to other parties as below:
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of IndiaMART InterMESH Limited for the year ended
31 March 2023 (Continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

(f)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

Particulars Loans (Amount in INR
Million)

Aggregate amount during the year
-Others 8.92

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
-Others 5.20

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made during the year and the terms and
conditions of the grant of loans provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the
interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been
regular. Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given, Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any
party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan falling due during the year, which has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to
same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided guarantees or
securities, as specified under section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Company
has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to
investments made. The Company has not provided any loan, security and guarantees as
specified under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by the Company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

ur examination
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of IndiaMART InterMESH Limited for the year ended
31 March 2023 (Continued)

(b)

of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax ('GST'),
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other
statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or
Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Services Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of the Amount (INR Period to Forum where
statute dues Million) which the dispute is
amount pending
relates

Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 2.96* | 2009-10 High Court-

1961 Delhi

Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 0.26* | 2012-13 Commissioner

1961 of Income Tax
Appeals

Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 3.03* | 2016-17 Commissioner

1961 of Income Tax
Appeals

Finance Act, | Service Tax 6.78 | 2006-07 to | CESTAT

1994 2011-12

Finance Act, | Service Tax 1.30 | 2013-14 to | Commissioner

1994 2015-16 of GST&
Central Excise

Finance Act, | Service Tax 30.76 | 2013-14 to | Commissioner

1994 2017-18 of GST &
Central Excise

*Represents amount adjusted with brought forward losses/ unabsorbed depreciation in the demand orders
calculated basis the applicable tax rate of respective years.

(viii)

(x) (@)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company did not have s or borrowings from any

Page 10 of 15
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of IndiaMART InterMESH Limited for the year ended

31 March 2023 (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

() (@)

(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

(c)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

lender during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or
associates as defined under the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the funds raised by way of private
placement of shares during the year ended 31 March 2021 of INR 10,511.99 Million (net of
related expenses of INR 189.67 Million) have been utilised for purposes for which such funds
were raised. Out of these proceeds, the Company has utilized INR 10,138.43 Million as at March
31, 2023 towards purposes specified in the placement document. The remaining proceeds of
INR 373.56 Million have temporarily been invested in liquid instruments.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

d till date for the period
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of IndiaMART InterMESH Limited for the year ended
31 March 2023 (Continued)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx) ()

(b)

under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project other than
ongoing projects. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred the unspent amount to a Special
Account within a period of 30 days from the end of the financial year in compliance with Section
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of IndiaMART InterMESH Limited for the year ended
31 March 2023 (Continued)

135(6) of the said Act.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

oW
Kanika Kohli
Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 511565
Date: 28 April 2023 ICAI UDIN:23511565BGYGHN9619
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial
statements of IndiaMART InterMESH Limited for the year ended
31 March 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of IndiaMART
InterMESH Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2023, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”").

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Q’ '(
@ )
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the standalone financial
statements of IndiaMART InterMESH Limited for the year ended

31 March 2023 (Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

(b

Kanika Kohli

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 511565
Date: 28 April 2023 ICAI UDIN:23511565BGYGHN9619
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IndiaMART InterMESH Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
(Amount in INR million, unless etherwise stated)

As at As at
Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Assers
Non-current asscts
Property, plant and equipment 4 11831 3027
Capital work m progress 4 1.77 177
Right-of-use assets 5 412.60 52843
Intangible assets b 097 1.63
Investment in subsidiaries and associates 7 886449 2,691.22
Financial assets
(1) Investments 8 1,.B57.10 1,768.65
(i) Loans 8 0.84 0.74
(i11) Other financial asscts # 4067 39.02
Deferred tax assets (net) 26 19,00 -
Non-current lax assels (net) 18 65.449 23191
Other non-current assets I 0.54 24.98
Total Non-current assets 11,381.78 5318.62
Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Investments 8 21.519.68 2299411
(il) Trade receivables 9 15.82 13.26
(iti) Cash and cash cquivalents 10 501.09 452 7R
{1v) Bank balances other than (i1i) above 10 1.66 27277
(v) Loans 8 4,36 447.68
(vi) Other financial assets 8 134.69 106,86
(ther current asscts 11 47.30 43.52
Total Current assets 22,224.60 24,330.98
Total Assets 33,606.38 29.649.60
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share capital 12 30579 30553
Other equity 13 20,338.31 18.615.88
Total Equity 20,644.10 18,921.41
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 15 340.28 46139
(11} Other {inancial liabilities 15 50.50 -
Contract labilities 17 415224 331519
Provisions 16 184.31 226.12
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 26 - 15642
Total Non-current liabilities 4,727.33 4,160.12
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease habilities 15 118.80 100.41
(ii) Trade payvables 14

(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 5 -

(h) total putstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises 254.79 182.96
(iii) Other financial labilities 15 218.04 19429
Contract liabilities 17 T191.74 5,750.78
Other current linbilities 17 34922 290,16
Provisions 16 66,53 4947
Current tax liabilitics (net) 35.83 -
Total Current liabilities 823495 6.568.07
Total Liabilities 12,962.28 10,728.19
Total Equity and Liabilities 33.606.38 29,649.60

Summary of significant accounting policies

(F]

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements,

As per our report of even date

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No.: 101 248W) W-100022

NAY;

For and un hehalf of the Board of D
IndiaMART InterMESH lened

Kanika Kohli Dinesh
Partner {Managing l.)| J CE{)}
Membership No.: 511565 00191800
N
Place: Gurugram @W /:
Date: 28 April 2023 rJL
k Chandra

{Chief Financial Officer)

Place: Noida
Date: 28 April 2023




IndiaMART Inter MESH Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Income:

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses:

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Proft before exceptional items and tax

Exceptional items
Impaiment of investment
Proft before tax

Income tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax

Total tax expense

Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans

Income tax effect

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share:

Basic earnings per equity share (INR) - face value of INR 10 each
Diluted earnings per equity share (INR) - face value of INR 10 each

Summary of significant accounting policies

For the year ended

For the yvear ended
31 March 2022

7,507.70
1.078.60

8,586.30

2.628.47
54.02
119.01
1,758.31

4,559.81

4,026.49

4,026.49

980.47
(52.22)

928.25

3,008.24

5.72
(1.44)

4.28

4.28

3,102.52

Notes 31 March 2023

19 9.388.17
20 1.128.83
10,517.00
2] 3.992.19
22 46.79
23 192.68
24 2,779.76
7,011.42
3,505.58
7 52,61
3.452.97
26 919.91
26 (188.80)
731.11
2,721.86
53.16
26 (13.38)
39,78
39.78
2.761.64

25
89,14
88.84

2

101.83
100.81

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101248W/ W-100022

Kanika Kohli
Partner

Membership No.: 511565

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 April 2023

DIN:00191800

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

QM'“GQM‘}V%

Prateek Chandra

(Chief Financial Officer)

Place: Noida
Date: 28 April 2023




IndiaMART InterMESH Limited
< of ¢l

Ctandal

in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amwunt m INR nilhon, unless otherwise stated )
(a) Equity share capital (Refer Note 12)

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subseribed and fully paid up Amount

Asat | April 2021 Jode
Equity shares ksued on exercise ol ESOP during the year (refer note 12} .28
Equity shares issued to Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust during the year 1.73
Fquity shares issued during the earlier year 1o Indiaman Employee Benefil Trusi

and transferred 1o employees pursuant to SAR exercised during the year (refer

note 12(d1) 0.4%
Equity shares wssued during the year and beld by Indisman Employee Benelit Trusi {012y
s ot vear end (refer note 12(d))

As af 31 March 2022 35,53
Asat 1 April 2022 305,53
Equity shares issued to Indinman Employee Benefit Trust during the year (refer 210
note [2¢d))

Equity shares issued during the carlier year to Indiaman Employee Benefit Trust 0.12
and transferred 1o employees pursusnl 1o SAR exercised during the year (refer]

note 12(d))

Equity shares issued during the year and held by Indiumart Employee Benefit Trust (0.36)
as mt year end {refer note 12(d))

| Equity shares guished on buy buck during the vear (Refer Nowe 12(1)) (1.60)
As at 31 March 2023 305.79]

(b} Other equity (Refer Note 13)

Particulars Reserves and surplus Total other equity
Securities premivm General reserve Employee share Capital Retained carnings
hased payment Redemption
TESETVE Reserve
Balance as at 1 April 2021 15.310.77 8.45 97.37 - 446,69 15,863.27
Profit for the year - - - 3,088.24 3,008.24
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 428 428
Total comprehensive income - - - 3,102.52 3,102.52
Issue of equity shares on exercise of share based awurds during the vear 7246 - (69.95) - 151
Employee share based payvment expense (Refer Note 21) - - 10273 - 102,73
Final dividend paid (INR 15/~ per share for financial year ended 31 March 2021) - - - [455.16) (455.16)
Balaoce as at 31 March 2022 15.383.23 845 13015 3,094.05] 18,6 15.88!
Profit for the year - - - - 272180 2, 72186
Onher comprehensive income for the vear - - - - 39,78 3978
Total comprehensive Income - - - - 2,761.64 1,761.64
Expenses for buy-back of equiry shares (Refer Note 12) - - - - (12.78) (12,78}
Tax on buy-back af equity shares (Refer Note 12) - - - - (23259 (232.54)
Buy-back of equity shares {Refer Note 12) - - - 1.60 {1.000.00) (908 40)
Employee share based payment expense {Refer Note 21) - - 262.50 - - 262.50
Share based payment pertainmg 1o Subsidiaries - - 315 - - 315
Issue of equity shures on exercise of shore based awards during the year 139.27 - {139.27) - - -
Final dwvidend paid (INR 2= per share for financial year ended 31 March 2022) - - - - 161,09} (61.04)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 15.522.50| B.A5| 256.53 1.6} 4,549.23 20.338.31

Gain of INR 39.7% and INR 4.28 on romeasurement of defined employee benefit plans{net of tax) is recognised as a part of retained eamnings for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 respectively.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Charteved Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101 248W, W-100022

X o LY
Kanika Kohli

Pariner
Membership No.; 511365

Pluce: Gurugram
Dutte: 28 April 2023

{Chiel Financial Officer)

Place: Noida
Dage: 28 April 2023




IndiasMART InterMESH Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended 31 March 2023

{Amount in INR nnillion, unkss otherwise stated)

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit hefore tax for the
Adjrestmenis far;

yoar

Deprecimticn and amartisition cxpense
Inmterest, dividend and other income
Ciain on de-recognition of Right-ol-use assets

Execeptional items

Fair value gain on mensurement, interedt and income from sale of mutual funds. exchange traded
stment funds and ir

funds, bonds, deb

umits of all

maent trast

€

Farr vahue loss on Investment in debt mstruments of subsidiarics
Fair value pain on measurement and meome from sule of Investment in oiher entities

Giain on dispasal of praperty. plant and equipment
Share-hased payment expense
Ciain on sales of ivestment in Associates

Finanee costs

Provisions and liabilities no longer required written back

Operating profit before working capital changes

Net Changes in:
Trade recervables
Onher financial assels
(ther assets

Onher financil liahil
Trade payables
Contract labilities

Provisions and other labilities
Cash generated from operations

Income tox paid (net)

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activitics
Procecds from sale of property, plant and equipment

ther

Purchase of prop

¥ plant and equip

Purchase of current investmenis

Inter-corporate deposits placed with financials msiutions

le assets and capital advances

Redemption of inter-corporate deposits placed with financials mstitutions

I in

n

und other entities
i

and other entities

Proceeds from sale of i

Loans given 1o subsidurics
Recovery of loans given to subsidiaries

Proceeds from zale of current investmenis
Interest and dividend received

Investment in bank deposits (includes earmarked balances with bank) (having original maturity of

mpre than three months)

Redemption of bank deposits
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash Mlow frem financing activities
Repayment of lease liobilitics
Interest paid on lease linbilitics

Payment of dividends

Expenses for buy-back of equity shares (Refer Note 12)
Tux on buy-back of equiry shares (Refer Now 12)
Buy-back of equity shares (Refer Note 12}

Proceeds from ssue of equity shares on exercise

Net cash used in financing activitics

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the begmning of the year
Caush and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Sun of

ficunt account

olicies

For the year ended

For the year ended

Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
345287 4.02649
2 192.68% [ARAL
0 (18309 h327)
20 (£.71) (1.74)
7 32al -
20 =
(H6524) (1.029.68)
20 220 45,00
0 {239.80) {77
20 {2.38) {1.56)
£ 26150 102,73
20 {026y -
23 46,79 54.02
20 11.33) {7.30)
1.897.51 323590
(257} (0,80
Lo 157.41)
(3.08) {6.30)
2362 0as
THEY 29.12
22780 180857
H7.47 2251
535379 3860
(717661 (970,99,
4.636.13 4,067,601
383 1,78
(157.0%) (44.15)
(20,0810 {27.543.21)
- (437.03)
417.35 7260
(6,184.25) (3.992.72)
138.52 .
= {286.50)
- 286.50
2192067 2762364
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IndiaMART Intermesh Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Corporate Information

IndiaMART Intermesh Limited (“the Company™) is a public company domiciled in India and was incorporated on
13 September 1999 under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The equity shares of the
Company are listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India. The Company is an e-marketplace for
business needs, which acts as an interactive hub for domestic and international buyers and suppliers. The registered
office of the Company is located at 1st Floor, 29-Daryagang. Netaji Subash Marg New Delhi-110002, India.

The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by Board of
Directors on 28 April 2023.

Significant accounting policies

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013
(“the Act™) (as amended from time to time).

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest INR million as
per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated.

2.2 Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis as explained in the accounting
policies below, except for the following:

e certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value where Ind AS requires a different accounting
treatment (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments);

e share-based payments.

e pet defined benefit (asset)/liability - Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit obligations.

The preparation of these standalone financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates
and judgements. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies. The areas where estimates are significant to the standalone financial statements, or areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, are disclosed in Note 3.

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting policies, as set out in the following paragraphs of this note, have been consistently applied, to all
the periods presented in these standalone financial statements except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy.

a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset
is classified as current when it is:

(i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

(ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

(iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv) A cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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A hability 1s classified as current when:

(1) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

(iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period. or

(iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing/servicing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as Investment in optionally convertible preference shares
(OCRPS), Investment in equity/preference instrument of other entities, investment in mutual funds, exchange
traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of investment trust and units of alternative investment funds at fair value at
each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety:

(1) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

(ii) Level 2 — inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

(iii) Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting Company’s assumptions about
pricing by market participants.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on fair value on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for recurring fair value measurement, such
as investment in optionally convertible cumulative redeemable preference instruments (OCRPS), investment in
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compulsory convertible debentures (CCD) and investment in equity/preference instruments of other entities,
investment in mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of investment trust and units of
alternative investment funds measured at fair value,

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as unquoted investments in OCRPS, and
investment in equity/preference instruments of other entities. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon
annually by the management. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The management decides, after discussions with the Company’s external
valuers, which valuation techniques and mnputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above. This note summarises the accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in
the relevant notes.

s Disclosures for significant estimates and assumptions (Note 3)
e Disclosures for valuation methods and quantitative disclosure of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note
29)
¢) Revenue from contracts with customers and other income

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company is primarily engaged in providing web services. Revenue from coniracts with customers is
recognised when control of the services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services and excluding taxes or duties collected
on behalf of the government.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from
contracts with customers are provided in Note 3.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Rendering of services

Revenue from web services is recognised based on output method i.e. pro-rata over the period of the contract as
and when the company satisties performance obligations by transferring the promised services to its customers.
Revenues from lead based services is recognised based on output method i.e. as and when leads are consumed by
the customer or on the expiry of contract whichever is earlier. Activation revenue is amortised over the estimated
customer relationship period.

Advertising revenue is derived from displaying web based banner ads and sale of online advertisements. Revenue
from banner advertisement is recognised pro rata over the period of display of advertisement as per contract.
Revenue from sale of online advertisements is recognised based on output method and the Company applies the
practical expedient to recognize advertising revenue in the amount to which the Company has a right to invoice.

Contract balances
Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial
assets in section m) Financial instruments.
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Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before
the Company transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised. The Company recognises
contract liability for consideration received in respect of unsatisfied performance obligations and reports these
amounts as deferred revenue and advances from customers in the balance sheet. The unaccrued amounts are not
recognised as revenue till all related performance obligations are fulfilled. The Company generally receives
transaction price in advance for contracts with customers that run up for more than one year. The transaction price
received in advance does not have any significant financing component as the difference between the promised
consideration and the cash selling price of the service arises for reasons other than the provision of finance.

Other income
Interest income

For all financial assets measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset
or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating EIR, the Company estimates the expected cash
flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit
losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends

Dividend is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when
shareholders approve the dividend.

d) Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress and property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the plant and equipment
and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately
based on their specific useful lives.

Capital work in progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under development as at the balance sheet
date.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is
classified as capital advances and cost of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date, are disclosed under
capital work- in- progress.

The Company has adopted component accounting as required under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The
Company identifies the components separately, if it has usetul life different from the respective property, plant
and equipment.

Based on the analysis, Company believes that it does not have any asset having useful life of its major components
different from the property, plant and equipment, hence Company believes that there is no material impact on the
financial statement of the Company due to component accounting.

Depreciation is calculated on a written down wvalue basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives
prescribed under Schedule 1T to Companies Act, 2013, The Company has used the following rates to provide
depreciation on its Property, plant and equipment:

Asset | Annual rates
Computers 63.16%
Furniture and fittings 26.89%
Office equipment 45.07%
Vehicles 31.23%
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An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property. plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is
classified as capital advances and cost of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under
capital work- in- progress.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Unique telephone numbers are amortised on a writlen down value basis at 40% annually.
Intangibles being Software acquired by the Company are amortised on a written down value basis at 40% annually.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of intangible assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are classified as
capital advances and cost of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date, are disclosed under capital work-
in-progress.

f) Leases

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company assesses whether a
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contact
involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of
the asset through the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. At the
date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or
less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Leases for which
the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
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substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases. When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its
interests in the head lease and the sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. For operating leases, rental income is recognized
on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend
or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when
it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from
the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount
(i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis
unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases,
the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. The lease
liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option. Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the
Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Finance leases were capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments were apportioned
between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges were recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

A ROU assel was depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there was no reasonable certainty that
the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset was depreciated over the shorter of
the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

g) Investment in subsidiaries and associates

The Company records the investment in equity, preference and debt (fixed to fixed only) instruments of
subsidiaries and associates at cost less impairment loss, if any.

On disposal of investment in subsidiaries and associates, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

h) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU)
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly iraded companies or other available fair value indicators.
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The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond
periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts. the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the
budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In
any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country
or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Afier impairment. depreciation is provided
on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s
or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.
The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

i) Taxes
Current Income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income (loss) or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax liability
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or lability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised except when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income (loss) or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Sales/ value added taxes/ Service tax/ Goods and service tax (GST) paid on acquisition of assets or on
incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes/ GST paid, except:

e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority,
in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item, as applicable

e When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

j) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised
as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material. provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a
present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot
be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the standalone financial
statements.

k) Retirement and other employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees” services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented under other current financial liabilities in the balance
sheet.

Post-employment obligations

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
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provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable
to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is
recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment
or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees i.e. gratuity. The cost of providing benefits
under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit eredit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit lLiability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with
a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.
Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment. and
e  The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss:

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
non-routine settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it
expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting period-end. Actuarial gain/loss are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the entire leave
as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for
twelve months after the reporting date.

1) Share-based payments

Employees of the Company and its subsidiaries also receive remuneration in the form of stock options (ESOP)
and stock appreciation rights (SAR) as share based payment transactions under the Company’s Employee Stock
Option Plan and Employee Stock Benefit Scheme. Both of these are equity settled share-based payment
transactions,

The cost of equity settled transactions is determined based on the fair value at the date when the grant is made
using an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment reserves (SBP) in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity settled transaction at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is
recognised in employee benefits expense. The grant date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to
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employees of subsidiaries is recognised as receivable from subsidiaries, with a corresponding increase in SBP, as
a separate component in equity over the vesting period that the employees become entitled to the awards.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company's best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service
conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated
as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified. the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the
terms not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award 1s cancelled by the entity or by the
counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

m) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, 1.¢., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

»  Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Afier initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
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acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income
in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally
applies to loans to employees, trade and other receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 29.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and
loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the
equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income
using the EIR method.

Debt instruments and equity instruments at FVTPL

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise,

Debt instruments and equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

e  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

‘When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the
assel, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

e Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balance
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e  Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

The Company follows “simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables or
contract revenue receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure. the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls). discounted at the original
EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life
of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining
contractual term of the financial instrument

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in
the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The
balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

¢ Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables:
ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

¢ Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance
sheet, 1.e. as a liability.

e Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value,
impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as
*accumulated impairment amount” in OCIL

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the
basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.
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All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and. in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade payables, security deposits and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through Profit or Loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCIL These gains/
losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

n) Foreign currency transactions
The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR which is also the Company’s functional currency.
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency spot rates at
the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average
rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. '

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
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arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

o) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
sharcholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to
the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting
year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as
bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

q) Segment reporting

In accordance with Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments", the Company has disclosed the segment information only
as part of consolidated financial statements.

r) Share capital

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

s) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the Company, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

t) Adoption of new accounting principles

Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract (amendment to Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets)

The amendment clarified that the *costs of fulfilling a contract’ comprise both the incremental costs and allocation
of other direct costs. The Company has adopted this amendment effective 1 April 2022 and the adoption did not
have any material impact on its financial statements.

u) Recently issued accounting pronouncements

On 31 March 2023, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 effective from 1 April 2023. Following are the key amended provisions which may
have an impact on the financial statements of the Company:

Disclosure of accounting policies (amendments to Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements)

The amendments intend to assist in deciding which accounting policies to disclose in the financial statements.
The amendments to Ind AS 1 require entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies. The amendments provide guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to
accounting policy disclosures. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in
its financial statements.
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Definition of accounting estimate (amendments to Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors)

The amendments distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change
in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition,
accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.
Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured
in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction (amendments to Ind AS 12 -
Income taxes)

The amendments specify how to account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases. The amendments clarify
that lease transactions give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences and financial statements should
reflect the future tax impacts of these transactions through recognizing deferred tax. The Company is evaluating
the impact of this amendment, if any, in its financial statements.

Other amendments included in the notification do not have any significant impact on the financial statements.

3. Significant accounting estimates and assumpftions

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based
on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities in future periods. Therefore, actual results could differ from these estimates.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. The Company has based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however. may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the
control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a) Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. In assessing the probability the Company considers
whether the entity has sufficient taxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, which will result in taxable amounts against which the unused tax losses or unused tax credits can
be utilised before they expire. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets on the deductible temporary differences since the management
is of the view that it is probable the deferred tax assets will be recoverable using the estimated future taxable
income based on the approved business plans and budgets.

b) Share based payment

The Company initially measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using a Black—Scholes—
Merton option pricing model to determine the fair value of the hability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-
based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent
on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs
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to the valuation model including the expected life of the share options and SAR units, volatility and dividend yield
and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based
payment transactions are disclosed in Note 28,

¢) Impairment of Non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets
or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based
on a DCF model or other fair value valuation models. In DCF model. the cash {lows are derived from the budget
for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable
amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and
the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

d) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefit)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with
the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at
intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected
future inflation rates, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the
employment market.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 27.
e) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 29 and 31 for further
disclosures.

) Useful life of assets considered for depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful
life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets
are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at each financial year end.

g) Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement gualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116.
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the
lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods
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covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In
assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an
option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for
the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The
Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for
a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.
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4 Property, plant and equipment

Computers Office equipments Furniture and Motor vehicles Total Property, Capital work in
fixtures plant and progress (refer note
equipment 1 below)

Gross carrying amount
As at 1 April 2021 105.77 47.21 4.02 3.81 160.81 1.77
Additions for the year 2028 0.13 - - 2041 -
Disposals for the year (17.70) (0.55) - (0,02) (18.27) =
As at 31 March 2022 108.35 46.79 4.02 379 162.95 1.77
Additions for the year 170.31 3.65 0.59 7.18 181.72 -
Disposals for the year (9.19) (2.26) (0.58) (3.75) (15.78) -
As at 31 March 2023 269.47 48.18 4.03 7.22 328.90 1.77
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2021 97.27 36.47 2.96 2.58 139.28 -
Charge for the year 591 4.85 0.30 0.38 11.44 -
Disposals during the year (17.59) (0.43) - (0.02) (18.04) -
As at 31 March 2022 85.59 40.89 3.26 2.94 132.68 -
Charge for the year 86.86 313 0.27 1.99 92.25 -
Disposals during the year (8.82) (2.08) (0.50) (2.94) (14.35) -
As at 31 March 2023 163.63 41.94 3.03 1.99 210.59 -
Net carrying value
As at 1 April 2021 8.50 10.74 1.06 1.23 21.53 1.77
As at 31 March 2022 22.76 5.90 0.76 0.85 30.27 1.77
As at 31 March 2023 105.84 6.24 1.00 5.23 118.31 1.77

Notes:
1 Capital work in progress (CWIP)

The following table presents the ageing schedule for Capital-work-in progress:
As at 31 March 2023

Particulars

As at 31 March 2022

Projects in Progress
Projects temporarily suspended
More than 3 years

1.77

1.77

Total

1.77

1.77




IndiaMART InterMESH Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

5

Right-of-use assets

Gross carrying amount
As at 1 April 2021

Additions for the year
Disposals for the year (Refer Note 2 below)
As at 31 March 2022

Additions for the year
Disposals for the year (Refer Note 2 below)
As at 31 March 2023

Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 April 2021

Depreciation for the year
Disposals for the year (Refer Note 2 below)
As at 31 March 2022

Depreciation for the year
Disposals for the year (Refer Note 2 below)
As at 31 March 2023

Net carrying value
Asat 1 April 2021
As at 31 March 2022
As at 31 March 2023

Notes:

Leasehold land Buildings Taotal
{Refer Note 1 below)

37.12 834,55 871.67

= 20.25 20.25

- (2020} (20.20)

37.12 834.60 871.72

- 30.04 30.04

- (75.79) (75.79)

37.12 788.85 825.97

230 243.72 246.02

0.46 106,00 106.46

. (9.19) (9.19)

2.76 340.53 343.29

0.46 99.31 929.77

- (29.69) (29.69)

322 410.15 41337

34.82 59(.83 625.65

34.36 494.07 528.43

33.9%0 378.70 412.60

1, As per the terms of the lease arrangement, the Company was required to complete the construction of building within a defined time from
the date of handing over the possession. The Company had obtained extension for construction of building on the leasehold land till 5 July
2021. The project has been temporarily suspended as the Company is in the process of evaluating the construction plan and is also in the
process of planning to seek further extension for construction on the leasehald land,

2. Disposal includes adjustment on account of lease modifications.

short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

3. The Company incurred INR 20.86 for the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: [NR 3.51) respectively, towards expenses relating to

The following table presents a maturity analysis of expected undiscounted cash flows for lease liabilities as at year end

Within one year

Within one - two years
Within two - three years
Within three - five years
Above five years

Total lease payments

The reconciliation of lease liabilities is as follows:

Opening balance
Additions

Amounts recognized in statement of profit and loss as interest expense

Payment of lease liabilities

Derecognition

Adjustment for lease modifications
Liabilities no longer required written back
Balance as at vear end (Refer Note 15)

Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
129.34 131.90
121.57 134.05
106.29 122.47
21048 224.40
6.62 122.01
574.29 734.83
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
562.80 634.24
28.54 19.33
46.79 54.02
(126.92) (124.85)
(25.69) (12.78)
(25.11) =
(1.33) (7.16)
459.08 562.80
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6

Intangible assets

Gross carrying amount
As at 1 April 2021
As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2023

Accumulated amortisation
As at 1 April 2021

Amortisation for the year
As at 31 March 2022

Amortisation for the year
As at 31 March 2023

Net carrying value
As at 1 April 2021
As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2023

Unique
Software telephone Total

numbers
13.73 4.70 18.43
13.73 4.70 18.43
13.73 4.70 18.43
11.35 4.34 15.69
0.96 0.15 1.11
12.31 4.49 16.80
0.57 0.09 0.66
12.88 4.58 17.46
2.38 0.36 2.74
1.42 0.21 1.63
0.85 0.12 0.97
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7 in iddiarics and i
Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 Muarch 2022
No. of shares Amuumi No. of shares Amuni
Investment in subsidiaries - Unguoted
Fully paid up - ui cost
Equity shares of INR 10 each in Tradezeal Ontine Private Limited 1 0o 1o 110000 L1
Exquity shures of INR 11 eachoin T odexo Online Private Limased TN K00 Tonz 7,000 K00 a1
Fauity shares ol INR 11t each in Pay With Indiamant Private Linited LLEINE) (K LICENE ) (KLY
Eguity shares of INR 10 each i Hello Trade Onlime Private Linvited &0, 1m0 L] 3, tepn 0ap
Equity shares, of INR. 10 each i Busy Infolech Private Limired
{Refer note (1) below) 45,000 5000, 04 - -
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of INR 100 ¢sch s Tradezeal Online Privaw 9325000 93250 T2060 0Ky T240.00
Limmted { Refer Note ith below)
L ompulsonly Convertible Preference Shares of TNR 10 each tal premivm of INR fi 541 s - 2
51,038 ench) i Livekeeping Technologies Private Linuted (Refer note (1) below)
Equity shares of INR 10 cach (m premium of TNR 51,134 each) in Livekeeping 2,147 109.81 - -
Technobogres Privite Limicd (Reter note (i) bebow |
Contractual investment rights in Livekeeping Technologies Privaie Limited 5050 51032 - -
(Refer nate (i) below )
6.515.54 T92.42
Impairment all far i in subsidiari
Opening balunce (T142) 171.42)
Add : Impairment allowanee for ivestment [n shanss of Livekeeping Technologies (52,611 (124.03) - 171.42)
Privite Limited (Refer note (vi) below)
639151 T
Investment in assockates - Unguoted
Fully paid up - at cost
Investment in Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited
Compulsory convertible preference shares of TNR 100 each (a1 premium of TNR s0%4 As0 5,554 31150
52,217.90 cuch)
Equity sharcs of INR 10 cach {at premium of INR 32,307 %0 cach) 2 1] 0.52 n 052
L+ 1! ible p ghares of TNR 100 each (a1 premium of INR 1 %09 52526 L.E0g 53926
2,90.261 cach)
Equity shares of INR 10 each {21 premium of INR 2.03,242 cich) =4 H0.24 444 90.24
Equity shares of INR 10 cach and premium of INR 2.90.351 cach 137 39.7R 967.30 - - 927.52
I in Mabisy T Private Limited
Comgulsory convertible preference shares of INR | cach {at premium of TNE 776 128,593 9.2
each)
Eguity shares of INK 1 each (a1 premium of INR 776 cach) 108 00T
Compulsory convertible preference shures of INR | ench (ot premium of INR K36 119474 1000 = B
auch)
I in Uompulsory ible pref shares of TNR | each tat premisim of 105,607 129.20 B .
INR 1222 eoch) (Refes note (1v) below)h
Equity shares of INR 1 each tat premiun of INR 837 cach) 17,750 1486 - -
Investment in Equity shares of INR | eoch (ot premium of [INK 1,222/ each) {Refer 17,963 2198 - &
note (v} Bebow]
Fair valie gain recosnised through profit and loss till the date entity has hecome an - 9787 463 590 5 =
nssociate
Investment in Ten Times Online Private Limited
Equity shares of INR. 10 each tal premium of INR 40 each) 18,701 083 18,700 (9%
Sale of Equity shares of INR 10 cach (INR 62 7024) { Refer node { vj helow) 18,70} 21y =
Gain on sale of frvestment during the year 028 - =
Investment in B Monstara Private Limited
Equity shares of INR 1 each (a1 premium of INR | 27415 cach) Ki1.250 104177 811,250 L4177
1472497 1.978.22
Total I in subsidiaries and i 886449 2.601.22
Aggregate carrving value of unquoted investments H.A64.40 2.691.22
A pai in value of i 12403 T1.42
Notes:
i} During the year ended 31 March 2023, on & April 2022 the Company has acquired |00.00% equity ownarship on fully converted and diluted baais in Busy Infotech Private Limsted at the aggrepate
wonsideration of INR 5,000,00 apd dingly, the i is classified under “lmvestiment in Subsidinnmes” This acquisition would belp the Company 1o offer sccounting software solutions 1o businesses in

litne with its lony term vision of enabling businesses,

1), The instrument 18 classified a5 equiry as it meets the fived lor fixed' evalustion eritena. Further, the inierest on the instrument 15 payable at the discretion of Tradezeal Online Private Limied

{if). Touring the year ended 31 March 2023, on 23 May 2022 the Company hes acquired $1,09% equiry ownership oo flly converted and dilited hasis in Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited (Formerly
kwown as Finlite Technologies Private Lumated) at the aggrepate consideration of INR 459 82, Conssdening the perecntage of up and bowrd rep tution right of the Company. this mvestment is
classified as investment in subsidiory. Finlite Technologies Private Limited offess value added services wo businesses over ther existing on premise accounting software. This investment is in line with the
Company long term objective of offermg vanous Software as 0 Service (*SAAS") based solutions for businesses. Fair value of contractual ivesment right {As per the terms of the Shareholder's agreement) in
"Livekeeping Technologies Privite Limited” has been recorded in the books of account,

wh During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company bas further imvested into the shares of Mobisy Technolugies Private Limited, thereby 1 ils equity hip on fully d and diluted basis
1o 25 8%, Mohisy Technologes Privite Limited has become an assecisie of the Company with effect from 03 November 2022 Fair value guin bas been recorded tll the dute it has beeome an sssociate

). Durmg the year ended 31 Muarch 2023, the Company has sold entire stake m Ten Times Online Private Linmted, on 16 March 2023 mnd consequently the entity has ceased 1o be an associate.

vil. During the year ended 31 March 2023, Impuinment loss amounting 1o INR 5261 has beéen recorded for "Livebeeping Technologies Private Limited" based on impairment. testing perfurmed due 10 actial
performance being lower thun The sand imy has been classified s an exceptional item n the of profit and loss

wih). During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company mvested m equity shures of INR 10 cach und premium of INR 290,351 cach i Simply Vyapar Apps Privaze Limited on fully converted and diluted
‘basws aml therby the wtal stake becomes 27.45% from 27,007

& Co
=
2 -
© T




IndiaMART Inter MESH Linited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023
{ Amounit i INR oullion, unless otherwise stated)

8 Financial asscts
Asat Asal

M March 2022

i) Investments

Non-current
a) Investment m subsidiaries at FYTPL 11556 13750
b} bvestment in other entities at FVTPL 166160 L6315
) Investmen in debi instruments of assncimes o1 FVTPL B -
!é"].!ﬂ 1.768.65
Current
Investment in mutunl funds and exchange traded finds st FVTPL 16, Th4.53 15.751.30
Iovestrment in hoods and debentures a1 FVTPL 1025098 6R323T
Invesments in | Trusi- Cuoted ( 1ol FVTPL) 48419 32763
I in Alierative i fuunds al FVTPL —_— = —
lliﬁp.ﬂ
Nun-vurrent inyestments
u) Investment in debt instruments of subsidisrics (fully paid-up) Asal Asat
31 Murch 2023 31 Murch 2022

Unguoted (mewsured at FI)TPL) No. of shures Amount No. of shares Amount
Tovestment in Taltxu Cinline I‘rhate Limited
o Hly Lo Rt ble Preference Shures of INR 10 each 20,989,275 20,989,275
(Refer note (i) below)
Cpening balance Tl 1371
Investment made dunag the vear - 5200
Fair value loss recogmised through profit and loss during the year (20.71) - (45.00) .7
of Ci hile Cumulative Red ble Preference Shares of INR 10 cach (a1
premium of INE 90 cach) { Refer note (1) below) 1,298,050 113 1,295,050 [RE]
Fair value loss recognised through profit and loss during the year 1131 - - 113
] 1y Comvertible Comubative Reds bl Prel Sharcs of INR 1 each (at
premivem of INR 40 each)  Refer noie (i) below) 1E5.000 016 1 E9.0060 o6
Fair value lpss recognised through profit and loss during the year 16 - - .16
Tovestment In Tradezeal Online Private Limited
Optionally Convertible Cunwilative Redeemable Preference Shures of INR 10 each
( Refer note (1) below ) TR0 TETO000
Opening balance LR .00
Investment made durtng the vear - G000 A0.00 0,00
I in Pay With Indi Private Limited
Cptionally Convenible Cumwlative Redeemuble Preference Shaves of INR 10 cach (at
preminm of INR 10 cach) { Refer mote (i) below) 2,775,000 5550 5550 2,775,000 5550 5550

11550 137.50
b Iovestment in other entities (flally puid wp )
Unguoted (measured at FITPL)
I in Mobisy T Private Limited
Conpulsory convertible preference shares of TNR | each fat premium of TNR 776 - - 128,593 9992
each [Refer note 7)
Equity shares of INR | each (ot preminm of INR 776 cach) (Refer nowe T - - 100 007
Compulsory converble preference shares of INR -1 each (a1 premuum of INR E36 - - 119474 100,00
each) {Reler note 7)
Equity shares of TNR 1 cuch [at premium of TNR $37 each) (Refer note T) - - 17,750 14,86
TFair valoe gain recognised through profit and loss 1l date - - - - T2 232,87
Tovestment in Mynd Solutions Privete Limited
Equity shures of INR 10 ach (st premium of INR 8721 each) 3336489 3144 3,336,459 324.34
Compulsory convertible preference: shares of INR 10 each INR. (at premium of INR 1,510,656 24068 = -
149.32 each) (Refer nute (i) below )
Sale of equity shures of Mynd Solitions Private Limited (Refer note (i) below) (R&1.852) (13731 i =
Fair value gain on measwrement and income from sale of Invesiment tll date - 148.65 57736
Trvestment in Zimyo consulting Private Limited )
Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 10 cach (at premium of INR 1,870 16141 1870 1h1.41
86306321~ each)
Edquity shares of INR 10 each (a1 premium of INR 86,306 32/ each) 100 Hé3 T 10 #63 o
| in Fleetx Technologies Private Limited
Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 10 each {at prommum of INR E
67,420 - each) 10,323 L 10,323 6
Equity shares of INR 10 cach (at premium of INR 57.31 5/~ cach) 3,603 218,12 914.20 1.E05 21812

166160

) Investment in deld instruments of associates ot FVTPL

i Mobisy Ti logies Private Limited
in Cony ible Deby af INE 1008 each in Mobisy BO.000 Bl B000 - - -
Technologies Private Limited

Total non-current investments (uh+c) 1.857.10 1.768.65
Notes:

i) The Compary has invested in optionall i urmilati i shares ('OCCRPS) of its subsidinries, Based on the terms of OCCRPS. these have been chissilied s financial
instruments in the nature of fnmcial m.sds o be measured at far value, Far ulul. of these mstrumerts bis been determined based on markel multiples | replacement cost method  discounted cash flow
valustian technigue using cash flow projections and discount rate. Gain'loss on subseq is recognised through § of Profit and Lass.

ii). The Compiny has invested in compilsory convertible preference shares and equity shares of vher cinities. based on the terms of these instroments they are being measured at farr value through profit and
loss

ik During the year endod 31 March 2023, the Company has sold 861 852 equity shares for INR 13832/ each of Mynd Solutions Private Limied amounting w INE 13731 and simuhaneously purchased
1,510,656 Compulsory convernble preference shares for TNR 15932 - cach smounting wo INR 240,68 Subsequent to these trsnsactions, the equiry ewnership on fully converted and diluted basis in Mynd
Solutions Private Limited stumds ar 9.2%,




IndiaMART Inter MESH Limited
Notes o Standnlone Financizl Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

(Amonnt in INK millon, unkess othersise stated|

Asat Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Nov, of units Amount N, of units Amiumt

Current investments
Trvestment in mutid frends and exchange rraded furds - Puored (measured m FVTPL) *
Aditya Hirla Sun Lile Short Term Fund - - 5765040 33371
Aditya Birla Sun Life Corporate Bond Fund - Regular Growth - - 6,50K,526 SHT.00
Aditya Birla Sun Life Corporate Bond Fund 144,141 101324 10,264,508 LEENE
Aditya Birla Sun Life Chvermight fund - - 3n4ens 43493
Aditya Brrla Sun Life Liguid Fund 2500 (X} - -
Aditys Birla Sun Life Nifty SDL Ape 2027 Indes. Fund 39,118,998 408 46 . =
Axis Corporate Dbl Fund #777.620 134z - s
Bharut Band ETF April-2023 A1, 000 49] 63 S0H ti) 467
Bharat RBond ETF April-2025 370,992 42331 I 41148
Buandhan Low Duration Fund - - 15216251 48479
Bandhan Bond Fund - Short Term [Man - - 7,006,559 14330
Edelwelss Arhitrage Fund - - 43,064,508 71874
Edelweiss NIFTY PSU Bond Plus SDL Apr 2026 50:50 Index Fund 4747647 525:57 47 4THa4T 50992
Fadelweiss CRISI. TRX 50:30 Gilt Plus SDL Apr 2037 Index Fund 47,754,473 00,05 = =
HIFC Short Term Dbt Fund & - 5,208,520 13049
HDFC Short Term Debt Fund - - BY3 662 17.82
HDFC Low Duradion Fund 15,420,555 K037 24,968,530 124304
HDFL Maoncy Market Fund - - 257,730 (LS
HDFC Ultrn Short Term Fund - - 100,960, 700 t253.53
HDFC Corporat: Bond Fund 4,738,047 13084 - -
ICICT Prudentinl Eguity Arbitruge Fund - - NI 109364
ICICH Prudential Savings Fund 1,443,254 667 64 3819 653 LaTa30
ICICT Prudential Short Term Fund - - 14.101.24% TG
TCICT Prudkential Short Term Fund - - 343,503 [EE4)
ICICT Prudential Corporate Bond Fund - Growth 20,688,321 B -
ICICT Prudential Nifty SDL Drec 2028 Index Faud 48,219,177 - a
Kaotak Corporate Bond Fund 216,768 196665 622.39
Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund 1,580,642 42749473 135383
Kotk Mifty SDL Apr 2027 Top 12 Equal Weight Index Fund 44 835, 182 - -
Kotak Nifty SDL Apr 2032 Top |2 Fqual Weight Indes Fund 94,602,577 - »
Nippon Indis Fluating Rate Fund - 26,560,870 101762
Nippon India Dynaméc Bond Fund 24,540,628 - -
SBI Nifty 50 ETF 1.450,000 1450000 25958
5Bl S&P BSE Sensex ETF B4R, 0 - -
SBI Nifty Index Fund 502,335 - -
SAT Magrum Constant Maturity Fund 9,191,798 - -
LTI Nifty S0 ETF 135,000 - -
Total 1573130
fi in boeds and deb Quoted | far FVTPL)
Axis Bank Perpetual Bond - - 150 161,08
Bank of Baroda Perpenasl Bond 10 102 85 - -
Bajaj Fmance bond 200 |97.4% 200 26H A
Canara Bank perpetual bond i 483 m 20246
Expart Import hank ol India bond 200 14616 200 200,14
HDFC Bunk Perpetua] Bond n n5.59 400 43204
HDFC Ltd Coupon Bond LGt 80257 [ 661,72
I Enfradebt Ltd Bond oo w902 100 1072
[RFC Ltd Bond 250 25518 asn 255.97
ICIC) Hoe Finanee Company Lid MLD it 153.9% - -
ICIC| Banl. Infra Bond ([} n3ze - -
Kotk Mahindra Investment Lid Zero Coupon Bond 200 18423 - -
Tana Cleantech MLD 200 203,95 - -
LIC Howsing Finance Band 1.0y 1,020.54 SiW) 51577
Mahindra & Mahindra Zero Coupon Bond 200 16978 - -
NABARD Bund 1,750 1,732 K6 1150 Lisel7
Piramal Emerprises MLD 180 19746 (EL 187
Punjab Nationsl Bank Perpetual Bond 1 10083 1n 10185
Power Grid Corporation of India Limited Bond 55 7184 55 75.14
Power Finance Corporation Lid - Bond 558 577.90 - -
REC Bond GO 1277 595 [SERE
State Bank of Tndia Perpetual Bond 2 114185 1] 515,10
State Bank of Indin Trer-11 Bond o0 1SS S0 SU8.15
Shruram Transport MLD 1on 11430 ({1} 1TAl
SIDBI Bord 650 62946 50
Union Bank Perperual Bond 15 151.69 15
Total 10.250.96
1] i I, Trust- Quited d ut FITPL)
Powergrid InvIT 3951962 43419 2446824 32763

48419 327.63
I in frenids- (huoted far FVTPL)
FCICT Prudential Long Short Fund — Series | - - 999,950 12l
Total -
Aggregate hook value of quoted investmenty 21.519.68 22.994.11
Aggregate market value of quated investments 2151968 22,9%4.11
Aggregate carryving value of unquoted investments 1,857.10 1.768.65

* Unless otherwise mentioned. all Munzal Fund investments are under Direct Growih




IndisMART Inter MESH Limited
Motes fo Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

(Amouns i INR rmillon. unbess otherwise stited)

i) Loans (measured at amortised cost)

Nan current
Consigberdd pood- Unsecared
Loans 10 emplovees®*

Current

Consadered pood- Unsecured
Enter-corpornitte deposits®

-LIE Housmyg Fimance Lmitad
Laustis b epmployess®®

Motes
*Imter-corporate deposits placed with financial institutions yield fixed inferest mite.
**Represent interest free loans to employees, which ure recoverable in maximum 24 monmhly instalmenrs

i) Others imeasured ot amortised cost)

Nor-current (unsecured. considered good unless stated otherwise)
Seeurity deposits

Curreat {unsecured, considered pood unless stated otherwise)
Security deposits

Amount recoverabic from payment paieway banks

(nher pecenvables *

Notes:
Seeurity deposilts are non-interest berning and are gencrally on term of 3 to 9 years.

* Refer Note 33 for outstanding balanees pestaining 10 related panties.

9 Trade reccivables

Unsecured, eonsidered good unless stated othernise

As at
31 Murch 2023

{084
.54

4.36
4.30

Azl
31 March 2023

4067
467

531
12603
3.18

134,69

Az at
31 March 2023

As ot
31 March 2022

.74
1,74

41735
103
44708

A wt
31 March 2022

0
RN

3.5
103.6]

—lUf28,

As at
31 Murch 2022

Trade receivubles 13K 1324
Receivables from related parties | Refer nowe 33) 2.00 a
Total 1582 1326
Notes:
a) Nowade recenvables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jomthy with any other person.
b} For terms and condinons refaung to related pany receivables, Refer Note 33,
¢} Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are gencrally on lerms of 30 1o 180 days.
Less than b Months - (Maore than
Outstanding for periods from date of pro of services & months 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years 3 years Tatal
31 March 2023
Undisputed, considered good
Trade receivables 1539 - .38 004 1582
31 Murch 2022
Undisputed, considered good
Trade réceivables 1326 - - - 13.26
10 Caxh und bank balances
Asar As at
31 Murch 2023 31 March 2022
a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cheques on hand a37.90 0787
Balince with bank
- O current accouits 261,18 24401
Total Cash and cash equivalents S01.08 452.78
MNote:
Cash and cash eguivalents for the purpose of cash flow staterment comiprise cnsh and cash equivalents as shown sheove.
b) Bank halances other than cash and cash equivalenty
ti) Deposits with banks
- remwining maturity upto twelve manths - 27027
i) Earnuarked balances with banks®™ L.6h 2.50
Amount disclosed under current bank deposits 166 17277
* Earmarked balances include unelamed unpaid dividends of INR 013 (31 March 2022; TNR 0,12}, bank balance with Induman Employee Benefit Trast of INR 1,53 (31 March 2022: [NR 2.38).
11 Other assets
Asat As at

Non-carrent (unsecured, considered good unless stuted otherwise)
Capital advanee

Prepaid expenses.

Total

Current (unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)
Addvances recoverably
Indirect taxes recoverable
Prepaid expenses

Cithers

Total

31 Murch 2023

0.54
.54

Asat
31 March 2023

B84
12.37
26.06

[ITE]

31 March 2022

2374
124
24.98

Asat
31 March 26822

1306
9.3
21.09
[IA1E]

—_—



IndiaMART InterMESH Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

12 Share capital

d

(i)

Authorised cquity share eapital (INR 10 per share) Number of shares Amount
As at | April 2021 99.442 460 994.42
As at 31 March 2022 99,442,460 99442
As at 31 March 2023 99,442 460 994.42
Authorised 0.01% cumulative preference share capital (INR 32 per share) Number of shares Amount
As at 1 April 2021 3 .00
As at 31 March 2022 3 0.00
As at 31 Murch 2023 3 .00
S8Ue ty share capital (subscribed and | pa NR 10 per sha Number of shares Amount
As at | April 2021 30,316,294 303,16
Equity shares issued on exercise of ESOP during the year 27 846 028
Equity shares issued to Indiamart Emplovee Benefit Trust during the year (refer note (d) below) 173,000 1.73
Equity shares issued during the earlier period to Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust and transferred 1o employees pursuant 1o
SAR exercised during the year (refer note (d) below) 47434 048
Fguity shares 1ssued during the period and held by Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust as at year end (11.584) (0.12)
As at 31 March 2022 30,552,990 30553
Equity sharcs ssued to Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust during the vear {refer note (d) below) 210,000 210
Fquity shares fssued during the earlier period to Indinmarnt Employee Benefit Trust and ferred to employees p o ]
SAR exercised during the year (refer note (d) below) 11,584 042
Equity shares issued during the year and held by Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust as at year end
{refer note (d) below) (35,353) (0.36)
Equity shares extinguished on buy hack during the year (refer note | below) {160.000) (160}
As at 31 March 2023 ! 30,579,221 305.79
Notes:

The Board of Dircetors at its meeting held on 28 Apnl 2022, approved a proposal to buy-back upto 160,000 equity shares of the Company for an aggregate amount not exceeding INR 1,000,
being 0.52% of the total paid up equity share capital at 6,230 per equity share. A Letter of Offer was made to 8l eligible sharcholders, The Company bought back 160,000 equity shares out of the
shares that were tendered by eligible shareholders and exti hed the equity shares on 29 June 2022, Capital redemption reserve was created t the extent of share capital extinguished of INR
160, The excess cost of buy-back of INR 1,012,78 pncludmg INR 12,78 towards transaction cost of buy-back) over par value of share and corresponding tax on buy-back of INR 232.39 were
offset from remined eamings.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company had ruised money by the way of Cualified Institutions Placement ("QIP*) and alloted 1,242,212 equity shares of face valse INR 10 each to the
eligible qualified institutional buyers (QIB) at a price of INR 8,615 per equity share (including a premium of INR 8,605 per equity share) aggregating to INR 10.701.66 on 22 February 2021. The

issue was made in accordance SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requi 1} Regulati 2018, as ded.
Expenses incurred in relation to QIP amounting 1o INR 189.67 were adjusted from Securities Premium Account which resulted into the QIP's net pmcuds of INR 10,511.99.
Ot of these proceeds, the Company has utilised till 31 March 2023 INR 10,138.42 (31 Murch 2022 : INR 3,954.17) Is purposes specified in the p d from the date of QIP.

The balance amount of QIP's net proceeds remain invested in liquid instruments.

Out of the amount utilised from QIP's net proceeds as mentioned i 2{i) above, INR 985 95 has been whilised through Tradezeal Online Private limited, the wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, details of the same are given below -

. As at As at

Iovestment made through Tradezeal Online Private Limited 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Truckhall Private Limited 185.10 110,10
Shipway Technology Private Limited 182.00 182.00
Legistify Services Private Limited 87.90 8790
Agillos E-Commerce Private Limited 260,00 260,00
Edgewise Technologies Private Limited 133.45 13345
Adanza Solutions Private Limited 137.50 -
Total 98505 TI3AS

Other than as disclosed above, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (cither from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company o or in
any other person(s) or entitylies), including foreign entities {‘ diaries} with the und ding {whether ded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party
identifizd by or on behall of the Company (Lillimate Benefi The pany has not ived any funds from any partw(s) (Funding Party) with the und ding that the company shall
whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any gusmntee, security or the like on behalf
of the ultimate beneficiarics.

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares:

1} The Company has only one class of equity shares hoving a par vatlue of TNR 10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to onc vote per share

2) In event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution
will be in praportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

on | Gurugram %

4+



IndisMART InterMESH Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the yeur ended 31 March 2023
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise suted)

b) Detulls of sharcholders holding more thun 3%, equity shares in the Company

Equiry shares of INR 18 each fully paid

Dinesh Chandra Agarwal
Brijesh Kumar Agrawal
Arisaig Asia Fund Limited

Details of shareholding of prometers

Promoters

Dinesh Chandra Agarwal
Brijesh Kumar Agrawal

Promoter Group

Chetna Agarwal

Pankaj Agarwal

Anand Kumar Agrawal

Meena Agarwal

Dingsh Chandra Agarwal (HUF)
Naresh Chandm Agrawal
Prakash Chandra Agrawal
Ciunjan Agarwal

Keshar Devi Agrawal

Vijuy Jalan

Naresh Chandrs Agrawal (HUF)
Anand Kumar Agrewal (HUF)
Prakash Chendra Agrawal (HUF)
Hamirwasia Business Trust
Hamirwasia Family Trust
MNanpara Business Trust

Nanpary Family Trus!

Total

¢) Shares reserved for issue under options

As al Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number % Holding Number % Holding
B.5010).559 28.06% X.630,747 28 24%
$.821.329 19.01% 5848544 19.14%
1.536.494 5.02% 1.336.051 437%
As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number % Holding Number % Holding Yo Change
during the year
£.590.559 28,06 8,390,559 2824 (0.18)
5,821,329 19.01 5,821,329 19.14 (013
154.479 0.50 155200 051 10.01)
150,299 0.49 151,000 .49 =
70,000 023 70,000 023 -
69,800 023 69,500 0.23 -
59722 0.20 60,0000 0.20 -
40,200 0.13 40,200 013 -
40,014 013 40,200 0.13 -
19.908 0.07 20,000 0.07 .
19,709 0.06 19,800 .06 -
10.000 0.03 10.000 0.03 =
5,959 0.03 9,000 0.03 &
5.973 ooz 6,000 0.02 -
5973 0.02 6,000 002 -
200 0.00 200 0,00 -
200 0.00 200 .00 -
100 0.00 100 .00 -
1M} 0,00 100 .00 -
15,067,524 49.21 15,069,088 49.53

Information relating to the Company’s sharc based payment plans, including details of options and SAR units issued, ¢xercised and lapsed during the financial year, options and SAR units

outstanding at the end of the reporting period, is set out in note 28,

o) Shares held by Indiamart employee benefit trust against employees share based payment plans (face value: INR 10 each)

Opening balance
Purchased during the yeur

Transfer 10 employees pursuant (o SAR/ESOP exercised

Closing Balance

13 Other equity

Secunties premium
Capital redemption reserve
General reserve

Employee share based payment reserve

Retamned camings
Total other equity

Nature and purpose of reserves and surplus:

Asal
31 March 2023
Number Amount
11,584 012
210,000 210
(186,231) (1.86)
35,353 Eﬂ

Asat
31 March 2022
Number Amount
47434 45
173,000 1.73
(20%.850) (2.00)
11,584 0.12
As at Asut
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
15.522.50 15.383.23
1.60 i
845 845
256.53 130015
454923 3,094.05
20,338.31 18,615.88

a) Securities preminm: The Securities premium account is used 1o record the premium on issue of shares and is utilised m accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

b) Capital redemption reserve: The Capital redemption reserve is created when company purchases ils own shares out of free reserves or securities premium. A sum equal to the nominal value of
the shares so purchased 15 transferred to capital redemption reserve. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 69 of the Companies Act, 201 3.

¢) Genernl reserve: The general reserve 1s used from time to time to transfer profits from retained carnings for appropriation purposes. as the sume is created by transfer from one component of

equity 1o another.
d

Share hased payment scheme,

¢) Retained earnings: Retained enmnings represent the amount of

of the Company, and gains/losses on defined benefit plans.

Employee share based payment reserve: The Employee share based pavment reserve is used to recognise the compensation related 1o share based awards issued 1o employees under Company's
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14 Trade puyables

Ak at Asal
31 Miarch 2023 31 March 2022

Payible 1o micro, smull and medinm emerprises
Other trade payahles

= Outstanding dues to related partses (1 amy) - +
« Orutstanding dues to others 380
Accrued expenscs 17916
Totl 18296
Outstanding for fallowing vears from duc date of pavment / Less than More than
transaction Not Due |1 year 1-2 years 21-3 years Fyveans Total
31 March 2023
(1) MSME® - undisputed - - - - - -
11) Others - undisputed - .15 - - | {15
Accrued expenses 254 - o - = %4 74
15474
31 March 2022
1) MSME® - undisputed - - . - - -
dii} Others - undisputed - 1.30 130 - 124 350
Accrued expenses 174916 - - - - 179.16
182.96
* MSME as per the Miern, Small snd Medmm Enterprises Development Act, 2000
15 Lease and other finuncial lishilitics
Asar As ut
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Lease labilities (Refor Note 5)
Cugrent [RE ] 1nea1
MNon current 34028 462.39
Total 450.08 S62.40
Other fimancial linbilithes
Non-current
Derivative contract liabiliny® S0.50 =
Total 50.50 -
Current
Payable to employees 8.6 18574
Security deposits 078 -
Onher payable®™ 837 B35
ol RS-} S, -4
* This pertaing to the lishility o account of embedded 5 per the of Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited.
** i ludes unelaimed vopaid dividend of INR 0,13 {31 March 2022 INR 012},
16 Provisions
As ot Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Nou-current
Pravision for employee benefite (Refer Note 27)
Provisien for gratuity G164 163.52
Provision for Leave encashment 4367 G360
Total 184,31 226.12
Current

Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 27)
Provision for gratuity
Provision for leave encashment

Provision-cthers®
Total

* Contingency provision towards indirect taxes. There is no change in this provision duning the vear ended 31 March 2023

17 Contract and other Habilities

As Azat
31 March2023 31 March 2022
Contract linbilithes®
Non-current
Deferred revenus 4.15224 3.315.19
4.152.24 3,315.14
Current
Deferred revenue 6,558.67 540740
Advances from customers 633.07
T191.74
Total 11,343.98
Other labilities-Current
Stattory dues
Tax deducted ut source payable 50.62 3220
GST payable 2741 25020
Uthers 11.14 176
Total 349.22 290.16

* Contract labilitbes include consideration received in advance to render web services in future periods, Refer Note 33 for otstanding balances pertaining to relnted parties.

18 Incomes tax assets {net)

Asmt Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income tax assels (net of provisions) —— e ——
Non current
Income lax assets 1.681.21 1.E4T.63
Less. Provigion for income tax 1 61572y {61572
Total 6549 131.91

& Co
< :
2 -
m T
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19 Revenue from operations

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:
For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Sale of services

Income from web services 9,188.05 7.369.87
Advertisement and marketing services 200,12 137.83
Total 9,388.17 7,507.70

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations
The performance obligation is satisfied after the services are rendered for which customers has paid.

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) 1.e. contract liabilities, as at March 31, are as follows:

As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Less than More than Less than More than

12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months
Web services 7,167.06 4.133.15 5,730.35 330572
Advertisement and marketing services 24.68 19.09 20.43 9.47

7,191.74 4,152.24 5.750.78 3,315.19
No single customer represents 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
Changes in the contract liability balances during the year are as follows:
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Opening balance at the beginning of the year 9,065.97 7.256.41
Less: Revenue recognised from contract liability balance at the begining of the year (5,192.60) (4,252.06)
Add: Amount received from customers during the year 11,666.17 9.317.26
Less: Revenue recognised from amounts received during the year (4,195.56) (3,255.64)
Closing balance at the end of the year 11,343.98 9.065.97




IndiaMART InterMESH Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended For the year ended
il 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Fair value gain/(loss) on measurement and income from sale of financial assets
-Fair value gain/(loss) (net) on measurement, interest and income from sale of mutual
funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of altemative investment funds
and investment trust 865.24 1.029.68
-Fair value loss on Investment in debt instruments of subsidiaries (22.00) . (45.00)
-Fair value gain on measurement and income from sale of Investment in other entities 239.80 1.72
Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost
- on bank deposits 315 15.20
- on corporate deposits and loans 1.73 42.63
- on security deposits 296 2.85
Other interest income 591 9.92
Dividend Income 10.46 2.59
Gain on sales of investment in Associates 0.28 -
Gain on de-recognition of Right-of-use assets 471 1.76
Liabilities and provisions no longer required written back 4.56 7.30
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 238 1.56
Miscellaneous income 9.653 239
Total 1,128.83 1.078.60

For the year ended

For the year ended

21 Employee benefits expense 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries, allowance and bonus 353634 2,425.75
Gratuity expense (Refer Note 27) 69.82 61.74
Leave encashment expense (Refer Note 27) 54.12 6.11
Contribution to provident and other funds 47.51 26.96
Employee share based payment expense (Refer Note 28) 262.50 102.73
Staff welfare expenses 21.90 5.18
Total 3.992.19 2.628.47

22 Finance costs

Interest cost of lease liabilities
Total

23 Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

46.79

54.02

46.79

54.02

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the vear ended
31 March 2022

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 4) 92,25 11.44
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (Refer Note §) 00.77 106.46
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 6) 0.66 1.11
Total 192.68 119.01
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For the year ended

24 Other expenses 31 March 2023

For the vear ended
31 March 2022

Content development expenses 28532 164.38
Buyer Engagement Expenses 133.80 143,13
Customer Support Expenses 200.73 163.17
Outsourced sales cost 1,304.42 7137175
Internel and other online expenses 458.18 296.73
Rates and taxes 3.56 10.27
Outsourced support cost 17.45 12.53
Advertisement expenses 19.59 8.34
Power and fucl 14.40 7.72
Repair and maintenance:

- Plant and machinery 6.43 3.26

- Others 39.04 27.27
Travelling and conveyance 28.56 10.43
Recruitment and training expenses 26.35 12.26
Legal and professional fees 73.36 51.63
Directors' sitting fees 4.86 3.55
Auditor's remuneration™ 6.41 5.55
Insurance expenses 41.70 30.58
Collection charges 29.56 27.50
Corporate social responsibility activitics expenscs 51.38 36.37
Rent 2042 3.5
Miscellaneous expenses 5.24 2.38
Total 2.779.76 1,758.31
Payment to Auditors* For the year ended For the yvear ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
As auditor:
- Audit fee 6.00 5.50
- Reimbursement of expenses 0.41 0.05
6.41 5.55

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the carnings for the period attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average

number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS are calculated by dividing the earnings for the period attributable to the equity holders of the Company by weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive
potential equity shares into cquity shares. The following reflects the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Basic 31 March 2023
Net profit as per the statement of profit and loss for computation of EPS (A) 2,721.86
Weighted average number of equity shares used in calculating basic EPS (B) 30,533,250
Basic eamnings per equity share (A/B) 89.14
Diluted

Weighted average number of equity shares used in calculating basic EPS 30,533,250
Potential equity shares 106,020
Total no. of shares outstanding (including dilution) (C) 30,639,270
Diluted earnings per equity share (A/C) 8R.84

3,098.24
30,424,200
101,83

30,424,200
309,651

30,733,851
100.81

There are potential equity shares for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 in the form of share based awards granted to employees

which have been considered in the calculation of diluted earning per share.

For the year ended 31 March 2023 : Nil (31 March 2022: 24,722) SAR units of employees share based awards were excluded from the calculation
of diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares as their effect would have been anti-dilutive.
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26 Income tax
a) Income tax expense/(income) recognised in Statement of profit and loss

Particulars

Current tax expense
Current tax for the year

Deferred tax expense/(benefit)
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences

Total income tax expense

b) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income/(loss) (OCI)

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year

Particulars

Net gain/(loss) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

¢) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by statutory income tax rate

Particulars

Profit before tax

Accounting profit before income tax

Tax expense at the statutory income tax rate @25.17%
Adjustments in respect of differences taxed at lower tax rates

Adjustment in respect of change in earrying amount of investment in subsidiarics

Adjustment in respect of buyback expenses

Dividend income received

Other non-deductible expenses and non-taxable income
Tax expense at the effective income tax rate of 21.17%
(31 March 2022: 23.05%)

d) Breakup of deferred tax recognised in the Balance sheet
Particulars

Deferred tax asset

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Provision for gratuity

Provision for compensated absences

Provision for diminution of investments in subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries measured at fair value
Provision for expenses, allowable in subsequent year
Ind AS 116 - Leases impact

Total deferred tax assets (A)

Deferred tax liabilities

Investment in mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of’

alternative investment fund and investment trust measured at fair value
Investment in other entities measured at fair value

Accelerated deduction on lease rent for tax purposes

Others

Total deferred tax liabilities (B)

Net deferred tax labilities (C) = (A) - (B)

91991 980.47

919.91 980.47

(188.80) (52.22)
(188.80) (52.22)

73111 928.25

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

13.38 1.44

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

345297 4,026.49
3,452.97 4,016.49
869.11 1.013.47
(185.59) (102.83)
44.84 11.33

(3.22) -
(2.63) (0.200
8.60 648
731.11 928.25

As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

12,90 529
30.76 46,95
28.50 18.54
12.04 :

" 39.30

4233 39.67
20.23 17.30
146.76 167.05
(78.64) (316.64)
(44.39) (1.77)
(1.73) (1,73)
(3.00) (3.33)
(127.76) (32347)
19.00 (156.42)
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€) Breakup of deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in Statement of profit and loss and OCI

Particulars As at
31 March 2023

Asat
31 March 2022

Deferred tax expense/(income) relates to the following:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Provision for gratuity

Provision for compensated absences

Provision for diminution of investments in subsidiaries

Investment in other entities measured at fair value

[nvestment in debt instrument of subsidiaries measured at fair value
Investment in mutual funds. exchange traded funds, bonds, dehentures, units of
alternative investment fund and investment trust measured at fair value
Provision for expenses, allowable in subsequent year

Accelerated deduction on lease rent for tax purposes

Ind AS 116 - Leases impact

Others

Deferred tax expense/(benefit)

f} Reconciliation of Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (Net):

Particulars As at

Opening balance as of 1 April
Tax (expense)/ benefit during the year recogmsed in Statement of profit and loss
Tax impact during the year recognised in OCI

(7.61) 232
16,19 11.07
(9.96) 0.28
(12.04) -
42.62 1.77
39.30 -
(238.00) {47.87)
(2.66) (10.82)
- (0.03)
(2.93) (6.37)
10.34) (1.13)
(175.43) (50.78)
As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(156.42) (207.20)
188.80 5222
(13.38) (1.44)
19.00 (156.42)

Closing balance at the end of the year

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current
tax habilities, and deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.
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27 Defined benefit plan and other long-term employee benefit plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed statutory defined period of service gets a gratuity on
departure a1 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for cach completed year of service. The scheme is funded with insurance company in form of
qualifying insurance pohicy. This defined benefit plan exposes the Company to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, interest rate risk and

salary risk.
The amount ingluded in the balance sheet arising from the Company's obligation in respect of its gratuity plan and leave encashment is as
follows:
Gratuity - defined benefit plan
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation 332.44 33258
Fair value of plan assets (210.22) (146.02)
Net Liability anising from defined benefit obligation 122,22 186,56
Leave encashment - other long-term employee benefit plan
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of other long-term empoyee benefit plan 113.24 73.65
113.24 73.65

a) Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset)/liability and other long term employee benefit plan
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit (asset)liability and
other long term employee benefit plan and s components.

Reconciliation of present value of defined henefit obligation for Gratuity and Leave encashment

Gratuity
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 33258 , 287.84
Benefits paid (22.63) (14.5T)
Clurrent service cost 57.24 46,88
Interest cost 2243 18.55
Actuarial (gains)losses
- changes in demographic assumptions (12.90) -
- changes in financial assumptions (25.85) (9.04)
- experience adjustments (18.43) 292
Balance at the end of the year 332,44 332.58
Leave encashment
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 73.65 7476
Benefits paid (14.53) (7.22)
Current service cost 56.04 0.01
Interest cost 4,97 4.82
Past service cost 2.82 -
Actuarial (gains)/losses
- changes in demographic assumptions (4.53) =
- changes in financial assumptions (R.47) ((1.64)
- experience adjustments 3.29 1.92
Balance at the end of the year 113.24 73.65
Maovement in fair vaiite of plan assels Gratuity
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening fair value of plan assets 146.02 57.30
Interest income 9.85 3.69
Acturial gains/(losses) (4.02) 10.40)
Contributions from the employer 81.00 100,00
Benefits paid (22.63) (14.57)
Closing fair value of plan assets 210.22 146.02
Each year the management of the Company reviews the level of funding requried as per its risk o it strategy. The Company expects lo

contribute to gratuity INR 57.24 in FY 2023-24 (31 March 2023: INR 52.85).

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:

As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Funds managed by insurer 100%% 100%%
The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which
the obligation is to be settled.
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b) Expense recognised in profit or loss

Current service cost
Net interest expense
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability

Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan assets

Actuanal (gain)/loss on defined benefit obligation

Components of delined benefil costs recognised in other comprehensive loss

Current service cost

Past service cost

Net mterest expense

Actuarial/(gain) loss on other long term employee benefit plan

Components of other long term employee benefit costs recognised in profit or Joss

¢) Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions as at reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

Discount rate
Expected rate of return on assets

As at

Attrition rate: 31 March 2023

Gratuity

For the vear ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

57.24 46.88
12.58 14.86
69.82 61.74
4.2 .40
(57.18) (.12}
(53.16) (5.72)
Leave enc t

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

56,04 0.01

282 -

4.97 4.82
(9.71) 1.28
54.12 6.1l

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
7.30% 6.75%
7.30% 6.75%
As at

31 March 2022

Upto 4 years of

Ages service
Upto 30 years 32.00%
Above 30 years 12,000
Future salary growth

Year | 12.25%
Year2 12:25%
Year 3 and onwards 12.25%

Mortality table

Above 4 years of

service
32.00%
12.00%

12.25%
12.25%
12.25%

India Assured Life Mortality (2012-14)

Upto 4 years of Above 4 years of

service service
30.00% 30.00%
10.00% 10.00%
12.25% 12.25%
12.25% 12.25%
12.25% 12.25%

India Assured Life Morality (2012-14)

The Company regularly assesses these assumptions with the projected long-term plans and prevalent industry standards,

d) Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions. holding other assumptions constant, would have

affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:
Gratuity

As at 31 March 2023

Impact of change in discount rate by 0.50%

Impact of change in salary by 0.50%

As at 31 March 2022
Impact of change in discount rate by 0.50%
lmpact of change in salary by 0.50%

Increase Decrease
(18.19) 20.06
7.85 (8.19)

Increase Decrease
(21.40) 2381
.0l (9.56)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of

the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

e} The table below summarises the maturity profile and duration of the gratuity liability:

Particulars

Within one year

Within one - three years
Within three - five years
Above five years

Total

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
30.59 23.04
45.19 38.30
40.8¥ 3345
215.78 237.79
332.44 332,58
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28 Share based payment plans

a) Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)
The Company has provided various sharc-based payment schemes to its employees in the preceding financial years. Duning the year ended
31 March 2023, the following schemes were in operation:

ESOP 2017 ESOP 2022
Date of grant June 02, 2017 Jan 10, 2022
Date of Board Approval May 04, 2017 Jan 08, 2022
Date of Sharcholder's approval September 23, 2015 May 07, 2018
Number of options approved 200,730 45,490
Meihod of Seltlement Equity Equity
Vesting period (in months) 0 to 48 Months 0 to 48 Months
The detanls of activity have been summarnized below:
ESOP 2017*
For the year ended 31 March 2023 For the year ended 31 March 2022
Number of Weighted Average  Number of options  Weighted Average
options Exercise Price (INR) Excrcise Price (INR)
Outstanding at the beginning of the vear - - 13,923 200
Granted during the year - - Nil -
Forfeited/ expired during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year - - 13,923 200
Outstanding at the end of the year - - - -
Exercisable at the end of the vear - - Nil - .

* 27 846 shares have been issued against the ESOP exercised under this scheme during the previous yvear.

ESOP 2022
For the yvear ended 31 March 2023 For the year ended 31 March 2022
Number of Weighted Average  Number of opti Weighted Average
options Exercise Price (INR) Exercise Price (INR)
OQutstanding al the beginning of the vear 45,050 10 - -
Granted during the year - - 45.490 10
“orfeited/ expired during the year 5061 n 440 10
Exercised during the year 4,205 n - =
Outstanding at the end of the year 35,784 10 43,050 10
Exercisable at the end of the year Nil - Nil -

Figures for the year ended 31 March 2023 and previous year are as follows:

ESOP 2012 ESOP 2017
Range of exercise prices 10 =
Number of options outstanding 35,784 =
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options (in years) 3 -
Weighted average exercise price 10 -
Weighted average share price for the options exercised during the year 10 -
Figures for the year endad 31 March 2022 are as follows:

ESOP 2022 ESOP 2017
Range of exercise prices 10 200
Number of options outstanding 45,050 -
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options (in years) 383 =
Weighted average exercise price 10 200

Weighted average share price for the options exercised dunng the year - 300
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Stock Options granted

The key inputs used in the measurement of the grant date fair valuation of equity sctiled plans are given in the table below:

Figures for the year ended 31 March 2023 arc as follows:

ESOP 2022 ESOP 2017
Weighted average share price 6.662 28005
Exercise price 10 0
Expected volatility NA 0.00%,
Historical volatility NA 0. 10%
Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise period) in years 4 0.00
Expected dividends NA Nil
Average nisk-free imerest rate NA 720,

Value of options method

*® Fair value has been considered as stock price of the day prior to the grant date.

Figures for the year ended 31 March 2022 are as follows:

Black-Scholes

Market price of stock* valuation model

ESOP 2022 ESOP 2017
Weighted average share price 6662 280.5
Exercise price 1] 200
Expected volatility NA 0,002
Historical volatility NA 0.10%
Life of the options granted { Vesting and exercise period) in years 4 7.70
Expected dividends NA Nil
Average risk-free interest rate NA 7.20%
Value of options method Black-Scholes

* Fair value has been considered as stock price of the day prior to the grant date.

Stock appreciation rights (SAR)

The Company has granted stock appreciation rights to its employees. Details are as fullows

Date of gram

Dale ol Board Approval

Date Of Shareholder's approval
Number of units approved
Methad of Settlement

Vesting year (in months)

SAR 2021

SAR 2018
October 01, 2018 August 01, 2021
Seplember 22, July 19, 2021
May 07, 2018 May 07, 2018
00,740 8,600
Equity Equity
0 to 48 Months 0 to 48 Months

The details of activity have been summarized below:

Market price of stock* valuation model

SAR 2022
January 10, 2022
January D, 2022

May 07, 2018
68,770
Equity

0 o 48 Months

SAR 2018*

For the year ended 31 March 2023

For the vear ended 31 March 2022

Number of SAR  Weighted Average

Number of SAR Weighted Average

umnits Exercise Price (INR) units Exercise Price (INR)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 203,658 500 427,788 500
Granted during the year = = 4 2
Lapsed during the year 2,028 500 11,280 500
Exercised during the year 201,630 500 212,850 500
Expired during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year - - 203,658 500
Exercisable at the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

* 31 March 2023 : 175,893 (31 March 2022 :
year

cn | Gurugram %

208,850) shares have been issued against the SAR exercised under this scheme during the
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SAR 2021* For the vear ended 31 March 2023 For the vear ended 31 March 2022
Number of SAR  Weighted Average Number of SAR Weighted Average
units Exercise Price (INR) units Exercise Price (INR)
O fing ar the beginning of the year 7.250 10 - -
Giranted during the vear - - #.600 10
Lapsed during the vear - = 1.350 10
Exercised during the year T25 10 = =
Expired during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 6,525 10 7.250 10

Exercisable at the end of the year “ =

* 31 March 2023 © 716 (31 March 2022 : Nil) shares have been issued against the SAR exercised under this scheme during the vear,

SAR 2022* For the year ended 31 March 2023 For the vear ended 31 March 2022
Number of SAR  Weighted Average Number of SAR Weighted Average
units Exercise Price (INR) units Exercise Price (INR)
Outstanding at the beginming of the year 66,350 0 - -
Granted during the year - - 68,771 10
Lapsed during the year 6.813 0 2420 10
Exercised during the year 5,996 10 - =
Expired during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 53,541 10 66,350 10

Exercisable at the end of the year - - . -

* 31 March 2023 : 5,447 (31 March 2022 : Nil) shares have been issued against the SAR exercised under this scheme during the year.

For the year ended 31 March 2023

SAR 2018 SAR 2021 SAR 2022
Range of exercise prices 00 10 10
Number of units outstanding R 6,525 53,541
Weighted average remaining contractual life of units (in years) - 233 283
Weighted average exetcise price 500 10 10
For the year ended 31 March 2022

SAR 2018 SAR 2021 SAR 2022
Range of exercise prices S00 1 10
Number of units outstanding 203,658 7.250 66,350
Weighted average remaining contractual life of units (in years) 0.50 333 383

Weighted average exercise price 500 0 10
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SAR units granted
The key inputs used in the measurement of the grant date fair valuation of equity settled plans are given in the table below

For the vear ended 31 March 2023

SAR 2018 SAR 2021 SAR 2022*
Weighted average share price 507 7135 6662
Exercise Price 500 10 10
Expected Volatility 4% NA NA
Historical Volatility 41% NA NA
Life of the units granted (Vesting and exercise year) in years 4 4 4
Expected dividends Nil NA NA
Average risk-free interest rate T.80% NA NA
Value of options method Black-Scholes

valuation model Market price of stock® Market price of stock™
* Fair value has been considered as stock price of the day prior to the grant date.

For the vear ended 31 March 2021

SAR 2018 SAR 2021* SAR 2022*
Woeighted average share price 597 7135 6662
Exercise Price 500 10 10
Expected Volanlity 41" NA NA
Historical Volatility 41% NA NA
Life of the units granted (Vesting and exercise year) m years 4.00 4 4
Expected dividends Nil NA NA
Average risk-free interest rate 7.80% NA NA
Value of options method Black-Schales

valuation model Market price of stock* Market price of stock®
* Fair value has been considered as stock price of the day prior to the grant date,

Effect of the employvee share-based payment plans on the profit and loss:

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Total Employee Compensation Cost pertaining to share-based payment plans 262.50 102.73
Compensation Cost pertaining to equity-settled employee share-based payment plan included 262.50 102,73
above
Effect of the employee share-based payment plans on its financial position:
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Total reserve for employee share based payments outstanding as at year end 256.53 130.15
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24 Fair value measurcments

a) Category wise details as to carryving value, fair value and the level of fair vilue measurement hierarchy of the Company's financial instruments arc as follows:

Asan As at
Level 31 Mureh 2023 31 March 2021

Financial asseis

a) Measured 1 faer volue theough profit or less (FVTPL)

- Investment in mutial funds and exchange trsded funds| Refer Note biing belmw) Level | 110.704.35 157330
~Invesments o Investment Trast (Refor Note b below) Leved ) ARl 19 32763
= Lvesments i Aflernative investment hundds (Refer Note b below) Level 1 = 10261
- Imvestment in bonds & debentures (Refor Note hiy ) below) Lawel 2 10,250.94 B RI25T
= Investment by debi ¢ of sl anil equity
instruments of ollier eiitics (Reler Noe biiv) below) Level § LITT.10 176865
- in deebt & of ol FVTPL { Refer Note bivi) below) Level 3 KO0 =

20 3% 7 4.6 T

) Measured ot amentised cost {Refier Nose biiand (i) below)

= Traide receivahles 15,82 13.26
= Cash und cash equivilents Si0.09 45278
= Louns to employess 5.21 o7
= Imer-comporate deposits - 41733
- Security deposits 46,18 4227
= Diepusats with Banks 1.6 27277
« Other financial assts 12918

699.14
Tolal (n+h) 24.075.92
S

Finnncial linbilities )

o) Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

= Other fisncial lishilities (Refer Note bisi) below) Level 3 50,50 s

50.50 -

) Measured at amortised cost (Refer Niote bii) and (i) below)

= Trade puyahles 25479 182 96
- Secunity deposits 078 =
- Cither financial lubilities 21726 154.20
= Liease liobilities 45008 S62.K(
Totul 93181 940,08

95141 40,05
o= ==
by The following methods / assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

i) The carmying value of Deposits with Banks: Inter-corporite deposits with Financial institutions, trade bles, vash and cash equivalents. loans 10 engpl trade payables, security deposits, lease liabilities and

other financial assets and other financial labilitics d ot ised cost approxi thelr fair value due to the short-term maturitics of these instruments
These have been assessed basis counlerparty credit risk
i) The fair value of non-cument linancial assets and finsocial labilities are determined by discounting fture cash Dows using curmend mifes of bstruments wilh similsr terms and credit sk, The current rates wed do not

reflect significant changes from the discouwnt rles used initially. Therefore, the camying value of these § d ot 5] cowt wppron thicis fair value
i) Fair value of quoted mutual funds, exchange traded fund, ¥ funds and frust 19 based on quoted market prices o1 the reporting date. We do nol expect maderial volatiliy in these
finunial tesels,
iv) Fuir value of debt 1 of subsid: quity/pref i of other entitics is estimated based on repl cost mcthod ! di d cxsh Bows  market mwliple valuation technique using cosh
fiow projections. discount rate and crodit risk md are classified se Level 3.
v) Faer value of the quoted bonds and det s | ussny ok ble marke's mputs and is classified as Level 2
vi} Fair value of derivative eontract fizhility is determined using Monte Carlo Simulation method wnd is classificd as Level 3
vi} Fair value of debw | of af faten s estl d based an repl. cost method / discounted cash flows ¢ market multiple valustion technigue wsing cush flow projections, discount rale and eredit riskc
and are clessified as Level 3,
¢} Follawing table deseribes the valusth i used and key inputs thereto for the Jevel 3 finuncial assets a3 of 31 March 2023 ;
Finuncial assets Valuation technbgue(s) Skgnificant Signifi Ints tatl Ip between signif
Unohservahle input Unobservable inpui  anshservable input and fair viloe messurement
range
in debt of i and 1
instruments of other entitics
Pay With Indiamart Private Limisted and Trodezenl Onlbme Prvate Limited Murkes multiple approach.  Morker multiples 1.7% The estimated fair valye of investment m
(Comparable subsidiarics s uther entitics will Inerease
Companics) {decrense) if the Market maitiphe is higher (fower)
Zimyo Conssilting Private Limited, Fleets Technologees Privote Limited and Mynd - Morket multiple spproach 1) Discoant mwe 1) 25 R0P-28.50%  The catimated fair vatue of investment i other
Solutions Private Limited wnal dmscounted cash flow ip Revenoe gowth rate i) 10%-204.7% entities will Inciease! (decrease} if the revense
approach ity Marker mulples i) 2.0%-7.2x growth rate and Market multiple 15 higher/ (lower).
iComparable The estimated far value of investmen: in other
Companics) entities will Ingrease! |decrease) if the Discount Rate
s | lower) higher,
Tolese Ouline Private Limited Replacemen cost methed  Replicement cost NA WA
Fruancial Liability Valuatlon technbgue Significant I latlonship between signil
Unobservable input unobscrvable input and fair valie messurement
Dierivative contracrun] Lishility Monte Carlo Simobtion 1y Diiscount rate ¥ The estinted Falr value of derivarive contract
method ) Revenue growth rate i) 29.60%-57160%:  laebility will Incncase: (decresse) of the Discount
il Marker mihiples 2% Rate, revene growth rte and Market muliple
[Comparahle higher {bower)
Companies) The estimated fair value of dervative contrict
lishality will Inerease [decroase) iF the Dizcount
Rate b= (loweryhigher
Sensitivity

For the fair value of invesiment in subsidisrice and other emities, rensonably possible changes in significant enobservable inputs &1 the repoping date would have the following effect:

For the year ended
31 Murch 2023

{n) Mscount Raw
~1¥ o cliange 15.97)
-1% change 963

{bi Revenue Growth Rate:

+|*s change 1586
-1 change (16.32)

(€) Market Muliiple:
2.5% change 1513
-2.5"u chunge L1513}
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¢} Foliewing table describes the valustion techniques esed und key fnputs thereto for the Jevel 3 financial assets as of 31 March 2022 «

Financial asscts Valuation techniquels)  Significant Int Lationship between signifi
Unabservable inpat wnohservalle lnput and falr valie measurement
runge

Tnvestmwnt in debst instraments of subsidiaries and equity

mstruments of other eatitics

-Pay With Indiaman Private Limuted, Tradereal Online Private Limited, Mobisy — Market muallipie approach 0. 7x-R3y The extrmated faer value ol myvestment in

Technulogies Private Limited, Mynid Solutions Private Limited. Zimyo Consuliing subsiduaries and other entities will Incresse

Private Limited and Fieetx Technologies Private Limited (devreuse) if the Market multiple & higher (lower)

=Talexo Online Privaie Limite) Replacemient comt method  Replocement vos [

For the famr value of mvesiment in subsidianes and other entitees, reasonably possible changes in Market Multiple by 250 basis poinds at the reporting date being o significant unobservable inputs, would have the
lollowing effect®
For the vear ended
31 March 2022
=2.5% changu in Marke Muliple nn
<2 &% change in Market Maliiphe 121i9)

d) Reconcilintion of level 3 fuir value messurementy
Investment i Opiionally Convertible
Comulative Redeemable Preference instruments

of subsidisrics
For the vear ended For the year ended 31
31 March 2023 March 2022
Opening balance 137.30 01 50
Ciain (loss) recognised in profit or loss 22040 145040
Additwons - EAR ]
Closing balanee 115.50 137.50

Investment in equity preference nstruments of
other entities/investoent in debt insiraments of

ussockates
For the year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening bulunes 1.631.15 o
s recognised in profit of loas 23980 172
Additions 32068 152344
IHsposuls Extingulshment 113730 -
Change in fatus of investment 1o Associate (312.73) -
Clusing balance 174160 163015
Durivative contract Linbility
Fuor the year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening halanee = -
Addtwons 50.50 -
Closing balanee S50 -

e] Ehviring the year ended 3| March 2023 and 31 March 2022, there were ne transfers duw to re-classificatinn into and out of Level 2 fair vulue mensurements
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30 Capital management

The Company mansges s capital o ensure that the Company will be able 1o as a going while maxi g the returns 1w stakeholders through the
optimisation of the borrowings and equity halance

The capital structare of the Company consists of no borrawings and only equity of the Company.

The Company is not subject W any externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company reviews the capital structure on a regular basis. As part of this review, the Company considers the cost of capital, risks associated with each class of capital
i} and mair ce of adeguate lguidity,

1

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company is exposed to market risk, eredit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establi and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. The Company’s risk management policies are established 1o identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate
risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Company's activities.

The Company’s Board oversees how manisgement monitors compliznce with the Company s risk pelicies and fures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in refation to the risks faced by the Company. The Board is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes regular reviews of
risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee,

i) Credit risk management
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 10 the Company if a customer or counterparty 1o a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Company’s Cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and investments in motual funds, bonds, exchange traded funds, dot s, units of al Ve mvestment

funds and units of investment frust.
The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure
Credit nisk nt considers available 1 ble and suppertive forward-looking information meluding indicators like external credit rating (as far as available), macro-

economic | ion (such as regs ry changss, g directives, market interest rate),

Trade receivables

The Company primarily collects consideration in advance for the services w be provided to the customer, As a result, the Company is ot exposed to significant credit risk on
trade receivables,

Cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and investments in mutual funds, bonds, exchange traded funds, debentures, units of alternative investment funds and units of

investment trust.
The company maintsins its cash and cash cquivalents, bank deposits, inter-corporate deposits and investment in mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds. debentures,

units of altemative investment funds and units of in trust with reputed banks and financial institutions. The credit risk on these instruments is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies,

Security deposits and Loans

The Company monitors the credit rating of the counterparties on regular basis. These instruments carry very minimal credit risk based on the financial position of partics and
Company's historical experience of dealing with the parties

i) Liguidity risk management

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in ing the obligat iated with it fi il liabilities that are senled by delivering cash or
another Nnancial asset. The Company’'s approach to managing liquidity is 1o ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity o meet its liabilities when they are
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.

Ulrimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, who has 1 an appropriate liquidity risk g k for the
management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements, The Company manages lquidity risk by muintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilitics and by continuously monitoring forccast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilitics,
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31 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

Maturities of financial liabilitics
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's undiscounted financial liubilities bused on contraciual payments:

Contractual maturitics of financial labilities

31 March 2023 Within 1 year Between | and 5 Total
vears and thereafter
Trade payables 15479 - 25479
Lease habilities 118.80 455.49 574.29
Other financral linbilities 21804 5749 275.53
591.63 51298 1,104.61
31 March 2022 Within 1 yvear Between 1 and 5 Total
years and thereafter
Trade payables 182.96 - 18296
Lease liabilitics 10041 63441 T3482
Other financial labilities 19429 2 194.29
477.66 63441 111207

iii) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of furure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluetuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of
risk: interest rate risk, currency risk snd other prive risk, such as equity price risk and commadity risk, Financial instruments affected by market risk include foreign currency

receivables, deposits, investments in mutual funds, exchange raded funds, bonds. det units of al ive in funds, units of 1 trust and i nt
in ather entitics.

a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or fure cash fows of an exposure will 11 k of changes in foreign exchange rates. The pany’s CXpOSUTe

to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relares primarily to the company s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency). The
company's exposure to unhedged foreign currency sk as ot 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is not material. Currency risks related to the principal amounts of the
compuny's US dollar rade receivables.

b) Interest rate risk

Investment of shor-term surplus funds of the Company in liquid schemes of mutual funds, bonds, det . units of alt ive investment fund and investment trust
provides high level of hquidity from & portfolio of money market securiuies and high quality debt and categorized as “low risk’ product from hquidity and interest rate risk
perspectives.

Sensiriviry Impact on profit before tux
For the year ended 31 For the vear ended
March 2023 31 March 2022
+ 5% change in NAV of mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment funds 1,075.98 1,149.71
and investment trust.
- 5% change in NAV ol mutunl funds, exchange traded funds. bonds, debentures, units of aliernative investment funds and (1.075.98) {1,149.71)

nvestment trust
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32 Segment information
As per Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”, the Company has disclosed the segment information only ns part of consolidated finoncial statements

33 Related party transactions
i) Numes of related purties and related party relationship:

a) Entity's subsidiaries & associates Subsidiaries Hello Trade Onhine Private Linuted
Tradezeal Online Private Limited
Talexo Online Private Limited
Pay With Indiamart Private Limited
Busy Infotech Private Limited (with effect from 06 April 2022)
Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited (Formerly known as Finlite Technologies Private Limited) (with effect from 23 May 2022)
Livekeeping Private Limited (Subsidiary of Livekeeping Technologics Privite Limited, with ¢ffect from 23 May 2022)

Associates Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited
Ten Times Online Private Limited (ceased 10 be an associate with effeet from 16 March 2023)
1B Monotaro Private Limited
Mabisy Technologies Private Limited (with effect from 03 November 2022)

b) Individuals owning directly or indirectly. an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them Significant Infl over the Comy und Key Manag Personnel (KMP)

Name Designation

Dinesh Chandra Agarwal Managing Direetor & CEQ

Brijesh Kumar Agrawal Whole time director

Prateek Chandra Chief finuncial officer

Manoj Bhargava Company Secretary

Dhruv Prakash Won-executive direetor

Rajesh Sawhney Independent director

Elizabeth Lucy Chapman Independent direetor (Resigned with effect from 07 October 2022)
Vivek Narayan Gour Independent director

Pallavi Dinodia Gupta Independent di {Appointed with effect from 20 October 2022)

¢) Entities where Individuals and Key Management Personnel (KMP) as defined above exercise significant influence
Mansa Enterprises Private Limited
Mynd Solutions Private Limited

d) Other related parties
Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust (admini d Trust to employees share based poyment plans of the Company)
Indiamart Intermesh Employees Group Gratuity A € Scheme (admini d Trust to post employ defined benefits of employees of the Company)
i) Key 2 personnel comp
For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March 2023 March 2022

Short-term employee benefits 154.26 13724
Post- employment benefits 0.04 0.25
Other long-term employee benefits 1.79 036

13.76 546

Employee share based payment
169.85 143.31
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33 Related party transactions (Cont'd)
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered inte with the related purties for the relevant financial year:

Particulars For the vear ended | For the year ended 31
31 March 2023 March 2022
| Entities where KMP and Individuals exercise
Significant influence
s o

Mansa Enterprises Privane Limited 204 173
Purchase of Investment
Mynd Solutions Privite Limited 240,68 -
Sale ol Ipvestment
Mynd Solutions Private Limited 137.31 -
Key management personnel (KMFP)
Recruitment and training expenses
Diruv Prakash 135 -
Luans
Manoj Bhargava 1.50
Director's suting fees 480 3.55
Dividend paid
Dinesh Chandra Agarwal 1718 12940
Brijesh Kumar Agrawal 1164 £1.73
Prateek Chandra 0.23 |.46
Manaj Bhargava 0.01 0.0l
Rajesh Sawhney 001 0.08
Dhruv Prakash 0.03 .38
Vivek Narayun Gour 0,01 n.1s
Subsidiaries and Associates
Tolexo Online Private Limited - 52.00
Tradezeal Online Private Limited 21250 T60.00
Hello Trade Online Private Limited 0.30 -
Busy Infotech Private Limited 3.000.00 -
Livekeeping Technologics Private Linuted*® 450.82 -
Investment in associates
Simply Vvapar Apps Private Limited 3078 615.51
Mobisy Technologies Private Limited 23118 -
18 Monotaro Private Limited - 1.041.77
Sale of Investment in associules
Ten Times Onlme Pyvt. Ltd L3

ans 1o subsidiaries .
Tradezeal Online Private Limited - 286,50
Repavment of loans 1o subsidianes
Tradezeal Online Private Limited - 286.50
Web & Advertisement services provided to
Pay With Indiamart Private Limited 449 4.25
Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited 16.47 843
1B Monotaro Private Limited 0.32 -
Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited 012 -
Busy Inforech Private Limiled 0.14 .
Indemnification pavments
Pay With Indiaman Private Limuted 0.61 .99
Customer support services availed from
Pay With Indiamart Private Limited .83 249
Miscellaneous services provided 1o
Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited 043 238
Livekeeping Technologies Prvate Limated 1.24 -
Pay With Indinmart Private Limited 0.76 -
Internet and online seryices availed fom
Ten Times Online Pvt. Lid 0.05 017
Interest received on losng given
Tradezeal Online Private Limited - 297
Share Based pavment pursuant 1o subsidiary
Busy Inforech Privare Limited 315 -
Indiamart Emplovee Benefit Trust
Repaymem of loan given - 2.00
Share capital issued 210 1.73
Interest free Joan piven - 0,50
Drividend paid 0.15 331

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The transactions with refated parties are entered on terme equivalent o those that prevail m arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances ot
the year end are unsecured and interest free and settlement oceurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any relaied
party receivables or payables. This assessment is undertaken each financial period through examiming the financial position of the related party
and the market in which the related party operates,
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for the vear ended 31 March 2023

33 Related party transactions (Cont'd)

The following table discloses the balunces with reloted porties at the relevant period end:

Balance O fing at the period end

As at
31 March 26823

As at
31 March 2022

Subsidiary companics
Investment m debt nstruments of subsidries
(Measured m FVTPL)

Tolexir Online Priviate Limited

Tradezeal Online Privane Limited

Pay With Indiamart Private Limited

Investment in eguity instruments and debentures of
subsudiarics (Al cost)®

Tolexo Online Private Limited

Tradezeal Online Private Limited

Hello Trade Online Private Lumited

Pay With Indiamart Private Limited

Busy Infotech Privite Limied

Livekeeping Techuologies Private Limited®

Key managdment persannel (KMP)
Leoans
Munwoj Bhargava

Associates

L ety in AssociMes (at oost)
Sumply Yyapar Apps Private Linuied

Ten Times Online Private Limited

IB Monotaro Private Linuted

Muohisy Technologies Private Limited

Mohisy Technologies Private Limited

Trade receivables
Simply Vvapar Apps Private Limned

Other Resovembles
Busy Infotech Private Limited

Deferred Revenue

Simply Vyapar Apps Private Eimited
Livekeeping Technologics Private Limited
Busy Inftech Private Limited

IB Monotaro Private Limsted

Invesiment m Entites where KME and Individuals

excreise Synificant mfluence
Mynd Solutions Private Limited

600, 00
55,50

7002
933,60
.60
1.on
S.000.00
459,82

967.30
1.041.77
463.90

BO.00

153
0.12
0.30
110

571.36

20
]
§5.50

70,02
700
0.30
1.0

1.50

§27.52
093
1.041.77

1.01

* Does not inchude Contractual wivestment rights of INR 50,50 in Livekeeping technologies private hmited
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34 The Company has provided following function wise results of operations on a voluntary basis

o w >

mo

The management has presented the below function wise results because it also monitors its performance in the manner explained below and it believes that this
information is relevant to understanding the Campany's financial performance. The basis of calculation is also mentioned for reference.

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue from operations 9.388.17 7.507.70
Customer service cost (2,371.39) (1,596.08)
Surplus over customer service cost (A-B) 7.016.78 5911.62
Selling & Distribution Expenscs 1.845.68 1.097.47
Technology & Content Expenses 1.746.75 1,105.36
Marketing Expenses 47.50 2645
Depreciation and amortisation 192 68 119.01
Other Operating Expenses 760.63 561.42
Total 4,593.24 2,909.71
Operating profit (C-D) 2,423.54 3.001.91
Finance costs (46.79) (54.02)
Other income 1.128.83 1.078.60
Total 1,082.04 1,024.58
Proft before exceptional items and tax 3.505.58 402649
Exceptional item 52.61 -
Profit before tax 345297 4.026.49
Tax expense 73111 528.25
Profit for the period 2,721.86 3,098.24

Below is the basis of classification of various function wise expenses mentioned above:

Customer service cost

Customer service cost primarily consists of employee benefits expense (included on "Employee benefit expense” in Note 21) for employees involved in servicing of our
clients; website content charges (included in “Content development expenses” in Note 24); PNS charges i.e. rental for premium number service provided to our paying
suppliers (included in “Buyer Engagement Expenses” in Note 24); SMS & Email charges i.e. cost of notifications sent to paying suppliers through SMS or email
(included in “Buyer Engagement Expenses” in Note 24); Buy Lead Verification & Enrichment i.e. costs incurred in connection with the verification of RFQs posted by
registered buyers on Indiamart and provided to our paying suppliers as a part of our subscription packages (included in “Customer Support Expenses™ in Note 24); other
expenses such as rent, power and fuel, repair & maintenance, travelling & conveyance allocated hased on employee count; collection charges: domain registration &
renewal charges (included in “Internet and other online expenses” in Note 24) for serving our clients.

Selling & Distribution Expenses
Selling & Distribution Expenses primarily consists of employee benefits expense for employees involved in acquisition of new paying suppliers; Outsourced sales cost
i.e, costs incurred in connection with our outsourced telephone sales team and field sales team, other expenses such as rent, power and fuel, repair & maintenance,
travelling & conveyance allocated based on employee count.

Technology & Content Expenses
Technology and content expenses include employee benefits expense for employees involved in the research and development of new and existing products and services,

development, design. and maintenance of our website and mobile application, curation and display of products and services made available on our websites, and digital
infrastructure costs; Data Verification & Enrichment i.e. amount paid to third parties to maintain and enhance our database (included in “Content development expenses™
in Note 24); PNS charges i.e. rental for premium number service provided to our free suppliers (included in “Buyer Engagement Expenses” in Note 24); SMS & Email
charges i.e. cost of notifications sent to buyers and free suppliers through SMS or email (included in “Buyer Engagement Expenses” in Note 24); Buy Lead Verification
& Enrichment i.e. costs incurred in connection with the verification of RFQs posted by registered buyers on Indiamart and provided to our free suppliers (included in
“Customer Support Expenses” in Note 24); ather expenses such as rent, power and fuel, repair & maintenance, travelling & conveyance allocated based on employee
count; Complaint Handling (1-800) Exp. (included in “Customer Support Expenses™ in Note 24); Server Exp. (Web Space for Hosting), Software Expenses, Server Exp.
(Google Emails-Employees) & Website Support & Maintenance (included in “Internet and other online expenses™ in Note 24).

Marketing Expenses

While most of our branding and marketing is done by our field sales representatives through face to face meetings with potential customers (included in Selling &
Distribution Expenses), our branding is aided by our spending on marketing, such as targeted digital marketing, search engine advertisements and offline advertising,
and we also engage in advertising campaigns from time to time through television and print media. Employee benefits expense for employees involved in marketing
activities are also included in marketing expenses.

Other Operating Expenses
Other operating expenses primarily include employee benefits expense for our support function employees: expenses such as rent, power and fuel, repair & maintenance,

travelling & conveyance allocated basis employee count; browsing & connectivity-branch & employees (included in “Internet and other online expenses™ in Note 24);
telephone expenses-branch & employees (included in “Communication Costs™ in Note 24); recruitment and training expenses; legal and professional fees and other

miscellancous operating expenses.
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35 Contingent Hubilities snd comsmitrments
u) Contlagent liabilities

0 Prursicama tir the wervive das sudi lor the financal year 200314 10 J0E7-0K (e upto 30 June 2017 5, 8 demand has bees raised on nonspayment o setvice s ader oule 6030 of COR, 2004
on "Net gpan on sxde of current imvestmenis” of INK 1538 The Company has already revonled the provision for the said amount i ihe bivks of accousts m the firumeial year 200930, The
Cortmary wus cantestity the aloresabl mentioned demand ugaimit comminsioner | Appeaby During the current year, the order hus besn received repectg the appeal aml impasing 1HRL
penalty of INIE 1538, The Campany i in process ol filing the appeal betore Tribunal aganst the order. and the manegement belicves that the Dompany’s pastion n the matier vl 5e
temithle

2 On Fehbouary 28 2009, o judgment of the Supreme Coun af India interpecting ceniam sutsdary defined oovirbation obligations of employees and emplavers alsered Bistarical
unslerstarabings of such obligutions, extznding them to cover addittanal portions of the employee + ineame. However, the dgment isa't caplict of such intemretataun miy have retrospectiig
application resulting i ncressed comtrbution for past and futire yeun for certain employess of the Company. The Company, bused on an intermal assessamient, evalusisd thal fhiere are
TURTWITIIE {Ier chall o the i I of the fudgment which resubiz in impractivability o estimation of and timang of payment and ameseat imvelsal, As @ resnlt
ol lack of wuidaney and tuallengees bmolved, the Company iv snable o feliably esimae the amous miolved Aceedingty, the Company shall evalmte the
ameumt of pron dston, 1 any, on there being fartber clarisy on e matier.

3 The Company o mvolved m vaieous lowsiirs, clams and proveedings thar asise m e andicay coiirse of bisness, the oo of whacl i nherenly uncentan. Same of these aatlves
bl spevulotive snd lividous clabims b pibstamtial of jodatcomandse ainousts of danages. The Company oords o Bability when B s botls probable ot o loss bas been incatred and il
wmrear can be peasonably eimsicd. Simificant judgrent is required e derermmng bath probabifing o the estimated amoust. The Company reviews these prosessoms and adpusts ihes
prinvisinns acvordingly e refe the impout of negetainnk, witlanents, milings, sace of Tegul goonsel, wnd upsdused infonmation. The Compaey bl tha the sasunt of extimable rang:
ol reassmably possible loss, will not, gither imdivduslly or i the spgregate, hive a makerial adverse eliect on ity business. financual position, resulis or cash flows of the Company. with
TEapeet o lows commpencies far lepal and other contingencics us a2 31 March 2023,

4. The Indiasi Parfiament haa approved the Cude on Social Sccurity, 2020 which wondd impact 1he contribsitiuns hy the Company Tawards Prsident Find and Gratiity, The effective date
From which the changex are applicable s ye1 10 be natified and the fnal miles are yeu 1o be patified. The Conpany will carmy o an evalusiion of the impact and recond the same in the
Thnesncanl stateaenty in the period in which the Code beeomes elfactive umid (he relaied rabes ane o) led

b} Capitsl snd other commitment
~ As s 31 March 2023 the Company s NIL vepital commitiment (31 March 2022 KLy

= The Company will peovide fnancal support t its whidly owined subsidiaries, so as 0 meet their liabilives s and when the same i requised.

b Corperaie Social Respoasibility (CSR) Expenditure

Particulars |
31 March 2023] 31 March 2022
a1 A sequined to b spent by the company during the year, 51,34 3480
41 040
A1L57) (L]
1 Total previoes vear {Shartfall) ‘excess - 151
Pertaims 1) WA
«h Reasn for shorifall onpning progects|
i} Awtivilies bd il
g} Details of relaed party iranaction 0 relotn w C5R Nil| wil|
Ish Where a provisica is made with respect 10 a lbility incurrecd by entering bnte o comtractusl obligation, the movements in the R 9
prevites year shall be shown 4

* Prinary Felueation and Skill Uevelopment
** Educution and skill Iscalthcare, ic devel anal any act il et schedile VITof Companies Act 2005

# The Company has tansferred the wnspent CSR lability 1o "ndiamar: Infermesh Limited unspent CSE account FY-2022-23" ameusting to INK 1203, basis the approved projics

37 Additionsl Regulstory Infarmstion
a) - Ratio
[Ratie N Current year | Previows vear (%, Vartance *
Current Ratie (in times) Chueranl Ansate [ Current luabilithes 2170 3,70 2T
Dbt-Eauity Rutio (in tinses) Tomul  dobes  irepresents  bewse | Shureholder's squity
lishilitics | {Refer Node | below) a0y 0.0 2%
Dbt Servive Coversge Hatio (in times) Earning wvaitable fir debd service [Debt Service (Refer Nate 3 below )
|{Befier Bote 2 below) 00 198 175
Interest Coverage ratho (o tlmes) Frofit Deloee  ieteres, s & | Finance cist
exiepial ileme T ekl 1%
Return on Equlty Ratia {in %) Pufir after . arribusoble ol Average Sharchobler's Equity
equity sharchulders L3.T8% 17.06% 2%
Trade Receivables turnover ratie (in tnses) Net Crest sales duning the year  |Average trade receivable
2138 .63 1%
Trade payshies tnrnover ratio (in times) Chliet expenscs Avernge traile payahle
1270 144 2%
Nt capital turnover rutie (fn times) Revene Boen oporations Working  capital  {Cunem Assets
[Cusrremt babiliies 6T .42 A0
Net profit rutie fin %) Net profif after tas Revenue from eperations 2599% 4127 30%
Uperating Profit Margin rotle (io %) Puoofit  befire  nterest, o Reyenue from operations
eaceplional [tems & other neome EERTER =15%
ERITDA Murgin eatio (in %) EBTTDA (Reler Nate & below) | Rt etive Son operations
27T 45T 3%
Heturn on Capltal rlﬂmllk[lcll!!i’ln ab Lansing before mierest and laxes |Capital  employed  (Refer  Note 4]
bciow | 16 55" 20 Tt =204
Reture um bivestment (RO (s %) Incame peerated from invested|Average mvested funds in treasury]
fiands | Refer Mg § helow) i ey Mido 6 bel A46% 4,495 A%
Dbt to EBITDVA (in times) Toral debrs  (ivprosents  lease] EBITDA (Roler Note 8
Liahilinies) (Refer Nuse | below) (L] (N1} 1%
Nates
1) Tutal debi represents lase linbilites.
2) Earning available for debt service - Net Profit after txes + Mon-cuh apersting exp Hke & i and « Inforest + other ndjustments Hice gun on sale of Fixed
assers, ahare hased expenses ete,

3} Dbt service = Lease Payments {kmerest ¢ Principal)

4} Capital Employed — Total sharcholdur's equity + Defiered tas lability 4 Lease lahilithes

Sk Incomse penerated from invested funiés ~ FYTPL gmin oo motual fusds, exchange traded funds, boads, diby waniits of al v I oed Fandy and i 1 wrust + Imtercst
imcome from Bund depostts + Intorest ineome on imter oorparute deposits

&1 Averags invested fimds in cremsary investments - Average of LAverg: quarterly opening treasury investments and quarterly chising freasury mvestments =

# Freasary lnvestmeots = Mutaal funds, exchangs traded fands, boads, debentures, wnsts of alwmative i fiondds andd i trast ¢ Inker - enpewate deposits + Bank deposits

74 Average i calculating based on simple avvrage of opening and cloving halances

) EBITDA stands for profit befioe interest, b, depreciation, smortisalion & uecptisusl s

* Esplsnation when variance m fdio han 25%
- Current Ratio
The fall in ratio privoarily on sccoum of decrease i the current wssets as the Company has utilied the n Figuidd i 10 ks i whach are classified in

nen current assels Further there has been an increase i the currenl contract liabilines
Net capital turoover rutho (in toses |
Om account al incraase m the revenie for the yesr an decrense in the ney warking eapital,
= Nt profil ratie fis *y ). Operating Prefin Margio rotio (in %) & EBITDA Margin ratio (in time )
Decrease 15 o0 socount of ncrease in operaimg expenses | mapdy empluyee benefi cxpemes) as compared W neresse in revenae
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37 Additional Regulatory Information
b} - Relationship with Struck off companies

iticaat 31 March 2023
S, No. | Name of the struck off company BT Relationship | Transaction | nee
AL outstonding

Revenue and contract) Custonicr

1 | Maharshi Charzl Naturul Private Linuted |habilities - 8
Revenue and contract] Customer

2 |Sahant Packaging Private Limited liahilitics -* il
Revenue amd contruct] Customer

3| Kilbumn Power Giear Limited ¢ labilies =* -*
Revenie and contrct] Costomer

i ulitude Lngineering ||inbi]im-: & =
Revenue and “ustomer

5 | Sumithra Agro Foods Private Limited linbilines = =
Revenne and contract] Customer

i [Jee Lighting System Private Limitsd linbilities ad >
R and ‘ustormer

7| Gabbar Entery Privale Limited lianbilities i s
Revenue and ermtract| Customer

E [ Mybestfood Services Private Linoted liabulities o *
Revenue and contract| Cusiomer

4 {New Hindustan Tubes Private Limited liabilities -+ .+
Revenue und contract| Customes

10{Shml fnfra Prvate Lomited liahilities - =t
Revenue and contract] Customers

|| |40 ormulations Private Limitad liabilitics - -
Revenue and contracy Customer

12 |Fifihridge Technology Private Limited labalitaes -* -*
Revenue and contract] Customer

13| Tocis Private Limited ligbifities -+ -
Revenue snd contract| Customer

14 { Awro Fire Solutions Private Limited Ibilities -* -*
Revenue and contract) Customer

15 |Mukhi Charging Solutions (Ope) Private Limited linhilities = e
Revenoe and contract| Customer

16| Subplime Arc Indin Privite Limited linhifitics - *
Revenue and contract| Customer

17| Agrono Mech Private Limited liahilities - .
Revenwe and comractf Customer

18| Pm Gapal Frivate Limited liabilitics e *
[Revenue and contract| Customer

19| lnd Digisoft Private Limited liabilitics - -*
Revenue and contract| Cusiomer

20 | Hani Hemes linbilities e -
(Fevenue and contruct] Customer

2| |Pocbran ((Ope) Prvate Limited lishilities - -*
Revenue and contract] Customer

22 |Ferroteal Private Limited linbilitics -* -+
Revenue and contruct] Customer

3| Balaj Gum India Pyt Lid linbiliries s =4
R amd Customer

24 [ Mubkund Logistics Private Limited liabilitics =+ =
Reverme and ustomer

25| Shipvey Cargo (Ope) Privale Limited liabilities s md
Revenue and contract] Customer

26| 0smic Glass (Ope) Private Limited liabilities s il
Revenue and contract| Customer

27| Svundwaye Technologies (Opc) Private Limited lisbsilities of e
Revenue and contract) Customer

28 | Brikbond Omlne Services Private Limited liabilities - -*
Revenue and contract| Customer

20 [ Halaji Sublns And Prabhis Privale Limiled liabilines il i
Revenue and contract] Customer

30 | Notion Engineering Private Lunited lighilities - 1
Revenue and contract] Customer

3| |Fieetkurt Logisitics Private Limited liahlities AL 2
Revenue and contrsct] Customer

32| 7Th Sky Innovative Consublams Private Limied liahilities S o
Revenue snd contract] Customer

33 |Hyvbrid Solutions Indin Private Limited linbilitics -* -*
R and uslomer

34| Sarveon Training And Consultants Private Limited Tnabilitres -* =t
R and Customer

35 | Shruthi Homes And Paving Blocks Privite Limited lighitities -* -
Reverue and contract Customer

36| Aliek Indip Private Limited Tabilitics . .
Revenue und contraet] Customer

37 |Drientech | Pt Lad liabilities =" sy
Revenue and contraet] Cusiomer

33| Protectron Electromech Private Limited Linbilities - -~
Revernue und contract] Customer

39| Edicent Quality Reg Private Lumited linbilities = -
Revenee und contract| Customer

40 {Jv Block Bearing Company Private Limited liahilities izl =




lndigmurt Intermesh Limited
Nutes (o 8 Jak Fi kal Tor the vear ended 31 March 2023
{Amounts w INR mullion, unkess otherwise stated )

37 Additional Regulatory Information
h) - Relationship with Struck off companies (Cont'd)

i | 31 Murch 2023
5. Now | Name of the struck ofl company Fransacting Relatipnship Transaction Balance
mount vutstundil

Revenue and contrsel| Customer

A1 fArusan Selutods Prvate Loniad lighifitics -* =
Revenue and contract| Cestomer

2} Apple Insulated Wires Private Limited li L A it
enue and contract Customer

43 |Herbalife Inernational indis Py Lul lighilities -* -*
Revenue ind gontract| Customer

44| The By Nature Private Linited habilities -* -*
Fevenue and contract| Customer

45| V-Tac Infra Svatem Indin Pravite Limited lihilities = s
Revenue and contract| Customer

46 | Uliznchrom Innevatives Movate Limited (Ope) - sl
Revernnie and controct| Cuastomer

47 | Dynamic ies Pyt Lid liabilitics ot 2t
R und “ustomer

4% |Lev Textile Spures tndia (PIL1d Tibilities = wad
Revenue and o Customer

49 | Bhurmika Oryanic Product Private Limited liabilitles - -
Revenue gnd contract] Customer

F0{Unigue Compusoft Pvt. Lid, liabilities Dl s
Revenve and comtract] Customes

51| Paradise Electricals () Lid liablities i td
Revenue and contiact] Customer

52| Dinom Imernational India Private Limited Libilities 2 -
Reverue and contract| Cusiomer

53 | Pyrotel Indin Private Limied Tiabilities o ol
Revenie and contract] Customer

54 |Marketwave Solutions (Ope) Private Limited -* -*
Customer

55 |Dutta Krupa Food Industries Private Limited -* -+
Customer

56| Raviwell Healtheare Private Limited -* -*
Customer

57 [Quolny Technoplus Private Linuted .- .
Customer

58 | Aadeshwar Herbs Provate Limited == -
Customer

50| Aden Dl India Private Limited . .
[Revene und contruct] Customey

60 | Lush Green Decor Hi fture And Laswdscape Privat liabilities =" =
R and usiomer

61 JAlee Stalfing Servlces Private Limited labilities -* i
Revenue and contract| Customer

62 |Motegn Products Private Limited Ihilities =" =
Revenue and contract| Customer

63 | Rasavan Vidhi Private Limited lighilities * -+
Revenue and comtract| Customer

64 | Crossance Group OF Consulant Private Limited liihilities =% al
Revenue and contract] Cestomer

5 | Technistar India Private Limited linbilities -* -*
Revenue und comraet] Customer

66 | Sadhana Infra & Peb Projects Private Limited liabilities = =2
Revenoe and contract] Costomer

67 | Audiotechnik F futions Indse Private Limited liabilities =% =*
Revenve ond contract| Customer

68 | Bhungale Hydraulics Pyt Lid lisbilities % -*
K und ustmer

69§ Villus 1 {Ope) Private Limited liabilitics - -*
Revenue and contract Customer

70 | Kosini Fire & Security Pyt Lud. liabilitics = -
Revenve and contract| Customes

71 | Ashtasiddhi Vinoyak Telecast & Teleport Private Li liabilities el -*
Revenue and contract] Customer

72| Abps Pharma Privite Limited . liabilities i -*
{3 and “ustomer

73 | Biofix Infintunz Private Limited - -*
Revenoe and contract| Customer

74| Kashugy Alavukol Private Limited * -+
[Fevenue and contract| Customer

75 |Leo Royal Techserve Private Limited -~ -
Revenoe and contract] Customer

76| Aloe Pharmacy Private Limited iabiliti -* -
Revenue end contract|Customer

77 [Navya A System Prvate Limiled o -
Revenue and Customer

TR | Alivesmart India Private Limited == -
Revenue and contract| Customer

791V Laval Enganeering Private Limited il -* -
Revenue and contract Customer

80| Advantech Crane A Private Limited liabiities -* a®
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37 Additional Regulatory Information
b} = Relationship with Struck off companies (Uont'd)

et | 31 March 2023
8. Nu. [Nume of the struck off company T rinisotion Relutinnship Transaction | Balanee
amount outstanding
Revenue and contrugt] Customer
#1 Vs Healiboare Privade Limited libalitics o .
Revenue and contract] Custoner
82 [Micro Flow Contarmination Solutions { India b Private Tiabilities -* ¥
R anil LRI
#3 |Raj Private Limited lighilitics =+ -+
Fovenve and contract] Custonwr
R4 | Kumar Cerammics Privite Limited liabilities =~ e
Revenne and contriet] Customer
K5 | Aspen Systems Privaie Limited liabilities -+ -*
Rovenee and comrect] Customer
#6 | Microflow: Devices India Private Limited liahilities -+ i
Revenue and contruct] Customer
87 | Ad Waorldwide-Tech Co.Private Limited liabylities =+ i
R und Customer
HE | Mereatum Techminh‘r Pv1, Lid Tnabilities =* -~
Revene and contract] Customer
8% |Farrhomies Interior Private Limited lialbvilities -* «*
Revenue und contract| Customer
Y| Avew Madi Tech Private Limited lighilities +¥ nE
Revenue und comtract) Cusiomer
91 JAg Industries Private Limited linbilities -* -*
Revenue and contracy| Customer
42 |R M Retanil Sal Private Limited liabilities -* fa
Revemue and eontract] Customer
93 | Appolex Rood Equipments Private Limited lnabilities ¥ £
Revenue and contract] Customer
94 |Sha Hydraulics Private Limited liabilities -* -*
Revenue and contract] Customer
97 | Dudilu Industries Private Lumisted Tiahilities = o
HRevenue amd contract) Customer
96 | Giiriraj Steels lighilitics -4 «*
Revenue and contract| Customer
97 | fum Adventures & Tours Py Lid Lihilities -2 =
Revenne and contract) Castomer
98 |Egrent Cosma Care Private Limited liahilitics i s
Revenue and contract| Customer
49| Suryavanstu Pasandyn Services Private Limited liahifities a Ll
Revenue and contract] Customer
100 | Al Molta India Private Limited ligbilities = =
Revenue and contract| Customer
101 | Axcel Adorn Private Limited liabilities - -*
Revenue and contract] Customer
102 | Seven Plus Infra Privare Lintited liabilities =* -*
R and Customer
103 {Shami Fmeg Industries Private Limited linhilitics - e
Revenue and contract) Custames
1404 | Sathi Banery Py, Ltd hnblitics 2 i
Hevenue and contract| Costomer
115 | Medivantis Pharma Private Limited Linbilitics =* 4
Revenue and contract] Customer
L6 | Koks Technology Private Limited liabilities = tod
Revenue and contract] Customer
107 | Shree Murnugn Consumer Products Private Limired liahilitics B -+
Revenue und contruct] Customer
108 | Molexo Ol Indsa (Ope) Private Linuted liabilities = sl
Revenve and contract] Customer
109 | Gistek Plasteon Privaie Limited liabilities - -*
Hevenue and contrect] Customer
110 Bpocomet Services Privite Limited labilines 2 s
Revenne and contract] Customer
111 |Nature Bee Products Privite Limited limbilities = =
Revenue and contract| Customer
112 |Pfc Clothing Private Limited lighilities -+ -*
Revenue and contruct] Customer
113 {Snushn RéeD Prvate Limited Inbiliries 2 i
Revenue and comract Customer
114 ) Optotec Electronics Private Limited fiabilitics il *
Revenue and eontract] Customer
115 | Vegavan Private Limited lbilines =X =l
Reverme and contract] Customer
116 | Evervihing Services Private Limiied linhilities - =t
Revenue and comtract| Customer
117 |Finfreely Home Services Private Limited linhilitics - -+
Revenue and contraet| Customer
11F|Fk Bugitech (Dpe) Private Limited liahilities -* -*
Revenue und contract| Customer
119 | Perfect Agrochem Private Limited tiaibrilites = -
[Revemue and contract] Customer
120|Sri Pack Packing Muchinery Private Limited liabilities 2 .
Revenue snd contract] Customer
121 |Hilm 1 ing Private Limited liabilitics e -
R und Customer
122 |Mg Krushi Dhan Agrotech Privite Limited liabilitics -~ -
Revenue and contrect) Customer
123 |Expert Enpineers For You Private Limited liabilities i ==
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37 Ad v Lnfi
b - Relutionship with Struck off companies (Cont"d)

31 March 2023
8. No. [Name of the siruck off company .r::::‘::am Relotionship | Transaction | Balance
nmouni outstanding

Fevenue and contract{ Customer

124 |izlack Empire Private Limited liabilities -* =*
Revenue and contract| Customes

125 |First Clintee Machmery Indm Private Linuted Enbaliies 59 -*
Fevenie anid contract] Customer

126 |Wal Technosofl Privite Limited Tighililies =~ ¥
Rewenue and contract) Customer

127 | Adrmsamik Fashion Privaie Lomied Liablities =* -*
Revenoe and contract] Customer

128 | Cartemay Lubricants Private Limited liabilities -* -
Revenue and contract{ Customer

129 | Ritajya Industry Private Limited liabilities e i
Revenue and contrsct] Customer

130 | Tunushri Soap Ocean (Dpe) Private Limited Hiabilitics =* o
Revenue and contrict] Customer

131 | Lenlyon Laundry Equipment Private Limited halii = *
' ene and contract] Customer

132 | Dizzant Flooring Private Limited hili - -

Customer
133 |Nizamis Exim Private Limited =* =
| Cristomer

134 | Kinr Socks Private Limated -* -*
Revense and contract] Customer

135 [Mechwing Enginesting And Services Private Limited liahilities et 2t
Revenue and contract| Customer

136 |E-Systems Techno Private Limited liahiliries A il
® aned “ustomer

137 | Aps Equiy Priviste Limited liahilitics ¥ B
Revenue and contracy Customer

| 34 | Greenhandle Products Private Limied Erabalities -4 -*
R and ustomer

139 |Spine Care Medical | Private Limited tiabilities -+ -
Revenue and contract) Customer

140 | Asyo Pharmsa Privale Limited Labilitics - P
Revenue ond contract] Customer

141 [Sturlife Emerprises Indin Private Limited liabilities = =4
Revenue and comtract| Cusiomer

142 |Ge Furn Solutions Privaite Limined liabilitics -* +*
Revenue and contract| Customer

143 | Connectia Tech Services Privare Limited liabilitics - .
Revenue and contract| Custamer

144 |Prayer Export Private Limited linbilitics =* -
Revenue and contract] Customer

145 | Euresia Imigation Systens Private Limited Iishilities =% 2
Revenue and contract| Custorner

146 | Maxin Hydro Dynamic India Private Limited lighilitics o+ -+
Revenue end contract] Customer

147 | Taamini Crap Science Prvate Limited lbalities -* -+
Revenue and contract] Customer

145 | Vikas Scientific | Private Limited Liabilitien i -4
Revenue und contract] Customer

149{Lurman Kitchen Equipments Private Limited linbilities i -*
Revenue and contract) Customer

150 | Nathane Chemicals Private Limited liabilities -* -*
Revenve and contract] Customer

151 [Jad Technosoft Privine Limited liabilities = s
Revenue and contract] Customer

152 |Jp Encrigy Sysiems (India) Private Limited liabilitics == -*
Revenue and contract] Customer

153 |Raylelitn Chemicals Private Limited liabiliises i -*
Revenue and contract] Customer

154 |Mesa Radmtion Solutions Privote Linited . -
Revenue and contract] Customer

155 [First OTice Solutions India Private Limited » -+
Revenue and contruct| Customer

156 | Prodigy Secure Indin Private Limited -* -*
Revenue anid conteaet] Castomer

157 |Supreme Reliable Retail Private Limited i | -* -*
Revenue und contract| Customer

155 [ Hottip India Private Limined - »
Revenae and contruct] Customer

158 | Kitchen Asds Distributors Private Limited -* -*
Revenue and contract| Cestomer

16l | Eon Intenor Products Private Limited * -*
Revenve and contract| Cestomer

161 |Crown Filtech Pyt Ll - -
Revenue and contract| Customer

162 {Ade Courier & Curgo Services Privide Limited liahilities sl =
Revenue and contract] Customer

163 | Inf; ics E-Tech (India) Lyd liahilities -* =*
Revenue and contract| Sharcholders#

164 | Rishiroop Pol s Private Limited lnabilitics - -
Revenue and contract| Sharcholderst

165 | Poran Associates Private Limited liabilities b 2




Indiamart Intermesh Limited
Notes to Standul Fi inl § fur the veur ended 31 March 2023

(Amounts in INR millon, unless otherwise stated)

A7 Additional Regubitory Information
b - Relationship with Struck off companics (Cont'd)

31 March 2022
o ot T e el e

1 {54 Fabs Kitchen Equipment Privaie Limited ::;:;:i‘:am ool {CisTowmer 4 5

2{Amre Cranes Private Limited :?‘::;l_::m contract | Custamer . Ly

3| Kumar Cerumics Privite Limited r::r\:ﬁ:l'll.:.md contract |Costomier . "

4| Aspen Systems Private Limited ::;;:L“_‘::mlw“""n Custoriay i .

5| Vikas Scientific Instruments Private Lumitiod :;.']:'l:::n;imdmnlmcl Comtonmer 7 g

o | Mars Sterile Salutions Private Limated :t:::ﬂl.:{m comtruct | Chstomis 5 R

T | Parameshwary Embed Technologies Private Limited ﬁ:mt;‘“ Fomiaet [y i s

& |Nirvaa Fashion Private Limited ::;;ﬁ'l:l:‘""d copipact S Cantamey % 5

9 |Lemison Laundry Equipment Private Limited ::‘:;::‘I";"‘"d GrniTRcY | Lutamer . Il
i | Lorman Induction Technology Provate Linuted ::‘:m‘;;“mj contruct | Customes g 4
B Advantech Crane Automation Privase Limined :T::;:::i“d conipm, [Cusouer " 4
12|Giriraj Stecls Private Limited o | vl s
13 [First Office Solutions India Private Limited J‘::;.I“I““;”"’ eonnct hsiomer " I
14 |Mollimax Supplicrs Private Limiied ﬁ:;ﬁ'l::l;a"d cantraet |Customer = A
15 | Sumflower Nataral Perfume Private Limited '?““,“_"_“‘ and contract | Costomer Ly H
16| Womsan Arts Food Private Limited Nl g &
17| Art OF Masain Foods Private Limited Custamer F #
13 |Ratnaprava Indusirics Private Limied :Eﬂta"d contraet | Customer i b
19| Aps Equipments Private Limited ﬁ:":;‘t‘_‘:"” contruct (Customer iz .
20{Leo Royal Techserve Private Limited l’::;:‘ﬂ‘:;““‘ Sontaact [Coxlomer . .
21 | Aditya Inkjet Teclnelogies Private Limited 'ﬁ:;;;:‘::"d soutraict | Custofner . "
23 | Mercatum Technology Private Limited :f:;;;:‘;::"" contrazt | Custores . I
23 | Royuratna Indusiries Private Limited r::*::l:::m contact | Customer i n
24 |Micro-Flow Contaniination Solutions (Indi) Privite Liited ::::;:::;m QaiEack [ Cmmmer (s s
25 |Sun Sports Private Limied ::;“‘:‘:’:'“d oot [Comlomers 1 »
26 | Maitri Infosoft Private Limited ::;:‘;l:::nd ot |Ltmer I .
27|R. M. Retuil Solutions Private Limited Rnveas o comiiee | Chesones n .
28| Navys Automation System Private Limited ﬁm‘:“"" Codtinol. | Cuslomiee | %
20| Alba Nova Life Seience Private Limited 'f;:;ﬁ:‘i‘;‘“d oonizmct’|Customer I .
10| Supreme Reliable Retail Private Limied el I | o s %
3| {Ashwattha Enterprises Privare Limited ::;;:‘::am Soalt | Cuelispor " L
32 |E-Systems Techno Private Linmited :::;:‘t‘::““ contiract | Gl o n
33|Pev Electromedical Private Limited E:;I:’l':’m"l conirset | Customer i .
34| Aster Automative Private Limited ff»f.t"."rﬁ“d Soatract | Custisiner: . R
35 Mot India Private Limited e s ot | Choni L =
36 |Safezonce Enviro Engineers Private Limited :m:m soetrncl | Cuntasmer s "
37| Agi Industries Private Limited ﬁm‘;"“’ contunet [Cianer s i
38{Crown Filiech Private Limiied m:.m eontract | Customer ) .




Indizmurt Intermesh Limited
Notes to § Jal Financial S Tor the year ended 31 March 2023
[Ampunts i INR million, unless olherwisge stated)

37 Additional Regnlatory Information
b} - Relationship with Struck off companies (Cont'd)

31 March 2022
S.No. [Namw of the struck off company Nature n! Relationship Transaction | Bala
Transactions amount nutstandi
39}ip Euergy Systms India Privete Limited I'::\vtlll::simd controct | Custonws . .
A0 Mahavir Interors & Propects Private Linnited RI:\‘.{,I'IIIL‘ et |y - .
lishilities ! -
41| Atharva Indusrrial Equipments Privats Limited Rcvc.mlr and copraet | Customer . “
nabalitres - -
42 |Fire Engitech Private Limited Rwe!“.m A cRIEt { CHmomen
liabilitics - =
43 | Taamim Lrop Soence Private Limited '.‘CVLI?“.E and contenet:| Castanier - .
44 |Sidhi Vinayak Footwears Private Limited Crpanee " p.
= Cusiommer
45 |Appoles Road E ts Private Limited
ppoles Ro quipments ate Linmte Jiahilitics [+ »
46 |Nizami'S Exim Private Limitod Rd\'_muu Und coptaaar | Cosioméy »
lighilitice =¥ *
47 |Nuthans Chemicals Private Limited Revsime amd pomtbect | Evietomer R L
Hithilities - -
48 |Starlific Enterprises India Private Limited Fabctrhbimnt Sorvatt [Critopiy % g
liahilitigs B -
" : 2o Revenue und contract | Customer
9 Private Limited
49 [Maanam Corpuration (Opc) Private Limite iabilitics » -
30 intersoftkk { India) Private Limited Rn.u.un- and contract | Customer - 4
linhilities = -
" " . 5 Revenue and contract | Customer
&1 | Vinami T ;
51 [Visaag Technologies Private Limited liabilitis e *
52 {Fawrhomes Interior Private Limited ?c\cnu: A T . .
lrabalities - -
53 [#-Axis Decars Private Limited fEeveatic and copreact [Cupaton; . e
tiabiliiics < -
- Revenue and contract | Customer
54| Aguaz Wat ted o
Apaz ek lvate Liiie linhilities -* -*
: i . Revenue and contrsct | Customer
55 |Sharmils Manpower Solutions Private Limited Jiabilitics - &
i £ g
56 | Venerate Exports Private Limited Rm.“}‘.‘e i -
liabilities . ot
57| Midshipmite Recruiters Private Limited [ dad Coin Oy ; s
liabiliies o <
o Fab Private Limttod Revenue and contract [Customer ) L
liahlinies s =
59| saeoh Amd Sons Trading Private Limited | . :
fnbilities - -
i) |Green Velly Pesticides Private Limited '?“c!“.m et pomienct | Custcmer a .
liahilities - =
O ) | Virsun Orgunic lindis Privive Limited R“ﬂ.w oo | i *
linbilities e s
62 |Axelerant Infra (Indin) Privane Limied Rewoiwand cosiraph | Glaofsy ' A
63 [lsavgo Technologies Private Lirmited Raw e =, -
64 | Se Consuliancy Private Limited Rmmr ad comroct | € ey -
lighilities i -
63 [Taral Pharma Machinery Private Limited Kﬂ.u.m s ot | Cusiomer . .
liahilities s ~
66| Tera Ventura Agro And Texiles Private Limited Revesue il oo (Comtice 5 .
Tihilities = ~
67 | Dimora Intermational ndia Private Limited Revens and oomrast | Conames N .
ligbafithes = =
68 | Shei Laxmi Chemicals And Industines Prvane Limited "'“.mw il ookt | Custbrtts = a
linhilites - -
9 | Biofis Infiniumz Private Limited Keenytand compict | Custosncy . i
linbiliries - i
70| Aasara Pre-Fab Private Lonited Kﬁ.m.’: o SO | N . .
liahilities - -
71 | Hansru Industries Private Limited R“. 3 il ‘ .
lighilities - -
72| Informatics E-Tech (India) Limited fievendiamd oot |Clnspier . )
luabilines o -
73 | amenta Jewels Privite Limited E’:v :‘;md Sopteoct | Sigmer . .
 y— 7
74 [Sapphire Industniol Products Private Limited Rﬂﬁ“.w st pcafraH | Cupomer » .
Inabiliries - -
75| Aasthaa Afrtech Private Limited eyt sd vommet (Chsiomer = i
lighilitics - -
" ; L Revenue and contract |Customer
7 e
'6 | Super Transpons Privite Limited linbilities i .
77| ¥o Dry Fruits Private Limited evcrsienind dhrbrnsd | Eghitner u A
linbilities o #
78| Gireen Tlandle Products Priviic Limited avoroe mxk cemanet | Curtomer . "
linhilities - e
79| Sha Hydrauhies Private Limated kﬂ.mm ST | g . .
linhilities - -
B0 Pring Infosolt Systems Private Limied EN.“.‘W wd continet | Cuss » -
liahilities B ks
£1 |Connectia Tech Services Private Limited ::.::::‘w contract | Cuistomer . iy




Indismart Intermesh Limited
Notes o fulone Financial 8§ fTor the vear ended 31 March 2023
{Amiounis in INR million. unless otherwise siated)

37 Additional Regulatury Informution
b - Relationship with Struck off companies {(Cont'd)

| 31 March 2022
Nature of Tramaction Balance
No. [N f the struck off | Relutiomshi
B st i Transactions wep nmount outstanding
£2 | Aveu Muditech Privare Linited R“'_“”f‘f and conbract |Cistomer . i
Tiahilities - .
Revenue and cantract [0 :
%3 | Access | Solution [ngital Marketng Frivate Limited CYEHE ARFaomrs L " N
Hiahilitics -
#4 | Panacen Narurul Gireens Indin Private Limited Rc“’_“_“‘ nd contict | Cuistier g :
lizihilities B X
45 [Kazhugu Alavukol Privaic Limited If'““_“_""‘ and coniract | Customer ) L
lighifities a
86 | Abpx Pharma Private Limited Revene and conilract | Customer 5 i
%7 | Bectaair Solutions Private Limited e and contract | Customer ) A
linbilities - =
RS | Aloc Phanmacy Private Limited Revenue and contragt | Customer o -*
£ | Sarmt Krupa Steel Tt Private Limited Revenue and conract | Cusiomicr " X
lishalitics - i
40 | Eurasia Imigntion Sysiems Private Limited Revenue and cantract | Customer . r
Tiabalities - -
i ; et | Custome
91 [K_5. B Brothers Private Limited R”'ﬂ_"l"r and cantra ustomer ) ]
linhilitics - .
92 | Jumboodeep Adventures & Tours Private Limited, ::‘:‘::rl”‘:'w caniact. | Customer 5 i5
i 5 T " 2 Fevenve and contruct | Cust
93 |Exhicon World Exhibit Private Limited T i s ) 1
Tabilities s -
94 | Maxin Hydro Dynamic India Privite Limited Revenue and cantruct | Custaficr 5 i
= lishilities 5
95 |Nesa Rudiation Solutions Private Limited F e o SO0 AR, . [
liabiliries < =
96 |Byr Tovs And Furnitures Private Limited 'fw_"_"_w and contract | Customer . .
liabilities ~ K
97 s Hawkers India Private Limited Rﬂ.em.m and cantract | Customer R L
liahilities - -
95 | Saral Filteration Private Limited Ravenie aad cantract | Customer . ;
lnbilities . K
]
99| Embassy Stones Privite Limited Revenue amd conirac | Customer . [
liabilities - -
100 | Lavi Autometive India Private Limited Pevisinard aoatret | Costianier B A
linbilitics - "
) 3 A : 2
100 | R Tex Spin Mach Private Lid. 'Il“:!'"_" and contract | Customer ) :
linbafities - .
102 Aurts Creative Studic Ope Private Limited Revenue and contruct [ Customer ) N
liabitities = -
: " - . " Revenue and contreel [Customer
103 |K. P. Fabricators & Fngincers (Gujurat) Private Limited AR B 3 R
finbilities - g
104 [Mazdda Agencies Private Limited Revenue and contruct | Customer ) i
linbilities [+ u
1115 | Manmohan Marketing Private Limited Revonue and contract | Customer < L
liabilities = o
16| Vacatio Leisures Private Limited Revenue and contraet | Customer . i
liabyilities - X
107|Fast Care India Pest Cantrol Private Limtited |Revenue and contrart | Customir - [
liabilities - g
N v enue and contract s
108 | Fanmar Exim Private Limited F_Lc“_ By Customer . i
liabilifies !
108 [Microsidd India Privare Limited Revenue and coutract |Customer . i
liahilies B -
1
1 10 Infrawnve Ties Private Limited (Revenue and comtract |Customer o ;
leabalitees - «
111 | Disti (ndia) Private Limited Revenue and contract | Customer Iy i
Vi -3 1
112 |Din Overseus Privaie Limited Revenue and contract [Customer a g
{oxd nd contract | g
113 | Bizkratt Cousepts Privare Limited Revenue and cantract | Customer i .
T ~
114 Primero Mediiech Private Liniited Revenue and contract | Customer s »
115 |Cirey Box Technologics Private Limited Rovenuc and coniruct | Customer i I
Lighilities - q
116 | Purofyhealth Private Limited Revene and cantract | Customer . .
2 x x R nd cohtract | Custo
117 {Aplast Inemational Private Limited it ustomer ) i
cwerrie and oo i | .
118 | Axiomata Elevators Private Limned Revente and contruct | Customer Iy ‘.
H 3 R nd contract |
119 Amrutn Pharmaceutical Privaie Limited P ract | Cuslomer ) .
3 Revenve and controct | Custom
120 | Luxonan Corporate Services Private Limited e Somer p &
[ Revenue and contract | Customer
2 -
121 | Tgs Vertical Trunsportation Prvute Limited lisbilitiex Ly )
122|Gde Agro Foods Private Limited | Revenue and contract | Customer i ]
liahiliries -
. " Revenue and contract | Custom
123 {Purplepro It Solutions India Privite Limited Eehhrerd il el = A
liabilities - -
124 | Telesis Consultancy Services Private Limited R”".“"” and coptroel | Gugtomer " -
luhilifies - X .
125 | TotStrunk Private Limited ]m:':m’ contract | Customer ] =




Indiamart Iatermesh Limited
Notes fo 8 dal Fi ial for the vear ended 31 March 2023
(Amouns i INK million, unless otherwise siaied)

37 Additional Regulatory Information
b} - Relationship with Struck off companies {Cont'd)

| 31 March 2022
(Nuture of Transaction | Balance
S.No. NI the st 3 1]
v [N ol thetrack ofF company Transactions i nmunt outstanding
s - 3 Revenme and contract |Custonmer
26 |G < Power Priite , J
126 |Guece Solar Power Privite Limited liabilities . .
127 | Vividha Ants Private Limited s s
Tiabilines fad 1S
126 | Striker Sevurity Services Private Lituted el iy anloet Cume . I8
129 | Heritage Manufaciuring Company Private Limited ustoroas . -
130§ Briven Pharmatec Private Limited anEr & s
131 | D1 Engeneering And Congtructions (Upe) Private Limited Rﬂﬂ.m: e m -
Liabilithes
132 | Incon Technologies Privite Limited Reyemie il Soniiact Curlames 5
liabilities -
133 | Elecain (Ope) Private Limited Rr\'nuln' and contract | Customer
liabiilitics -* -
134 | Lunatie Crafiwork Private Limited ievanue acid Sxnlzie, [ Endmey
lnabihies = -~
135 | kara Exim Privite Linvited hpeniic s contiaed fCuisbomer
linhilities -* Sl
136 | Ovate Seal Construction Prvate Limited Rxeoukiand contaet | Custaimi =
lbalitics 4 2
137 | Dpisss Multi Sodutions Privice Limived qu:m: apd compuct | Customer " -
Linbalities - -
| 38 | Strawsun Manufaciure Private Limited Reu.et.ﬂ..m and contract | Castomer
liabilities -* -*
139 Giitura Private Limiiod Revenue and contract | Castomer [ 3
140 | Sotsun Power [Ope) Private Limited hovemit il contratt | Cussomer 4 55
11 | Astiwsinti Privicte Lisited Revenue und contract | Custamer l; 5
142| Abba Cure & Care Private Limited Reomme oot Cumomer, ||| 6
143 | Dream Sucvess Inframart Private Limited k'cmuc et citoic I wioinoy - -
144 | We Sprout Landseapers (Opi) Private Limited Roveatic and contyict JQnstomer . .
liahilitics - .
145 |Ab Brothers Private Limuted (Opce) kﬂ?‘“ and contract | Customer
liabilities -* -+
146 | Nlive Efectronics ludis Private Limited Pevenie tnd comudat | Cusgbicr
liabilities -* -t
147 |Clarismart Technologies Private Limied B e e
liabilities -* -*
148 | Kings And Queeris Impex Privole Limiied (Ope) :?:ht'l n“"ie':"” Srniraet [uslomer iz :
149 [Majesty Aaton Elevators India Private Limited Feorenucand savtoset [(Copomne: | "
150 | Adfutech Thermul Engincers Private Limited Reévenue and contruct | Customer . "
151 |Kagazi Crafts Private Limited Reveaue aadcantet | Cusgemer il @
152 |Oum Sound & Acoustic Private Limited R“FI.:E‘C =i contrict | Cygtoitice > Ly
153 | Seastar Watersport Products Private Limited RI-\:UL‘!'IH;‘ Soxlcontet | Costomer
" lishilitics - -
u Revenue and contract |Cusiomer
4 " "
154 | hnges Art Private Limited liabilitses lig i
155 | Nakish Technolugies Private Limited iSevems tral condeat | Custncy
liabilitics -* =
156 | Rrootolly Online Services Private Limited iy g
hiabalines = -
157 |Rubicon Ro Private Limited I{:vu:ue.nnd Sentoet | Castogier . .
i es b -
158 Aqua Purity Industries Private Limited Revendnandaniar, | Ciiomiee
fizhilitics -+ al
159 Puran Associates Private Limited - Sharcholders # |- -
160 | Avanti Realtors Privite Limited - Sharchoklers # |- -
161 |Rishiroop Polymers Pvi Lid - Sharcholders # |- 5
162 | Ratng Commercial Enterprises Pvi Ltd - Sharcholders # |- =

* Less than INR 100 Million,
# Sharcholders means persons holdng the securities of the Company




IndiaMART InterMESH Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Amount in INR million, unlesss otherwise stated)

38 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act 2006:

As at As at
31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022

The principal amount and the mnterest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of

cach accounting year

- Principal amount due to micro-and small enterprises - -
- Interest due on above = =

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year 3 :
The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but bevond
the appointed day during the vear) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006, £ =
The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year > .
The amount of further interest remaiming due and payable even in the succeeding vears, until such date when the

imterest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006 - :

39 Events after the reporting period

fi ial were issued, and no

a) The Company has evaluated all the subsequent events through 28 April 2023 which 1s the date on which these standal
events have occurred from the balance sheet date through that date except for matters that have already been considered in the dalone financial

b} Dividend
Dividend declared by the Company is based on the profit available for distribution. On April 28 2023, the Board of Directors of the Company have proposed a final
dividend of INR 20/- per share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2023.

¢) Bonus Issue
On April 28, 2023, the Board of Directors of the Company proposed issuance of 1:1 bonus shares on fully paid equity shares having face value of INR 10 per share,

subject to approval of the sharcholders. In the event of approval by the Shareholders of the proposed Bonus issue, post adjusting for this Bonus issue, the Basic
Eamings per equity share would have been INR 44,57 per share and INR 50.92 per share for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 respectively, and
Diluted Earnings per equity share would have been INR 44.42 per share and INR 50.40 per share for the vear ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 respectively,

As per our report of even date

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of 'rer.rors af
Chartered Accountants o
ICAI Firm Repistration No.: 101248W/ W-100022

Kanika Kohli
Partner
Membership No.: 511565

Place: Gurugram oML Py
Date: 28 April 2023 eck Chandra
(Chief Financial Officer)

Place: Noida
Date: 28 April 2023
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